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Agilent Technologies, Inc.
395 Page Mill Road
Palo Alto, California 94306

o . Edward W. Barnholt
oS Agilent T@@B‘Dﬂﬂ@ﬂ@@]ﬂ@S Chairman of the Board, President and

Chief Executive Officer

To our Stockholders:

I am pleased to invite you to attend the annual meeting of stockholders of Agilent
Technologies, Inc. (‘‘Agilent’™) to be held on Tuesday, March 4, 2003, at 10 a.m. at the South San
Francisco Conference Center located at 255 South Airport Boulevard, South San Francisco,
California (U.S.A.). Details regarding admission to the annual meeting and the business to be
conducted are more fully described in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy
Statement.

As we did last year, this year, as a cost-saving measure, we are combining our Proxy
Statement, Annual Report and Annual Report Financial Statements into a single document. Also
enclosed in this package is a proxy card for you to record your vote and a return envelope for
your proxy card.

If you are unable to attend the annual meeting in person, you may participate through the
web or by telephone. To participate in the live webcast, log on at www.investor.agilent.com and
select “Company Presentations”. To listen by telephone, please call 1-800-289-0468. The webcast
will begin at 10 a.m. and will remain on the company website for 28 days. You cannot record your
vote on this website or at this' phone number.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, I hope that
you will vote as soon as possible. You may vote on the Internet, by telephone or by completing
and mailing the enclosed proxy card. Voting over the Internet, by phone or by written proxy will
ensure your representation at the annual meeting, if you do not attend in person. Please review
the instructions on the proxy card regarding each of these voting options.

Thank you for your ongoing support of, and continued interest in, Agilent.

Sincerely,
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

-395 Page Mill Road
Palo Alto, California 94306
- (650) 752-5000

Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders

TIME , ‘ . 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, March 4, 2003

PLACE | : : South San Francisco Conference Center
, South San Francisco, California (U.S.A.)

ITEMS OF BUSINESS (l) To elect directors to a 3-year term.

(@ To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
. as Agllent s independent accountants

(3) To amend the Agilent Technologles Inc. 1999 Stock Optlon
Plan (the “Stock Plan™) to permit the exchange of options
issued under the Stock Plan having an exercise price greater
than $25.00 for a lesser number of new options to be granted
at least six months and one day from the cancellatlon of the
surrendered options..

(4) To consider such other businéss as may properly come
before the annual meeting. .

RECORD DATE n b' ‘ ~ You are entitled to vote at the annual meeting and at any
- ‘ ' adjournments thereof if you were a stockholder at the close of
business on Monday, January 6, 2003.

ANNUAL MEETING ADMISSION Two cut-out admission tickets are included on the back cover -
‘ of this combined document. Please contact Agilent's Corporate
Secretary at Agilent’s corporate headquarters if you need
. additional tickets. The annual meeting will begin promptly at
10 a.m. In order to avoid any disruption for those in
.attendance, late comers will not be seated.

VOTING BY PROXY Please submit a proxy as soon as possible so that your shares
can be voted .at the annual meeting in accordance with your
instructions. For specific instructions on voting, please refer to
the instructions on the proxy card.

By Order of the Board

Cﬁi@&w@

D. Craic NORDLUND
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary

This proxy statement and accompanying proxy card are being distributed on or about
- January 15, 2003.

.



QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE PROXY MATERIALS
AND THE ANNUAL MEETING

Why am I receiving these malerials?

Agilent’s Board of Directors (the “Board’”)
is providing these proxy materials for you
in connection with Agilent’s annual meet-
ing of stockholders, which will take place
on March 4, 2003. Stockholders are in-
vited to attend the annual meeting and
are requested to vote on the proposals
described in this proxy statement.

What information is contairned in these
materials?

The information included in this proxy
statement relates tc the proposals to be
voted on at the annual meeting, the voting
process, the compensation of directors
and our most highly paid officers, and
certain other required information.
Agilent’s 2002 Annual Report and audited
financials statements, proxy card and re-
turn envelope are also enclosed.

What proposals will be veted on at the
annual meeting?

There are three proposals scheduled to be
voted on at the annual meeting:

¢ the election of directors for a 3-year
term;

e the ratification of the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
Agilent’s independent accountants; and

* the approval of an amendment to the
Stock Plan to permit the exchange of
options issued under the Stock Plan
having an exercise price greater than
$25.00 for a lesser number of new
options to be granted at least six
months and one day from the cancella-
tion of the surrendered options (the
“Option Exchange Program’).

What is Agilent’s voting
recommendalion?

Agilent’s Board recommends that you
vote your shares “FOR" each of the
nominees to the Board, “FOR"” the ratifi-
cation of the appointment of Price-

waterhouseCoopers LLP as Agilent’s
independent accountants and “FOR’” the
approval of the Option Exchange
Program.

What shares owned by me can be voeted?

All shares owned by you as of the close of
business on January 6, 2003 (the “Record
Date”) may be voted by you. You may cast
one vote per share of common stock that
you held on the Record Date. These
shares include shares that are: (1) held
directly in your name as the stockholder
of record, including shares purchased
through Agilent Technologies, Inc. 1999
Stock Plan (“Stock Plan’’) and (2) held for
you as the beneficial owner through a
stockbroker, bank or other nominee or
shares purchased through Agilent Tech-
nologies, Inc. 401(k) Plan (““401(k) Plan’").

What is the difference between holding
shares as a stockholder of record and
as a beneficial owner?

Most stockholders of Agilent hold their
shares through a stockbroker, bank or
other nominee rather than directly in
their own name. As summarized below,
there are some distinctions between
shares held of record and those owned
beneficially. ’

Stockholder of Record

If your shares are registered directly in
your name with Agilent’s transfer agent,
Computershare Investor Services, you are
considered, with respect to those shares,
the stockholder of record, and these
proxy materials are being sent directly to
you by Agilent. As the stockholder of
record, you have the right to grant your
voting proxy directly to Agilent or to vote
in person at the annual meeting. Agilent
has enclosed a proxy card for you to use.
You may also vote by Internet or by
telephone as described below under “How
can [ vote my shares without attending
the annual meeting?”




Beneficial Owner

If your shares are held in a stock broker-
age account or by a bank or other nomi-
_hee, you are cons1dered the beneficial
owner of shares held in street name, and
these proxy materials are being forwarded
to you by your broker or nominee who is
considered, with respect to those shares,
the stockholder of record. As the benefi-
cial owner, you have the right to direct
your broker on how to vote and are also
invited to attend the annual meetlng
However, since you are not the stock-
holder of record, you may not vote these
shares in person at the annual meeting.
Your broker or nominee has enclosed a
voting instruction card for you to use in
directing the broker or nominee regarding
how to vote your shares. You may also
vote by Internet or by telephone as de-
scribed below under “How can [ vote my
shares without attending the annual
meeting?” J

How can I vote my shares in person at
the annual meeting?

Shares held directly in your name as the
stockholder of record may be voted in
person at the annual meeting. If you
choose to do so, please bring the enclosed
proxy card or proof of identification. Even
if you plan to attend the annual meeting,
Agilent recommends that you vote your
shares in advance as described below so
that your vote will be counted if you later
decide not to attend the annual meeting.

Shares held in street name may be voted
in person by you only if you obtain a ,
signed proxy from the record holder giv-
ing you the right to vote the shares.

How can I vole my shares without
attending the annual meeting?

Whether you hold shares directly as the
stockholder of record or beneficially in
street name, you may direct your vote -
without attending the annual meeting by
Internet, telephone or completing and
mailing your proxy card or voting instruc-
tion card in the enclosed pre-paid enve-
lope. Please refer to the enclosed
materials for details.

Can I change my vole? - .

You may change your proxy instructions
at any time prior to the vote at the
annual meeting, You may accomplish this
by entering a new vote by Internet or
telephone or by granting a new proxy
card or new voting instruction card bear-
ing a later-‘date (which automatically
revokes the earlier proxy instructions) or
by attendlng the annual meeting and
voting in person. ‘Attendance at the an-
nual meeting will not cause your previ-
ously granted proxy to be revoked unless
you specifically so request.

How are votes counted?

In the election of directors, you may vote
“FOR” all of the nominees or your vote
may be “WITHHELD” with respect to one
or more of the nominees. For the ratifica-
tion of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and
the approval of the Stock Plan amend-
‘ment to permit the Option Exchange: Pro-
gram, you may vote “FOR”, “AGAINST”
or “ABSTAIN". If you “ABSTAIN", it has
the same effect as a vote “AGAINST”. If
you sign your proxy card or broker voting
instruction card with no further instruc-
tions, your shares will be voted in accor-
dance with the recommendations of the
Board. Any undirected shares that you
hold in the 401(k) Plan will be voted in
proportion to the way the other 401(k)
Plan stockholders vote their 401(k) Plan
‘shares.

;" What is the voting requirement to

-approve each of the proposals?

In the election for directors, the two
persons receiving the highest number of
“FOR” votes will be elected. The auditors
proposal and the proposal to amend the

- Stock Plan to permit the Option Exchange

Program require the affirmative “FOR”
vote of a majority of those shares present
and entitled to vote. If you are a benefi-
cial owner-and do not provide the stock-
holder of record with voting instructions,
your shares may constitute broker non-
votes, as described in “What is the quo-
‘rum requirement for the annual meet-
ing?” in the section entitled “Additional




Questions and Information Regarding the
Annual Meeting and Stockholder Propos-
als” herein. In tabulating the voting result
for any particular proposal, shares, which
constitute broker non-votes, are not con-
sidered entitled to vote.

What does it mean if I receive more
than one proxy or veting instruction
card?

It means your shares are registered differ-
ently or are in more than one account.
Please provide voting instructions for all
proxy and voting instruction cards you
receive.

How can I obtain an admission ticket
Jor the annual meeting?

Two cut-out admission tickets are in-
cluded on the back of this combined
document. A limited number of tickets are
available for additional joint owners. To
request additional tickets, please contact

Agilent’s Corporate Secretary at Agilent's
corporate headquarters. If you forget to
bring an admission ticket, you will be
admitted to the annual meeting only if
you are listed as a stockholder of record
as of January 6, 2003, and bring proof of
identification. If you held your shares
through a stock broker or other nominee
and fail to bring an admission ticket, you
will need to provide proof of ownership
by bringing either a copy of the voting
instruction card provided by your broker
or a copy of a brokerage statement show-
ing your share ownership as of January 6,
2003.

Where can I find the voling results of
the annual meeting?

Agilent will announce preliminary voting
results at the annual meeting and publish
final results in Agilent’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of
fiscal 2003. '
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BOARD STRUCTURE AND COMPENSATION

The Board is divided into three classes serving staggered three-year terms. The Board-has
8 directors and the following 4 committees: (1) Audit and Finance, (2) Compensation, ¢
3 Nommatlng/Corp_ora_te Governance and (4) Executive. The membership during the 2002 fiscal \_‘
year and the function of each committee are described below. During the 2002 fiscal year, the
" Board held 11 meetings. The Audit and Finance, Nominating/Corporate Governance, Compensa-
tion and Executive Committees held 7, 2, 7 and 6 meetings, respectively, during the 2002 fiscal
‘year. Each director attended at least 75% of all Board and applicable committee meetings.

Name of Director ' ) Audit and Finance Compensatioh Nominating | Executive
Non-Employee Directors: L
Gerald Grinstein® ‘ | X
James G. Cullen® ' X "X
Thomas E. Everhart’ I X '
Robert J. Herbold* = . x
Walter B. Hewlett® - X
Heidi Kunz® - X*
David M. Lawrence, M.D.” . <
A. Barry Rand® . X
| Employee Directors: ' ‘ B
Edward W. Barnholt® ‘ X

e

X*

el LBl R N el PR

X = Committee member; * = Chairpersoh

(1) Mr. Grinstein has served as a director and Chairman of the Board since August 1999.-
Mr. Grinstein has indicated that hé intends to retire from the Board in accordance with age
guidelines for Board membership when his term expires at this year’ s annual meetmg
‘Accordingly, he will not stand for re-election. In November 2002, in anticipation of
Mr. Grinstein’s planned retirement, Mr. Barnholt succeeded Mr. Grinstein as Chairman of the’
Board and Mr. Grinstein was appointed Lead Director. After he retires, he will be suceeeded
by Dr. Lawrence as the Lead Director. . :

(2) Mr. Cullen has served as a director since April 2000.

(3) Dr. Everhart served as a director from July 1999 to February 2002.
(4) Mr. Herbold has served as a director since June 2000.

(56) Mr. Hewlett hes served as a director since July 1999.

(6) Ms. Kunz has served as a dlrector since February 2000.

(7) Dr. Lawrence has served as a director since July 1999. Upon Mr Grmstem S retlrement from
the Board, Dr. Lawrence will also serve as the Lead Director. :

(8) Mr. Rand has served as a dlrector since November 2000.

(9) Mr. Barnholt has served as a director since May 1999 .and Chairman of the Board since
Novermber 2002’ >

Audit and Finance Committee .’ ‘ accountants and 51gn1ﬁcant ﬁnanc1al matters
T In dlschargmg its duties, the Audit and Fi-
The Audit and Finance Committee is responsi- -~ nance Committee is expected to

ble for the oversight of the quality and
integrity of Agilent’s financial statements, its
compliance with legal-and regulatory require-
ments, the qualifications and independence of
its independent accountants, the performance - o review and approve the scope of the
of its internal audit function and-independent annual internal and external audit;

o have the sole authority to select, com-
pensate, oversee, evaluate and replace
the independent accountants;



¢ review and pre-approve the engagement
of Agilent’s independent accountants to
perform audit and non-audit services
and the related fees;

° meet independently with Agilent’s inter-
nal auditing staff, independent account-
ants and senior management;

¢ review the integrity of the company’s
financial reporting process;

e review the ccmpany’s financial state-
ments and disclosures and U.S. Securi-
ties & Exchange Commission filings;

e review funding and investment policies,
implementation of funding policies and
investment performance of Agilent’s
benefit plans; :

¢ monitor compliance with the company’s
- standards of business conduct; and

e review disclosures from Agilent’s inde-
pendent accountants regarding Indepen-
dence Standards Board Standard No. 1.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Comimittee reviews the per-
formance of Agilent’s elected officers and
other key employees and determines, approves
and reports to the Board on the elements of
their compensation, including total cash com-
pensation and long-term equity based incen-
tives. In addition, the Compensation
Committee:

e approves and monitors Agilent’s benefit
plan offerings;

° supervises and oversees the administra-
tion of Agilent’s incentive compensa-
tion, variable pay and stock programs;

e recomrmends to the Board the annual
retainer fee as well as other compensa-
tion for non-employee directors; and

e has sole authority to retain and termi-
nate executive compensation
consultants.

Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee

The charter of the Nominating/Corporate Gov-
ernance Committee is to propose a slate of

directors for election by Agilent’s stockholders
at each annual meeting and to appoint candi-
dates to fill any vacancies on the Board. It is
also responsible for approving management
succession plans, addressing the Board’s orga-
nizational issues and developing and review-
ing corporate governance principles applicable
to Agilent. During fiscal year 2002, the Nomi-
nating/Corporate Governance Committee met
twice. The Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee will consider nominees recom-
mended by security holders provided such
recommendations are made in accordance
with the procedures described in this proxy
statement under “Additional Questions and
Information Regarding the Annual Meeting
and Stockholder Proposals.”

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee meets or takes writ-
ten action when the Board is not otherwise
meeting. The Committee has full authority to
act on behalf of the Board, except that it
cannot amend Agilent’s Bylaws, recommend
any action that requires the approval of the
stockholders, fill vacancies on the Board or
any Board committee, fix director compensa-
tion, amend or repeal any nen-amendable or
non-repealable resolution of the Board, de-
clare a distribution to the stockholders except
at rates determined by the Board, appoint
other committees, or take any action not
permitted under Delaware law to be delegated
to a committee.

Statement on Corporate Governance

Agilent has had formal corporate governance
standards in place since the company’s incep-
tion in 1999. We have reviewed internally and
with the Board the provisions of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (“‘Sarbanes-Oxley Act”), the
proposed rules of the U.S. Securities & Ex-
change Commission and the proposed new
listing standards of the New York Stock Ex-
change regarding corporate governance poli-
cies and processes. We believe that our
current standards already meet most of the
proposed requirements. In anticipation of the
adoption of these rule changes, we have
amended the charters of our Compensation
Commiittee and our Audit and Finance Com-
mittee to voluntarily implement certain of the




proposed rules and standards. Agilent and the committees in the “Corporate Governance”

Board and its' committees will further amend, section of www.investor.agilent.com or by
to the extent necessary, its standards and writing to us at Agilent Technologies, Inc.,
charters once final rules have been adopted. 395 Page Mill Road, Palo Alto, California
You can access the latest standards and ‘ 94306, Attention: Investor Relations.

charters of Agilent and the Board and its -

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENTS AND STOCK OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

Director Compensation Arrangements \

- The following table prov1des mformatlon on Agﬂent s compensation and reimbursement
practlces durmg the fiscal year ended October 31 2002 for non-employee directors. Directors who
are employed by Agrlent do not receive any compensatlon for thelr Board activities.

COMPENSATION TABLE
FOR THE 200? ‘FISCAL YEAR
Annual D1rector Retainer'? ‘ i ' ‘ $90,000
Annual Retainer for Non- Employee Board Cha1rman o . $360,000
Mrmmum Percentage of Annual Retalner to be Paid in 'A‘gilent Stock Options® 75%
Additlonal Retainer for Committee Chairs. . : , $5,000

(1) All directors served the entlre 2002 ﬁscal year except for Mr Everhart who served until
February 22, 2002.

- (2) Given that many employees were asked to take a 10% reduct1on in salary during fiscal year
2002, the non-employee directors also elected to take a 10% reduction in their retainers for
the fiscal year 2002. The adjusted amount is shown. It is anticipated that the retainers will be
restored to prior levels in fiscal 2003.

(3) Stock OptIOIIS were valued usmg the Present Value of Expected Gain (PVEG) methodology
Initial grants are made at ‘the time of a director’s election to the Board and cover the period
extending through February 28 of the following.year. Annual retainer grants are made on or

_shortly following Agilent's annual stockholders’ meeting,

Currently, Agilent’s practice is to grant a one-time stock option valued at $250,000 to all new

directors when they join the Board. No new members joined the board during the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2002.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Agrlent s stock ownersh1p gurdehnes require each director to own a_ m1n1mum of 2,000 shares
of Agilent stock




PROPOSALS TO BE VOTED ON
PROPOSAL NO. 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Agilent’s Board is divided into three classes serving staggered three-year terms. Directors for
each class are elected at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the year in which the term
for their class expires.

The terms for three directors will expire at this 2003 annual meeting. However, Mr. Grinstein
has indicated his intention to retire from the Board in accordance with the age guidelines for
Board membership at the end of his term, and accordingly, he will not stand for re-election. Votes
cannot be cast and proxies cannot be voted other than for the two nominees named below.
Directors elected at the 2003 annual meeting will hold office for a three-year term expiring at the
annual meeting in 2006 (or until their respective successors are elected and qualified, or until
their earlier death, resignation or removal). All of the nominees are currently directors of Agilent.
There are no family relationships among Agilent’s executive officers and directors.

Nominees for Three-Year Terms That Will Expire in 2006

Edward W. Barnholt Mr. Barnholt has served as Agilent’s President and Chief

Age 59 Executive Officer and as a director since May 1999 and also as
Chairman of the Board since November 2002. Before being
named Agilent’s Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Barnholt served as
Executive Vice President and General Manager of Hewlett-
Packard Company’s Measurement Organization from 1998 to
1999, which included the business organizations that have
become Agilent. From 1990 to 1998, he served as General
Manager of Hewlett-Packard Company’s Test and Measurement
Organization. He was elected a Senior Vice President of Hewlett-
Packard Company in 1993 and an Executive Vice President in
1996. He is a director of KLA-Tencor Corporation.

Robert J. Herbold Mr. Herbold has been a director of Agilent since June 2000. He

Age 60 was an Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of
Microsoft Corporation from 1994 to April 2001 and currently
serves as an Executive Vice President (part-time) of Microsoft
Corporation. Prior to joining Microsoft, Mr. Herbold was a Senior
Vice President at The Procter & Gamble Company from 1990 to
1994. Mr. Herbold is a director of Weyerhaeuser Corp. and
Cintas Corp. He is the Managing Director of the consulting firm
Herbold Group, LLC.

Agilent’s Board recommends a vote FOR the election to the Board
" of each of the foregoing nominees.

Agilent’s directors listed below whose terms are not expiring this year will continue in office
for the remainder of their terms or earlier in accordance with Agilent’s Bylaws. Information
regarding the business experience of each of such directors is provided below.

Directors Whose Terms Will Expire in 2004

James G. Cullen Mr. Cullen has served as a director since April 2000. Mr. Cullen
Age 60 was President and Chief Operating Officer of Bell Atlantic from
1997 to June 2000 and a member of the office of chairman from
1993 to June 2001. Prior to this appointment, Mr. Cullen was a

8




Walter B. Hewlett
Age B8

Heidi Kunz
Age 48

Age 62

A. Barry Rand
Age 58

David M. Lawrence, M.D.

President and Chief Executive Officer of the Telecom Group of
Bell Atlantic from 1995 to 1997. Prior to the creation of Bell
Atlantic on January 1, 1984, Mr. Cullen held management
positions with New Jersey Bell from 1966 to 1981 and AT&T
from 1981 to 1983. Mr. Cullen is a member of the board of
directors of Johnson & Johnson, Prudential Insurance Company
and Quantum Bridge Communications.

Mr. Hewlett has served as a director 'since July 1999. Mr. Hewlett
is an independent software developer involved with computer
applications in the humanities. He participated in the formation
of Vermont Telephone Company of Springfield, Vermont in 1994
and currently serves as its Chairman. Mr. Hewlett founded the
Center for Computer Assisted Research in the Humanities in
1984, for which he serves as a director. He has been a trustee of
The William and Flora Hewlett Foundation since its founding in
1966 and currently serves as its Chairman. In 1997, Mr. Hewlett
was elected to the Board of Overseers of Harvard University.

Mr. Hewlett has served as a director of the Public Policy Institute
of California since 1998.

Directors Whose Terms Will Expire in 2005

Ms. Kunz has been a director of Agilent since February 2000.
Ms. Kunz has served as an Executive Vice President and the
Chief Financial Officer of Gap, Inc. since 1999. Prior to assuming
her current position, Ms. Kunz served as the Chief Financial
Officer of ITT Industries, Inc. from 1995 to 1999. From 1979 to
1995, Ms. Kunz held senior financial management positions at
General Motors Corporation, including Vice President and

" Treasurer.

Dr. Lawrence has been a director of Agilent since July 1999.

Dr. Lawrence has been Chairman Emeritus of Kaiser Foundation
Health Plan, Inc. and Kaiser Foundation Hospitals since May
2002. He served as Chairman of the Board from 1992 to May
2002 and Chief Executive Officer from 1991 to May 2002 of
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. and Kaiser Foundation
Hospitals. He held a number of management positions with these

. organizations prior to assuming these positions, including Vice

Chairman of the Board and Chief Operating Officer.
Dr. Lawrence is a director of Pacific Gas and Electric Company
and Raffles Medical Group, Inc.

Mr. Rand has been a director of Agilent since November 2000.
He was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Avis Group
Holdings, Inc. from November 1999 to March 2001. Prior to
joining Avis Group, Mr. Rand was Executive Vice President for
Worldwide Operations at Xerox Corporation from 1995 to 1999.
Mr. Rand is Chairman Emeritus of Avis Group and is a director
of Abbott Laboratories and AT&T Wireless. .




PROPOSAL NQ. 2
RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

The Audit and Finance Committee of the Board has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as Agilent’s independent accountants to audit its consolidated financial statements for the 2003
fiscal year. During the 2002 fiscal year, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP served as Agilent’s
independent accountants and also provided certain tax and other non-audit services. Although
Agilent is not required to seek stockholder approval of this appcintment, the Board believes it to
be sound corporate governance to do so. If the appointment is not ratified, the Audit and Finance
Committee will investigate the reasons for stockholder rejection and will reconsider the
appointment.

Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are expected to attend the annual meeting
where they will be available to respond to questions and, if they desire, to make a statement.

Agilent’s Board recommends a vote FOR the ratification of the appointment
of PricewaterhocuseCoopers LLP as Agilent’s independent accountants.

PROPOSAL NO. 3

AMENDMENT OF THE AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 1999 STOCK PLAN (THE
“STOCK PLAN”) TO PERMIT THE EXCHANGE OF OPTIONS ISSUED UNDER THE STOCK
PLAN HAVING AN EXERCISE PRICE GREATER THAN $25.00 FOR A LESSER NUMBER OF
NEW OPTIONS TO BE GRANTED AT LEAST SIX MONTHS AND ONE DAY FROM THE
CANCELLATION OF THE SURRENDERED OPTIONS (THE “OPTION EXCHANGE
PROGRARM").

After careful consideration, our Board of Directors has determined that it would be in the
best interests of Agilent and our stockholders to amend the Stock Plan to permit the Option
Exchange Program. Under the Option Exchange Program, eligible employees, other than our
directors, Named Executive Officers and other Section 16 officers, will be offered the one-time
opportunity to exchange their stock options that have an exercise price greater than $25.00 for a
lesser number of options to be issued at least six months and one day from the date the
surrendered options are cancelled. The new options would have an exercise price equal to the fair
market value (the average of the high and low sales price as quoted in The Wall Street Journal)
(“FMV") of our common stock on the date of the new grant. The text of the Stock Plan
amendment is attached as Appendix A. This approval requires the affirmative vote of a majority
of the outstanding shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at our
annual meeting.

Stock options are intended to encourage our employees to act as owners, which helps align
their interests with those of stockholders. The objective of our Stock Plan is to encourage
ownership in Agilent by key personnel whose long-term employment is considered essential to
Agilent’s continued progress and thereby encourage recipients to act in the stockholders’ interest
and share in Agilent’s success.

Like many other companies in the technology industry, our stock price experienced a steep
increase in the year 2000, at a time when Agilent was a new company. And like other companies
in our industry, our stock price declined in 2001 and 2002, during the overall stock market
downturn. Unfortunately, sustained adverse economic conditions have had a negative effect on the
entire technology sector, including markets in which Agilent operates. As a result of the extreme
volatility in the stock market and our stock price, approximately 70% of our stock options had
exercise prices significantly higher than the current stock price as of January 6, 2003.
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This means that the majority of our stock options no longer are effective as incentives to
motivate and retain employees. Although these stock options are not likely to be exercised as long
as Agilent’s stock price is lower than the applicable exercise price, they will remain on Agilent’s
books with the potential to dilute stockholders’ interests for up to ten years from the grant date
unless they are cancelled.

As a company, we have had to take steps to reduce expenses and scale back operations in
response to a decreased demand for our products and services. These steps have included
reducing our workforce, implementing a hiring freeze; instituting temporary pay reductions,
cutting back significantly on our use of temporary workers and reducing discretionary spending.
As of October 31, 2002, we had reduced our workforce by approximately 8,000 people as a result
of these restructuring activities.

The Option Exchange Program would provide an opportunity to motivate our remaining
workforce to achieve future growth. By realigning the exercise prices of previously-granted stock
options with the current value of our common stock, in a manner that is intended to be
economically neutral to stockholders based on the exchange ratios set out below, we believe that
the Stock Plan will again become an 1mportant tool to help motivate our employees to continue to
create stockholder value. :

STOCK OPTION EXCHANGE PROGRAM

Under the proposed Option Exchange Program, participating employees would surrender
unexercised options they currently hold with an exercise price greater than $25.00 per share and
in return receive new stock option grants to purchase fewer shares, in accordance with a specified
exchange ratio. Optionees who are Agilent employees in a country in which the program is offered
on the date that the Option Exchange Program is commenced would be eligible to elect to
participate, and would need to have been continuously employed and remain Agilent employees
on the date of the new grant to receive new OpthIlS The new options Woulq have an exercise
price equal to the FMV of our common stock on the new option grant date. The ratios of
surrendered options to replacement options would vary from 1.5 to 1, to 4 to 1, depending upon
the exercise price of the surrendered options.

We have structured the Option Exchange Program to strike a balance between stockholder
and employee interests and it was designed to create a value neutral exchange. The Option
Exchange Program would be beneficial to stockholders by canceling a larger number of
outstanding options and issuing fewer options in their place. In addition, by conducting this
exchange rather than granting new options to supplement the underwater options, we are
avoiding potential additional dilution to our stockholders’ interests.

If 100% of eligible options were to be exchanged and new grants made in accordance with the
exchange ratios set out below, the number of shares underlying options outstanding would be
reduced by approximately 20 million shares, or 23% of all outstanding options.,

Background

The Stock Plan allows Agilent to grant options, stock appreciation rights and stock awards to
regular employees. Stock options encourage our employees to act as owners, which helps align
their interests with those of stockholders.

As of November 30, 2002, there were 72,142,662 shares underlying options outstanding under
our Stock Plan and 39,641,126 shares available for grant (not including options converted from
Hewlett-Packard Company which are ineligible for exchange). Of the outstanding options, as of
November 30, 2002, options to purchase 47,483,800 shares of common stock would be eligible for
exchange under the proposed Option Exchange Program. The market value of the common stock
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underlying the options eligible for exchange was $947,776,648 as of January 6, 2003 based upon
the closing price as reported in The Wall Street Journal for that date.

Exercise Price of Number of Shares Weighted Average
Eligible Employee Underlying Options as Weighted Average Remaining Life of
Grants of Nov, 30, 2002 Exercise Price Option
$25.01t0839.99 ... ... ...l 32,576,932 $ 32.06 8.2 years
$40.00t0 $69.99 ... .. ... . ... . ... 4,594,783 $ 51.38 7.6 years
$70.00 to $89.99 .......... e 10,081,050 $ 77.58 7.2 years
$90.00and above...................... 231,035 $116.22 7.2 years
Total Number of Shares Underlying

Options Eligible for Exchange ....... 47,483,800

Details of the Option Exchange Program
Implementing the Stock Option Exchange Program

The Agilent Board of Directers authorized the Option Exchange Program in Nevember 2002,
upon the recommendation of its Compensation Committee and subject to stockhelder approval of
the amendment to the Stock Plan. If this proposal is approved, this cne-time offer to exchange
options may commence at any time after the annual meeting at the discretion of Agilent's
Compensation Committee,

If you approve the Stock Plan amendment and the Option Exchange Program commences,
eligible employees will be offered the opportunity to participate in the Option Exchange Program
under an Offer of Exchange to be filed with the SEC and distributed to all eligible employees.
Employees will be given at least twenty (20) business days in which to accept the offer of the new
options in exchange for the surrender of their eligible options. The surrendered options will be
cancelled on the first business day following this election period. The new options will be granted
ne earlier than six months and one day following the cancellation of the old options.

Eligibility

If implemented, the Opticn Exchange Program will be open to all Agilent employees who hold
options, worldwide, where feasible and practical under local regulations as determined by Agilent.
The Option Exchange Program will not be available to our Board of Directors, Named Executive
Officers and other Section 16 officers. The program also will not be available to any former
employees or to retirees. An employee who tenders his or her options for exchange must also have
been continuously employed with Agilent and be an eligible employee on the date of the new grant
in order to receive the new options. If an optionee is no longer an Agilent employee for any
reason, including layoff, termination, voluntary resignation, death or disability, on the date that
the Option Exchange Program commences, that optionee cannot participate in the program. If an
optionee is no longer an Agilent employee for any reascn on the date that the new grants are
made, even if he or she had elected to participate and had tendered his or her options for
exchange, that individual would not receive a new grant and the tendered options would be
forfeited. Options that are not vested at termination of employment cannot be exercised and will
be forfeited. Voting in favor of this proposal at the Annual Meeting dees not constitute an election
to participate in the Option Exchange Program.

Exchange Ratios

The exchange ratios for the Option Exchange Program — how many current options an
employee must surrender in order to receive one new option — were determined in a manner
intended to minimize stockholder dilution. New option grants calculated according to the
exchange ratios will be rounded down to the nearest whole share on a grant-by-grant basis.
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Options will not be issued for fractional shares. The. ratios set out below were established. based
on the Agilent stock price at the beginning of January 2003, after consultamon w1th 1ndependent
third-party experts on stock plans and stockholder proposals ‘ :

: Exchaﬁge Ratio

Exerclse Price Range ' Z o T . . [Cancelled to New] .
$25.01 to $39.99'........... USRI " 15to1
$40.00 t0 $69.99 ... 2.0to1

- $70.00t0'$89.99 .. ..., SR © 25 ¢t0 1 v

$90.00 and above ... .. S SO ST 40tol

Optlons tendered that have been granted within the six months pI‘lOl" to the commencement
of the.exchange offer would be replaced ataltol exchange ratio. and Would vest in accordance
with the vesting schedule of options they are replacing.

Election to Participate ‘ : I

Under the Option Exchange Program, eligible employees may make a one-time-election to
cancel grants of stock options that have an exercise price higher than $25.00 and exchange them
for new options in accordance W1th the exchangeé ratios set out above.

Part1c1pat10n in the Opmon Exchange Program will be voluntary. Optlons granted prlor to the
six months preceding the exchange offer may be cancelled at the employee’s discretion on a- grant-
by-grant basis. Once an employee elects to participate, however, he or she must also surrender
any options granted to such employee in the six months preceding the commencement of the
exchange offer. This six-month rule is necessary in order to avoid unfavorable accounting
treatment for Agilent.. : : : ' .

Exercise Price of New Options

All new options will be granted with an exercise price equal to the FMV of our common stock
on the date of the new grant.

Vesting of New 0ptwns

Except in certaln countries outside of the Umted States as determmed by Agllent the
replacement options will vest 50% each year over two years, dependent upon continued
employment with Agilent, as two years is the average vesting time. remaining for most of our
outstanding options. This means that all replacement options would be completely unvested at the
time of the new grant, regardless of whether the options exchanged were partlally or wholly
vested. As described above, however any .replacement options given in exchange for options
granted in the six month$ prior to the commencement of the Option Exchange Program vest 1n
accordance with the vesting schedule of the optlons they are replacmg

Employees Wlll have the choice to exercise their new options .at any ,‘tlme after they have
vested. Options will only vest. if the optionee remains an Agilent employee and may only be
exercised by an Agilent employee. Options that are not vested at termination of employment
cannot be exercised and will be forfeited. Except as described above, the new options will be
completely unvested on the date of grant, regardless of whether the surrendered options were -
partlally or completely Vested

Term of New Optwns o

The term of an option is the length of time durlng which it may be exercrsed Except in
certain countries-outside of the United States as determined by Agilent, under the Option
Exchange Program, each new option will have a term equal to the remaining term of the ..
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surrendered option it replaces. This ensures that the employees who participate in the exchange
offer will not derive any additional benefit from an elongated term in which to exercise. For
example, our typical option term is ten years. An employee who surrenders a grant received on
May 17, 2000 with a ten-year term extending until May 16, 2010 would receive a replacement
option with a term that also ends on May 16, 2010.

Other Conditions of New Options

The other terms and conditions of the new options will be set forth in an option agreement to
be entered into as of the new grant date, and will be governed by the Stock Plan. Replacement
options will be non-qualified options under U.S. tax laws, regardless of whether the options
tendered for exchange are incentive stock options. The shares of common stock for which the new
options will be exercisable have already been registered with the SEC as part of our Stock Plan
registrations.

Stock Appreciation Rights

We grant stock appreciation rights (SARs) in those countries where the grant of stock options
is either illegal or impractical. These SARs will be eligible for the Option Exchange Program on
essentially the same terms and conditions as described above for stock options. SAR holders who
tender their SARs will receive new SARs in the same proportion as option holders receive new
options, as outlined in the exchange ratio table above. ‘

Accounting Treatment

We have structured the program to comply with current Financial Accounting Standards
Board guidelines so that Agilent will receive the same accounting treatment for the new options
as it does for its current options. In other words, the program has been designed so that we will
not be subject to accounting compensation charges against our earnings from the new options.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Conseguences

The exchange of options should be treated as a non-taxable exchange and Agilent and our
employees should recognize n¢ income for U.S. federal income tax purposes upon the grant of the
new options. All new options granted under the Option Exchange Program will be non-qualified
stock options for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Poteniial Modification to Terms to Comply with Governmental Requirements

The terms of the Option Exchange Program will be described in a Tender Offer Statement
that will be filed with the SEC. Although we do not anticipate that the SEC would require us to
modify the terms materially, it is possible that we will need to alter the terms of the Option
Exchange Program to comply with SEC comments. In addition, it is currently our intention to
make the program available to our employees who are located outside of the United States, where
permitted by local law and where we determine it is practical to do so. It is possible that we may
need to make modifications to the terms offered to employees in countries outside the United
States to comply with local requirements, or for tax or accounting reasons.

Benefits of the Option Exchange Program to Employees and Officers

Because the decision whether to participate in the Option Exchange Program is completely
voluntary, we are not able to predict who will participate, how many options any particular group
of employees will elect to exchange, nor the number of replacement options that we may grant. As
noted above, however, our Named Executive Officers, other Section 16 officers and members of
our Board of Directors are not eligible to participate in the Option Exchange Program. Of the
outstanding options held by eligible employees as of November 30, 2002, the maximum number of

14




shares of common stock underlying 'options which could bé exchanged;:is 47, 4'83 ,800 and the
maximum number of shares of common stock underlylng‘the new optlons whlch could be issued
under the above exchange ratios would be 28,105,525. ' :

Effect on Stockhoﬂdelrs .

We are not able to predlct the impact the Option Exchange Program will have on your rights
as a stockholder because we are unable to predict how marny option holders will exchange their
options or what the future market pr1ce of Agilent’s stock will be at the-time of the new grant.
The program was designed to be value neutral to stockholders and to aV01d the dilution in
ownership that. normally results from supplemental grants of new stock optlons

Agilent's Board recommends & vote IF'@]R
.the Stock Plan amendment to permit the Option Exchange Program.
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COMMON STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
The following table sets forth information, as of December 17, 2002, concerhing:

e beneficial ownership of Agilent’s common stock by the FMR Corp., Edward C. Johnson 3d,
Abigail P. Johnson, as a group, and The David and Lucile Packard Foundation, the only
beneficial owners of more than 5% of Agilent’s common stock;

* beneficial ownership of Agilent’s common stock by each director and each of the executive
officers named in the Summary Compensation Table herein; and

¢ beneficial ownership of Agilent’s common stock by all directors and executive officers as a
group. ‘

The number of shares beneficially owned by each entity, person, director or executive officer
is determined under the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, and the
information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under
such rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares as to which the individual has the sole or
shared voting power or investment power and also any shares which the individual has the right
to acquire as of February 15, 2003, 60 days after December 17, 2002, through the exercise of any
stock option or other right. Unless otherwise indicated, each person has sole investment and
voting power, or shares such powers with his or her spouse, with respect to the shares set forth
in the following table.

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP TABLE

Shares of Agilent Beneficially Owned
Name of Beneficial Owner Number Nature Percentage (1)

Byron J. Anderson.................... 12481 Direct
260,760  Vested Options (2)
236  Indirect (3)

273,477 *
Edward W. Barnholt .................. 52,399 Direct

1,645 827 Vested Options
432  Indirect (4)

1,698,658 *
James G. Cullen ...................... 2,000 Direct

13,946  Vested Options
3,000 Indirect (5)

18,946 *
Adrian T. Dillon . ..................... 84,361  Direct (6)
50,000 Vested Options
134,361 - *

The David and Lucile Packard
Foundation (7) ..................... 38,727,525 8.2%
300 Second Street, Suite 200
Los Altos, CA 94022

FMR Corp., Edward C. Johnson 34,
Abigail P. Johnson, as a group (8).... 31,695,382 6.7%
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 02109

Gerald Grinstein . ... .................. 37,097 Direct
. 81,981 Vested Options
119,078 .
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‘ P o Shares of Agilent Beneficially Owned
Name of Beneficial Owner . . ‘ . _.Number - X Nature . | Percentage (1)

Robert J. Herbold ... ................ - 2,600 Direct '
. 15,082 Vested Options
e v 17582 o

Hewlett Family Accounts (9) o ‘
Walter B. Hewlett ................ ... 71,002,239 Direct
, . 34,637 Vested Options
__ 57,121  Indirect (10) -

5 , o . 1,003997 o *
William R. Hewlett Revocable Trust .. 13,036,909 2.8%
The William and Flora Hewlett e : . o , _ .
Foundation. ........... ceeeneeeoo.o 25,014,889 AT .. L%
Packard Humanities Institute ........ 4,910,828, ‘ e 1.0%
Flora Family Foundation . ...... L - 491,128 L » ' *
Pubhc Policy Institute' of Cahforma . 194,613 ' ‘ ' ¥
Heidi Kunz . . ... P e L 2,000 Direct .
' o 14,520 Vested Optlons,,
o o 16,520 e *
David M. Lawrence, M.D. ...........,.. . 1,546 :Direct . o
» ‘ o C 49,432  Vested,Options .
3,966 Indirect (11) .
, 54944 *
"A.Barry Rand.....v .o ‘... 3,000 " Direct ‘
o - ' T B ' 18,562, . ‘Vested Options ‘
: 21,562 o *
John E. Scruggs ....... P ‘ 22,963 Direct o
: ‘ Fe . 434,767  Vested Options ‘
457,730 *
William P. Sullivan’ ... .. AR .~ 385 Direct = ‘
: : . 354,656 Vested Options -
| 355,041 ' o *
Jack P. Trautman.......... U . 9,035 Direct
‘ oo 23,750 . Vested Options - - ‘
| | o 32,785 ‘ , *
All current directors and’executive = ‘ e :
- -officérs as-a group (20*persons) (12) * 5,247,271 v Pt ' 1.1%

* Represents holdings of less than one percen‘t"

€Y Percentage ownershlp is. calculated based upon 471 224,539 shares of Agllent common stock
outstanding on December 17 2002.-

(2) “Vested Optlons” are OpthIlS that may be exerc1sed as of February 15 2008

(3) Consists of shares held by Mr. Anderson’s son for which Mr. Anderson has no pecuniary
interest and disclaims beneficial ownership.

‘ (4) Consists of shares held by Mr. Barnhoit’s son, for which Mr. Barnholt has no pecuniary
interest and disclaims beneficial ownership.

(5) Consists of shares held by Mr. Cullen’s Family Limited Partnership.

(6) Includes 33,334 shares of restricted stock that are subject to forfeiture upon termination of
Mr. Dillon’s employment for any reason other than retirement due to age, permanent and
total disability or as part of a voluntary separation agreement. 50% of these shares shall vest
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on December 3, 2003 and 50% shall vest on December 3, 2004 so long as Mr. Dillon remains
continuously employed as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer through those
dates.

(7) The address and number of shares of Agilent common stock beneficially owned by The David
and Lucile Packard Foundation is based on the Schedule 13G filed by the foundation with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on January 18, 2002.

(8) The address and number of shares of Agilent common stock beneficially owned by FMR
Corp., Edward C. Johnson 3d, and Abigail P. Johnson is based on the Schedule 13G filed by
this group with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on February 13, 2002.

(9) Mr. Hewlett shares voting and investment power over the shares held by the William R.
Hewlett Revocable Trust, the Packard Humanities Institute and the Public Policy Institute of
California (the “PPIC”). Mr. Hewlett is a board member of the PPIC. However, Mr. Hewlett
has excused himself from any PPIC decisions dealing with Agilent stock. Mr. Hewlett does
not have voting or investment power over the shares held by the William and Flora Hewlett
Foundation, as voting and investment power is exercised by an independent stock committee.
Mr. Hewlett is not a member of the independent stock committee. Mr. Hewlett is the Chair of
the Investment Committee in the Flora Family Foundation, but he has excused himself from
any Flora Family Foundation decisions dealing with Agilent stock. Mr. Hewlett disclaims any
beneficial interest in the foregoing shares, because he has no pecuniary interest in the
shares.

(10) Consists of 17,433 shares held by Mr. Hewlett as custodian for his daughter, 19,688 shares
held by Mr. Hewlett’'s spouse, and 20,000 shares held in the James S. Hewlett Trust for which
Mr. Hewlett is a trustee. ;

(11) Consists of shares held for the benefit of Dr. Lawrence’s children in the Lawrence 2000
Irrevocable Trust of which Dr. Lawrence and his spouse are the trustees.

(12) Does not include shares owned by directors and executive officers who served as directors
and executive officers during all or part of the 2002 fiscal year but were not serving in that
capacity as of December 17, 2002.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Agilent’s directors, executive
officers and holders of more than 10% of Agilent common stock to file with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission reports regarding their ownership and changes in ownership of Agilent
stock. Agilent believes that during the 2002 fiscal year, its officers, directors and 10% stockholders
complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements, with the exception of one late report for
Mr. Rand. Mr. Rand inadvertently did not report the purchase of 2,650 shares on September 19,
2002 until a Form 4 filing made on October 1, 2002. In making these statements, Agilent has
relied upon examination of the copies of Forms 3, 4 and 5 provided to the company and the
written representations of its directors and officers.
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Plan category -

Equity compensatibn
plans approved by

Equity compénsation
plans not approved by

75 million shares.

1

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The followmg table summarizes information about our equity compensatlon plans as of _

October 31, 2002. All outstanding awards relate to our common stock.

‘Number of securities to

_ of outstanding options,

security holders......

security holders... ... .

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under equity
be issued upon exercise Wenghted average exercise compensation plans -

price of outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

(@ ' ) : ()

73,838,554 $40 80,541,985 (1),(2),(3)

73,838,554 $40 80,541,985

(1) Includes 28,592,376 of securities aufhorized and available for issuance in connection vﬁth the
Agllent Technologles Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “423(b) Plan™).

(2) Shares authorized for issuance in connection with the 423(b) Plan are subject to an automatic
annual increase of the lesser of 1 percent of the outstanding common stock of Agilent or an
amount determined by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors: In no event
shall the number of shares authorized for issuance in connection with the 423(b) Plan exceed

(3) We issue securities under our equity compensation plans in forms other than optlons
warrants or rights. Under the Agilent Technologies, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan, (the “Stock Plan"),
we may issue Stock Awards, as that term is defined in the Stock Plan. No more than
10 percent of the total shares available for issuance under the Stock Plan will constitute Stock
Awards. Under the Agilent Technologies, Inc. 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan (the
“1999 NonéEIﬁployee Director Stock Plan’"), we may issue Special Compensation, as that term
is defined in Section 7 of the 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. The total maximum
amount of common stock that we can issue in the form of Special Compensation cannot
exceed one million shares. '
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain compensation information for (i) the chief executive
officer, (ii) the four other executive officers of Agilent who, based on their salary and bonus
compensation, were the most highly compensated for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2002 and
(iii) one individual who was an executive officer during the fiscal year ended October 31, 2002
and would have been one of the four most highly compensated executive officers for the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2002 but for the fact that he was not an executive officer as of October 31,

2002 (the “Named Executive Officers’). All information set forth in this table reflects
compensation earned by these individuals for services with Agilent for the fiscal year ended
October 31, 2002, as well as their compensation for each of the fiscal years ending October 31,
2001 and Cctober 31, 2000.

Annuel Compensation Long-Term Compensation
Other Annual Restricted Securities All Other

Name and Principal Compensation Stock Award(s) Underlying Compensation

Position Year Salary ($)(1) Bonus ($)(2) ()] 3)4) Options (#) ($)(5)

Edward W. Barnholt....... 2002 $ 925,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 750,000 $8,000
Chairman of the Board, 2001 941,666 0 0 0 500,000 6,800
President and Chief 2000 1,000,000 660,000 0 46,908 750,000 6,800
Executive Officer -

Adrian T. Dillon(6) ........ 2002 552,493 650,000 265,713(3) 1,365,000 200,000 5,075
Executive Vice President, 2001 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Chief Financial Officer 2000 N/A N/A N/A . N/A N/A N/A

William P. Sullivan ........ 2002 532,500 0 0 0 . 300,000 3,653
Executive Vice President, 2001 473,125 0 0 0 200,000 6,800
Chief Operating Officer 2000 440,000 205,260 0 0 150,000 7,300

Byron J. Anderson ........ 2002 485,625 0 0 0 175,000 8,000
Senior Vice President, 2001 488,125 0 0 0 75,000 6,800
Electronic Products and 2000 500,000 173,684 0 21,311 100,000 6,800
Solutions ) ‘

Jack P. Trautman(7)....... . 2002 367,410 67,120 0 0 111,500 472
Senior Vice President, 2001 N/A N/A N/A ) N/A N/A N/A
Automated Test 2000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

John E. Scruggs(8) ........ 2002 462,504 135,641 ‘ 0 0 150,000 8,000
Senior Vice President, 2001 463,336 0 0 0 . 85,000 6,800
Automated Test 2000 470,000 243,930 ¢ 19,778 100,600 6,800

(1) The salaries for the 2001 fiscal year and the 2002 fiscal year reflect a temporary 10% reduction
from April 1, 2001 to July 31, 2002.

(2) This column reflects a one-time signing bonus of $650,000 paid to Mr. Adrian T. Dillon and the
payments under the Agilent Performance-Based Compensation Plan described under ‘“Report
of the Compensation Committee of the Board on Executive Compensation.”

(3) This amount reflects $165,452 of relocation expenses and $100,261 of interest, calculated at
the applicable market rate of 6.8756% per annum that would have been payable on a $2,500,000
loan from Agilent to Mr. Adrian T. Dillon had the loan not been interest free. See ‘“Secured
Relocation — Related Loan to Executive Officer”.

(4) For fiscal year 2002, the amount disclosed in this column reflects the dollar value of 50,000
shares of restricted stock granted to Mr. Adrian T. Dillon on December 3, 2001. As of
October 31, 2002, Mr. Dillon held 50,000 shares of restricted stock with a dollar'value of
$687,500 on that date. Mr. Dillon will have the right to receive any cash dividends paid to or
made with respect to Agilent’s common stock.

For fiscal years 2001 and 2000, no compensatory restricted stock awards were granted to
Agilent executives.
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For fiscal year 2000, the amounts disclosed reflect the dollar values of Hewlett-Packard .
. Company’s (“HP”) and Agilent’s common stock, which were contributed under the Hewlett-
Packard Company Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “HP ESPP”) and the Agilent Legacy
Stock Purchase Plan, respectively. Under such plans, eligible employees (including Executive
Officers) receive one share as a match: (“Matching Shares™) for every two shares purchased. In
February 2000, eligible Agilent employeés stopped participating in the HP ESPP and
commenced participating in the Agilent Legacy Stock Purchase Plan. As of June 2, 2000, HP
Matching Shares held by Agilent employees were forfeited and replaced with Agilent Matching
Shares. The ‘Agilent Matching Shares vest two years. after the date of purchase. As of

October 31, 2002, all of the Matching Shares under the Agilent Legacy Stock Purchase Plan
were fully vested according to original plan terms and there are no more restricted shares left
under the Agilent Legacy Stock Purchase Plan. ’ ‘

{(6) Amounts disclosed in this column include payment of Agilent’s contributions under the
Agilent Technologies, Ine. 401(k) Plan. In fiscal year 2002, Agilent made a 401(k) matching
contribution of $8,000 on behalf of each of Messrs. Barnholt, Anderson, and Scruggs of $3,653

* for Mr. Sullivan, of $5, 075 for Mr Dlllon and of $472 for Mr Trautman ‘

(6) Mr DlHOI’l commenced h1s employment with Agilent on December 3, 2001
(7) Mr. Trautman commenced his executive officer position on May 21, 2002.

(8) Mr. Scruggs resigned from his executive officer posmon on July 1, 2002 and retlred as an’
employee as of October 31, 2002.. : .

Option Grarnms in Last Fﬁecaﬂ Year .
The following table shows all grénﬁs of options to acquire shares of Agilent common stock
granted to the Named Executive Officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table for the fiscal

year ended October 31, 2002.

Number of % of Total . ’ ‘Potential Realizable Value
Securities Options Granted . at Assumed Annual Rates
paeeo Underlying to Agilent Exercise or of Stock Price Appreciation
LR . Options Employees in . Base Price = Expiration - for Option Term ($)
Name Granted(#)(1) Fiscal Year ($/Share)(2)  Date 5%(3) 10%(3)
Edward W. Barnholt 750,000 3.84% $25.67 Nov. 2011  $12,107,794  $30,683,527
Adrian T. Dillon ... .~ 200,000 1.02% 27.30 Dec. 2011 3,433,765 8,701,834
Wllllam P Sulhvan SOO,QOO 1.54% 25.67 Nov. 2011 4,843,118 12,273,411
Byron J. Anderson 175,000 0.90% 25.67 Nov. 2011 2,825,152 ' 7,159,490
Jack P Trautman ) ‘35,000 0:18% ‘ 25.67 Nov. 2011 565,030 1,431,398
_ ' ‘80,000 0.41% 29.13 May 2012 1,465,576 3,714,057
John E. Scruggs. .. .. 150,000 0% 25.67 Nov. 2011 2,421,559 '6,136,705

(1) The options granted are exercisable 25% after the first year, 50% after the second year, 75%
after the third year, and 100% after the fourth year.

(2) The optlons were granted at an exercise prlce equal to the fair market value of Agllent
common stock on the grant date, calculated as the average of the high and low market. price
. on that date.

(3) Potential realizable .value assumes that the common stock appreciates at the rate shown
{compounded annually) from the grant-date until the option expiration date. It is calculated
"based on the U.S8. Securities and Exchange Commission requirements. and does not represent
the estimated:growth of the future stock prlce by Agilent nor the present value of the stock
options. : ¢ : .
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Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

The following table shows aggregate exercises of options to purchase Agilent’s common stock
in the fiscal year ended October 31, 2002 by the Named Executive Officers.

Number of Securities

Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Shares Options as Fiscal In-The-Money Options
Acquired on Value Year-End (#) at Fiscal Year-End ($)(1)
Name Exercise (#) Realized ($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Edward W. Barnholt ...... 0 $0 1,115,461 1,630,366 $283,689 $0
Adrian T. Dillon .......... 0 0 0 200,000 0 0
William P. Sullivan ........ 0 0 185,648 531,608 0 0
Byron J. Anderson ........ 0 0 15,000 160,000 0 0
Jack P. Trautman ......... 0 0 164,584 289,926 0 0
John E. Scruggs........... 0 0 161,474 273,293 0 0

The value of unexercised Agilent options is based on the difference between the exercise price
and the average of the high and low market prices of Agilent common stock on October 31, 2002
of $13.89.

Pension Plans

The following table shows the estimated annual benefits payable on retirement to Agilent’s
eligible employees in the United States under the Agilent Technologies, Inc. Deferred Profit
Sharing Plan (the “Deferred Plan’), Agilent’s Retirement Plan (the “Retirement Plan’) and
Agilent’s Excess Benefit Retirement Plan (the “Excess Benefit Plan’”). To calculate the number of
years of an eligible employee’s service, the pension plans will bridge each eligible employee’s
service with Hewlett-Packard Company to that eligible employee’s service with Agilent.

ESTIMATED ANNUAL RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Highest Five-Year 15 Years 20 Years 25 Years 30 Years
Average Compensation of Service of Service of Service of Service
$ 400,000 $ 86,462 $115,283 $144,103 $172,924
500,000 108,962 145,283 181,603 217,924
600,000 131,462 175,283 219,103 262,924
700,000 153,962 205,283 256,603 307,924
800,000 176,462 235,283 294,103 352,924
900,000 198,962 265,283 331,603 - 397,924
1,000,000 221,462 295,283 369,103 442 924
1,100,000 243,962 325,283 406,603 487,924
1,200,000 266,462 355,283 444,103 532,924
1,300,000 288,962 385,283 481,603 577,924
1,400,000 311,462 415,283 519,103 622,924
1,500,000 333,962 445,283 556,603 667,924

For fiscal year 2002, benefits exceeding $160,000 will be paid pursuant to the Excess Benefit
Plan. No more than $170,000 (as adjusted from time to time by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service)
of eligible compensation may be taken into account in calculating benefits payable under the
Retirement Plan or the Deferred Profit Sharing Plan. Benefits attributable to annual earnings over
$170,000 are payable under the Excess Benefit Plan. Benefits payable under the Excess Benefit
Plan are available in a lump sum or up to 15 annual installments.
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The compensation used to determine the benefits summarized in the table above equals base
pay, without deducting for the 10% temporary salary reduction. The covered compensation for
each of the Named Executive Officers is the highest five-year average of such base pay for such
Named Executlve Officer.

Named Executive Officers have been credited with the following years of service as of
October 31, 2002: Mr. Barnholt, 30 years; Mr. Anderson, 30 years; Mr. Scruggs, 30 years;
Mr. Sullivan, 26 years; Mr. Trautman, 2 years (Mr. Trautman has 26 years of settled credited
service from the Hewlett-Packard Retirement Plans, previously paid by Hewlett-Packard); and
Mr. Dillon, 1 year. Retirement benefits shown are expressed as a single life annuity at age 65 and
reflect the maximum offset currently in effect under Section 401(1) of the Code, to compute the
offset for such benefits under the pension plan. For purposes of calculating the benefit, an
employee cannot-be credited with more than 30 years of service. Benefits under the Retirement
Plan are payable in the form of a smgle life annuity, a qualified joint and survivor annuity or a
lump sum. .

Secured Relocation-Related Loan to Executive Officer

On February 5, 2002, Agilent made a relocation loan to Mr. Adrian T. Dillon, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, as part of the employment package required to induce
Mr. Dillon to join Agilent and move from Cleveland, Ohio to the San Francisco Bay Area. In place
of a standard relocation bonus, Agilent provided a loan of $2.5 million to be used for the purchase
of a home. Provided that Mr. Dillon remains at Agilent, the loan will be forgiven over a five-year
period at 20% per year. The loan is secured by a deed of trust on the house. The unforgiven
portion of the note plus 10% per annum interest will be due in full (i) upon insolvency of
Mr. Dillon, (ii) upon any transfer of the property without the prior written consent of Agilent,
(iil) within three months of termination of employment for any reason and (iv) within one year
following the death of Mr. Dillon. If the amount due is not paid within five (5) days of the due
date, at the option of Agilent, the unforgiven portion shall begin to accrue interest equal to 15%
per annum. In accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, Agilent will not materially modify or
renew this loan and, in the future, will not. provide any new loans to its executive officers as
required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.- :

Change of Control Arrangements

Each of Messrs. Barnholt, Dillon, Sullivan, Anderson and Trautman, as well as five (5) other
executive officers who are not Named Executive Officers, has signed a Change of Control
Severance Agreement. Under these agreements, in the event that within 24 months of a change of
control of Agilent, Agilent or its successor terminates the employment of such an executive’
without cause or an event constituting good reason occurs and the executive _gesigns within
3 months of such an event, the executive will be entitled to: (i) two times, and with respect to
Mr. Barnholt, three times the sum of such executive’s base salary and target bonus, (ii) payment
of COBRA continuation premiums for up to 12 months, (iii) full vesting of all outstanding options
and restricted stock awards and (iv) a prorated portion of any bonus for. the performance period
in which the termination occurs. To the extent that the payment of these benefits trigger the
excise tax under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any
comparable federal, state, local or foreign excise tax, Agilent will pay Mr. Barnholt an additional
amount to cover all additional tax liability arising from the application of such excise tax.

In exchange for such consideration, each executive has agreed (i) to execute a release of all of
the executive’s rights and claims relating to his employment, (ii), not to solicit any of Agilent’s or
its successor's-employees for 2 years and (iii) not to compete for 1 year with up to 15 competitors
of Agilent or its successor, as determined by Agilent or its successor.
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REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Agilent’s executive compensation program is
administered by the Compensation Committee
of the Board (the “Compensation Commit-
tee”). The Compensation Committee, which is
composed of non-employee directors, is re-
sponsible for approving and reporting to the
Board on all elements of compensation for the
elected corporate officers. The Compensation
Committee has furnished the following report
on executive compensation for fiscal year
2002.

Compensation Philosophy

The goal of the executive compensation pro-
gram is to provide a total compensation
package composed of pay, stock and benefits.
The total package reflects Agilent’s perform-
ance and is designed te inspire and reward
superior performance by executives, business
organizations and Agilent.

Executive Compensation Practices

Each year the Compensation Committee
surveys the executive compensation practices
of selected S&P 500 High Technology compa-
nies. The Compensation Committee’s practice
is to target direct compensation levels for
Agilent’s executives at the 50th percentile of
total direct compensation of surveyed compa-
nies. Total direct compensation includes base
pay, short-term bonus at target and long-term
incentives. Overall, individual performance is
measured against the following factors; these
factors may vary as required by business
conditions:

¢ long-term straﬁegic goals;

* short-term business goals;

¢ revenue and profit goals;

¢ customer satisfaction;

* new business creation;

¢ total stockholder return;

* the development of employees; and

e the fostering of teamwork and other
Agilent values.
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In setting the goals and measuring an execu-
tive’s performance against those goals, Agilent
considers the performance of its competitors
and general economic and market conditions.
None of the factors included in Agilent’s
strategic and business goals are assigned a
specific weight. Instead, the Compensation
Committee recognizes that the relative impor-
tance of these factors may change in order to
adapt Agilent’s operations to specific business
challenges and to refiect changing economic
and marketplace conditions.

Components of Executive Compensation

The compensation program for executive of-
ficers consists of the following four
components:

* base pay;
¢ short-term bonus;
* long-term incentives; and

* benefits.

Base Pay

Base pay is baseline cash compensation and is
determined by the competitive market and
individual performance. Base pay for each
executive officer is established each year
based on a salary range that corresponds to
the executive officer’s job responsibilities and
the executive officer’s overall individual job
performance.

Short-Term Bonus

The Agilent Technologies, Inc. Performance-
Based Compensation Plan for Covered Em-
ployees (“‘Performance-Based Compensation
Plan’’) provides for cash compensation to be
paid semi-annually when performance targets
are achieved. During fiscal year 2002, the
executive officers participated in the Perform-
ance-Based Compensation Plan. Actual bo-
nuses paid to executive officers are based on
achievement of profit, revenue, and return on
invested capital goals established for each
performance pericd.




Long-Term Incentives

The long-term incentive program is designed
to encourage creation of long-term value for
our stockholders and equlty ownership by our
executives. During fiscal year 2002, Agilent
made stock option grants to Agllent § execu-
tive officers under the Stock Plan. Each grant
allows the officer to acquire shares of
Agilent’s common stock, stibject to the com-
pletion of a four-year vesting period, and
continued employment with Agilent. These
shares may be acquired at a fixed price per
share (the market price on the grant date)
over a ten-year period. An executive's grant
amount, if any, is based on competitive mar- .
ket, the position of the executive and individ-
ual and business unit performance.

Benefits

The global benefits philosophy provides em-
ployees protection from catastrophic events
and offers health and welfare benefits typical
in the given country in which Agilent oper-
ates. In addition, through the benefits survey
process, benefits offered by competitors, as

. well as benefits that set Agilent apart as an
employer, may be incorporated into the bene-
fits package. Where applicable, employees are
responsible for managing benefit choices, bal-
‘ancing their own level of risk and return.

Policy Regarding Compensation in Excess of
$1 Million a Year

Section 162(m) of the Code generally disallows
a tax deduction for compensation in excess of
$1 million paid to Agilent’s Named Executive
Officers. Certain compensation is specifically
exempt from the deduction limit to the extent
that it does not exceed $1 million during any
fiscal year or is “performance based” as .
defined in Section 162(m) of the Code. The
Compensation Committee considers the net
cost to Agilent. Accordingly, the Stock Plan -
and the Performance Based Compensation
Plan (the annual variable pay plan) have been
designed to qualify under Section 162(m) of
the Code. '

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Agilent’s stock ownership guidelines are de-
signed to increase an executive’'s equity stake
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in Agilent and more closely align his or her
interests with those of our stockholders. The
guidelines provide that the President and
Chief Executive Officer should attain an in-
vestment level in Agilent's stock equal to five
times his annual targeted total cash compen-
sation under the Performance-Based Compen- -
sation Plan, including direct ownership of at"
least 20,000 shares of Agilent stock. All other
executive officers should attain an investment
level equal to three times their targeted total
cash compensatlon under the Performance-
Based Compensation Plan, including direct
ownership of at least 15,000 shares for the
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer and at least 10,000 shares for all other
executive officers. In each case, such invest-
ment levels must be attained within five years
of the election.to their executive officer
positions.,

Compensation for the Chief Executive’

. Ofﬁcer ‘

Edward W. Barnholt has served as President
and Chief Executive Officer since May 4, 1999.
The Corpensation Committee used the execu-
tive compensation practices described above
to determine Mr. Barnholt’s fiscal year 2002
compensation. In setting both the cash-based
and equity-based elements of Mr. Barnholt's
compensation, the Compensation Committee
made an overall assessment of Mr. Barnholt's -
leadership in establishing Agilent’s long-term
and short-term- strategic, operational and busi-
ness goals. Mr. Barnholt's total compensation
reflects a consideration of both competitive
forces and Agilent's performance

The Compensatlon Commlttee surveyed the
total direct compensation for chief executive
officers of selected high technology companies.
Based on this information, the Compensation
Committee determined a median around
which the Compensation Committee built a
competitive range for cash-based and equity;
based elements of the compensation package.
As a result of this review, the .Co,mpensation'
Committee determined a mix of base salary
and bonus opportunity, along with.an equity
position to align Mr. Barnholt’s compensation
with the performance of Agilent. The resulting
total compensation package was competitive




for CEOs running companies comparable in
size and complexity to Agilent.

Additionally, as part of the review process,
the Compensation Committee assessed
Agilent’s financial and business results com-
pared to other companies within the high-
technology industry; Agilent’s financial per-
formance relative to its financial performance
in prior periods; Agilent's market competitive-
ness as measured by customer feedback, new
business creation and product generation; and
the health of the Agilent organization as
measured by employee surveys and the ability
to attract and retain key talent.

For fiscal year 2002, the specific recommenda-
tion for Mr. Barnholt positioned his target
total cash compensation at $2,300,000: base
salary remained at $1,000,000, with a
$1,300,000 bonus opportunity under the Per-
formance-Based Compensation Plan. The bo-
nus opportunity could have increased to
$2,600,000 if maximum performance objec-
tives were achieved. Consistent with the Per-
formance-Based Compensation Plan, the
performance objectives were based on
Agilent’s profit, revenue and return on in-
vested capital goals.

In determining the stock option grant for

Mr. Barnholt, the Compensation Committee
evaluated his total direct compensation com-
pared to CEQ’s of comparable companies and
determined that an award of a non-qualified
stock option to purchase 750,000 shares of
Agilent common stock was appropriate.

Given the continued downturn in the markets
that we serve, and the subsequent impact on
Agilent’s financial results, Mr. Barnholt did
not receive any payout under the Perform-
ance-Based Compensation Plan in fiscal 2002.
In addition, all Agilent executives agreed to a
10% pay reduction from April 1, 2001 through
July 31, 2002.

Submitted by:

Compensation Committee
David M. Lawrence, M.D., Chairperson
James G. Cullen

Gerald Grinstein
A, Barry Rand

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The members of the Compensation Committee
are set forth in the preceding section. There
are no members of the Compensation Commit-
tee who were officers or employees of Agilent

or any of its subsidiaries during the fiscal
year, formerly officers of Agilent, or had any
relationship otherwise requiring disclosure
hereunder.

AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

During fiscal year 2002, the Audit and Finance
Committee of the Board reviewed the quality
and integrity of Agilent’s financial statements,
its compliance with legal and regulatory re-
quirements, the qualifications and indepen-
dence of its independent accountants, the
performance of its internal audit function and
independent accountants and significant finan-
cial matters. Each of the Audit and Finance
Committee members satisfies the definition of
independent director as established in the
New York Stock Exchange Listing Standards.
Agilent operates with a November 1 to Octo-
ber 31 fiscal year. The Audit and Finance
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Committee met seven times during the 2002
fiscal year.

The Board adopted a written charter for the
Audit and Finance Committee on May 17,
2000 and operated under that charter during
the 2002 fiscal year. The Audit and Finance
Committee has reviewed the relevant require-
ments of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the proposed
rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission and the proposed new listing
standards of the New York Steck Exchange
regarding audit committee policies. Although
some of these rules and standards had not yet
been finalized at the time of the printing of




this proxy statement, the Board adopted an
amendment to the charter on November 20,

proposed rules and standards. A copy ‘of this
amended charter has been attached to .this
proxy statement as Appendix B. The Audit

. and Finance Committee intends to further
amend its charter, if necessary, When the
rulés and standards are finalized to reflect
additional requirements or changes from the
proposals. You can access the latest charter in
the “Corporate Governance” section of
www.investor.agilent.com or by writing to us
at Agilent Technologies, Inc., 395 Page Mill
Road, Palo Alto, California 94306, Attention:
Investor Relations.

The Audit and Finance Committee has re-
viewed Agilent’s audited consolidated finan-
cial statements and discussed such statements
with management. The Audit and Finance
Committee has discussed with Price-
waterhouseCoopers LLP, Agilent's mdepen—
dent accountants during the 2002 fiscal year,

Audit Fees

2002 to voluntarily implement certain of these

the matters required to be discussed by State-
ment of Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communi-
cation with Audit Committees) as amended.

The Audit and Finance Committee received
from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the written
disclosures required by Independence Stan-
dards Board Standard No. 1 and discussed
with it its independence. Based on the review:
and discussions noted above, the Audit and
Finance Committee recommended to the
Board that Agilent’s audited consolidated fi-
nancial statements be included in Agilent’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended October 31, 2002, and be filed with
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Submitted by:

Audit and Finance Committee

Heidi Kunz, Chairperson
Robert J. Herbold
Walter B. Hewlett

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed or expected to be billed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for audit services rendered in connection with the consolidated
financial statements and reports for fiscal year 2002 and for other services rendered during fiscal
year 2002 on behalf of Agilent and its subsidiaries, as well as all out-of-pocket costs mcurred in
connection with these services, which have been billed or will be billed to Agilent:

Audit Fees
Annual AuditFees ........................... e e $3,000,000
Total Audit Fees ... ... .. i $3,000,000
Non-Audit Fees ' .
Design and Implementation of Financial Information Systems .............. $ 0
All Other Fees: ‘ ‘
Tax services........... FE et $7,440,000
Audit, accounting and due diligence services related to Agilent’s ‘
acquisitions and divestitures activities .. ...... ... .. ... . L 24,000
Other accounting and auditing services including statutory audits of
Agilent’s international operatlons as requlred ......................... 1,690,000
Consulting Services .. .............iiiiiei . e 0

Total Non-Audit Fees. . ... $9,154,000

In making its recommendation to ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
Agilent’s independent accountants for the fiscal year ending October 31, 2003, the Audit and
Finance Committee has considered whether the non-audit services provided by Price-
waterhouseCoopers LLP are compatible with maintaining the mdependence of Price-
waterhouseCoopers LLP.
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Incorporation by Reference

The Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board on Executive Compensation and the
Audit and Finance Committee Report (including reference to the independence of the Audit and
Finance Committee members) above and the Stock Price Performance Graph on the following
page, are not deemed filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and shall not be
deemed incorporated by reference into any prior or future filings made by Agilent under the U.S.
Securities & Exchange Act of 1833, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, except tc the extent that Agilent specifically incorporates such information by reference.
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STOCK: PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH.

The graph below shows the three-year cumulative total stockholder return assuming the
mvestment of $100 (and the relnvestment of any dividends thereafter) on November 18, 1999, the
first trading day of Agilent’'s common stock, in each of Agilent’s common stock, the S&P 500
Index, and a peer group, based on the S&P Information Technology Index. ™ We have changed our
peer group this year because the peer'group we used in prior years was based on the S&P High
Technology Index that was discontinued on December 31, 2001. We've also included that peer
group through October 31, 2001. ® Agilent’s stock price performance shown in the followmg graph
is not indicative of future stock price performance.

Comparison of 3 Years (11/ 118/ 99 to 10/31/02) Cumulative Total Return* Among
Agilent Technologies, The S&P 500 Index, The S&P High Technology Peer Group zmd
The S&P ]Imfon'matnom Technology Peer Glrounp Composite
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) The current peer group is composed of companies that are members of the S&P Information
Technology Index and are in sectors related to Agilent’s businesses. They are: Electronic
Equipment and Instruments (excluding Agilent), Networking Equipment, Semiconductor
Equipment, Semiconductors, Telecommunications Equipment. These sectors are selected by
Agilent with the underlying companies chosen and maintained by S&P:

Electronic
Equipment :
And Networking =~  Semiconductor : Telecommunications
Instruments Equipment Equipment Semiconductors . Equipment
~ Jabil Circuit Avaya Inc. Applied Materials Advanced Micro Devices ADC Telecommunications
Millipore Cisco Systems KIL.A-Tencor Corp. Altera Corp. Andrew Corp.
Molex o : Novellus Systems - Analog Devices Ciena Corp.
PerkinElmer Inc. Teradyne Inc. Applied Micro Circuits Comverse Technology
Sanmina-SCI : . Broadcom Corporation Corning Inc.
Solectron Intel Corp. JDS Uniphase Corp.
Symbol Technologies ‘ Linear Technology Lucent Technologies
Tektronix Inc. LSI Logic Motorola Inc.
Thermo Electron .Maxim Integrated Products Qualcomm Inc.
Waters . Micron Technology Scientific-Atlanta
' National Semiconductor Tellabs Inc.

Nvidia

PMC-Sierra Inc.

. QLogic

Texas Instruments

Xilinx Inc.
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® The former peer group was composed of companies that were members of the S&P High
Technology Index (discontinued by S&P on 12/31/01 and replaced by the S&P Information
Technology Index) and were in sectors related to Agilent’s businesses. They were: Communica-
tions Equipment, Computers (Networking), Electronics (Instrumentation) (excluding Agilent),
Electronics (Semiconductor), and Equipment (Semiconductor). These sectors were selected by
Agilent with the underlying companies chosen and maintained by S&P:

Electronics
Communications Computers (Instrumentation), Electronics Equipment
Equipment (Networking) excluding Agilent (Semiconductors) (Semiconductor)
ADC Telecommunications Avaya Inc. Perkin-Elmer Inc. Advanced Micro Devices Applied Materials
Andrew Corp. Cisco Systems Tektronix Inc. Altera Corp. KL.A-Tencor Corp.
Ciena Corp. Analog Devices Novellus Systems

Comverse Technology
Corning Inc.

JDS Uniphase Corp.
Lucent Technologies
Motorola Inc.

Nortel Networks Corp.
Qualcomm Inc.
Scientific-Atlanta
Tellabs Ine.

Network Appliances
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Applied Micro Circuits Teradyne Inc.
Broadcom Corporation
Conexant Systems

Intel Corp.

Linear Technology

LSI Logic

Maxim Integrated Products
Micron Technology
National Semiconductor
PMC-Sierra Inc.

QLogic

Texas Instruments

Vitesse Semiconductor
Xilinx Inec.




What happens if additional pmposals
are presented at the annual meeting?

Other than the three proposals described
in this proxy statement, Agilent does not
expect any matters to be presented for a
vote at the annual meeting. If you grant a
proxy, the persons named as proxy hold-
ers, Edward W. Barnholt, Agilent’s Chair-
man of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer, and D. Craig Nordlund, .
Agilent’s Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary, will have the
discretion to vote your shares on any
additional matters properly presented for
a vote at the annual meeting. If for any
unforeseen reason any of Agilent’s nomi-
nees is not available as a candidate for
director, the persons named as proxy
holders will vote your proxy for such
other candidate or cand1dates as may be
nominated by the Board

What class of shares is enmled m be
voted?

Each share of Agilent’s common stock
outstanding as of the close of business on
January 6, 2003, the Record Date, 'is
entitled to one vote at the annual meet-
ing. On the Record Date, Agilent had
approximately 471,233,186 shares of com-
mon stock issued and outstanding '

What is the gquorum requzremem for the
annual meeling?

The quorum requirement for holding the
annual meeting and transacting business
is a majority of the outstanding shares
entitled to be voted. The shares may be
present in person or represented by proxy
at the annual meeting. Both abstentions
and broker non-votes are counted as
present for the purpose of determining
the presence of a quorum. Broker non-
votes, however, are not counted as shares
present and entitled to be voted with
respect to the matter on which the broker
has expressly not voted. Thus, broker
non-votes will not affect the outcome of
any of the matters being voted on at the
annual meeting. Generally, broker non-
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ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS AND INFORMATION REGARDING
THE ANNUAL MEETING AND STOCKHOLD]ER PROPCOSALS

-pocket expenses. In addition, Agilent may

votes oceur when sh,ares héld by a broker
for a beneficial owner are not voted with
respect to a particpilar proposal because
(1) the broker has not received voting
instructions from the beneficial owner
and (2) the broker lacks discretionary
voting power to vote such shares.

Who will count the vote?

A representative of ADP Investor Commu-
nication Services will tabulate the votes
and act as the inspector of election.

Is my vote confidential?

Proxy instr_uctidns, ballots and voting
tabulations that identify individual stock-
holders are handled.in a manner that
protects your voting privacy. Your vote
will- not be disclosed either within Agilent
or to third parties except (1) as necessary
to meet applicable legal requirements,

(2) to allow for the tabulation of votes
and certification of the vote, or (3) to
facilitate a successful-proxy solicitation by
the Board. Occasionally, stockholders pro-

- vide written comments. on their proxy

card, which are then forwarded to
Agilent’'s: management.

Who will bear the cost of sohcatmg voles
Jor' the amnuml meeting?

Agilent will pay the entire cost of prepar-
ing, assembling, printing, mailing and: dis-
tributing these proxy materials. In
addition to the mailing of these proxy
materials, the solicitation of proxies or
votes may be made in person, by tele-
phone or by electronic communication by
Agilent’s directors, officers, and employ-
ees, who will not receive any additional
compensation for such solicitation activi-
ties. Agilent has retained the services of
Georgeson Shareholder Communications
Inc. (“Georgeson™) to aid in the solicita- .
tion of proxies. Agilent estimates that it
will pay Georgeson a fee of $25,000 for its
services plus per call fees for any individ-
ual solicitations and reasonable out-of-

reimburse brokerage firms and.other per-




sons representing beneficial owners of
shares for their expenses in forwarding
solicitation material to such beneficial
oOWners.

May I propose aclions for consideration
at next year’s annual meeting of stock-
holders or nominate individuals to serve
as directors? ‘

You may submit proposals for considera-
tion at future annual stockholder meet-
ings, including director nominations.

Stockholder Proposals: In order for a
stockholder proposal to be considered for
inclusion in Agilent’s proxy statement for
next year’'s annual meeting, the written
proposal must be received by Agilent no
later than September 17, 2003 and shculd
contain such information as is required
under Agilent’s Bylaws. Such proposals
will need to comply with the U.S. Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission’s regula-
tions regarding the inclusion of -
stockholder proposals in Agilent-spon-
sored proxy materials. In order for a
stockholder proposal to be raised from
the floor during next year’s annual meet-
‘ing, written notice must be received by
Agilent no later than September 17, 2003
and should contain such information as
required under Agilent’s Bylaws. If we do
not receive notice of your proposal within
this time frame, our management will use
its discretionary authority to vote the
shares it represents as the Board may
recommend.

Nomination of Director Candidates:
Agilent’s Bylaws permit stockholders to
nominate directors at a stockholder meet-
ing. In order to make a directer nomina-
tion at an annual stockholder meeting, it
is necessary that you nctify Agilent not
fewer than 120 days before the first
anniversary of the date that the proxy

- statement for the preceding year’s annual
meeting was released to the stockholders.
Agilent’s 2003 Proxy Statement was re-
leased on January 15, 2003. Thus, in
order for any such nomination notice to
be timely for next year’s annual meeting,
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it must be received by Agilent not later
than September 17, 2003. In addition, the
notice must meet all other requirements
contained in Agilent’s Bylaws and include
any other information required pursuant
to Regulation 14A under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Copy of Bylaw Provisions: You may
contact the Agilent Corporate Secretary
at Agilent’s corporate headquarters for a
copy of the relevant Bylaw provisions
regarding the requirements for making
stockholder proposals and nominating di-
rector candidates.

How do I oblain a separate set of voting
materials if I share an address with
other stockholders?

To reduce expenses, in some cases, we are
delivering one set of voting materials to
certain stockholders who share an ad-
dress, unless otherwise requested by one
or more of the stockholders. A separate
proxy card is included in the voting
materials for each of these stockholders.
If you have only received one set, you may
request separate copies of the voting
materials at no additional cost to you by
calling us at (650) 7562-5522 or by writing
to us at Agilent Technologies, Inc.,

395 Page Mill Road, Palo Alto, California
94306, Attn: Shareholder Records. You
may also contact us by calling or writing
if you would like to receive separate
voting materials for future annual
meetings.

If I share an address with other stock-
holders of Agilent, how can we get only
one set of voling materials for future
meetings?

You may request that we send you and
the other stockholders who share an
address with you only one set of voting
materials by calling us at (650) 752-5522
or by writing to us at: Agilent Technolo-
gies, Inc., 395 Page Mill Road, Palo Alto,
California 94306, Attn: Shareholder
Records.




YOU MAY RECEIVE A COPY OF AGILENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2002 WITHOUT CHARGE BY SENDING A WRITTEN REQUEST TO
AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.,: 395 PAGE MILL ROAD, PALO ALTO, CALIFORNIA 94306, -ATTN:
INVESTOR RELATIONS.

By Order of the Board

D %fé@‘%@;’

D. CraiG NORDLUND :

Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Dated: January 9, 2003
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APPENDIX A

Text of Amendment to Agilent Technologies, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan

The following is the complete text of the amendment to Section 8(a)(iv) of the 1999 Stock
Plan. The language proposed by this amendment is indicated in italics.

AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO THE
AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 1999 STOCK PLAN
(Restatement, effective May 21, 2002)

AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (the “Company’’), having adopted the Agilent Technologies,
Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (the “Plan’’), and having amended and restated the Plan most recently as of
May 21, 2002, hereby amends Section 9(a)(iv) of the restated Plan, effective as of [DATE], 2003, to
read as follows:

Section 9. Option Exercise Price and Consideration.

(a) Exercise Price

(iv) Other than in connection with a change in the Company’s capitalization (as described in
Section 15(a)), Options may not be repriced, replaced, regranted through cancellation or modified
without shareholder approval if the effect of such repricing, replacement, regrant or modification
would be to reduce the exercise price of such Incentive Stock Options or Nonstatutory Stock
Options; provided, however, that the Company may effect a one-time exchange offer to be
commenced in the discretion of the Commitiee no sooner than March 4, 2003 pursuant to which
Employees granted Options pursuant to this Plan with an exercise price greater than $25.00
per share shall be given the one-time opportunity to elect to cancel such unexercised Options
(the “Cancelled Options”), in exchange for the grant of replacement Options to purchase Shares
of Common Stock in accordance with the exchange ratios set out below for each Share
underlying the Cancelled Options (the “Replacement Options”).

Exchange Ratio

Exercise Price Range [Cancelled to New]
$25.01 10 $30.09 ... 15to 1
840.00 t0 860.00 . ... 20to 1
$70.00 t0 $89.99 .. ... 25t0 1
$90.00 and above .. ... ... 40to 1

Replacement Options shall be granted no less than six months and one day following the
cancellation of the Cancelled Options, at a per Share exercise price equal to 100% of the Fair
Market Value per Share on the Grant Date, and shall be granted to those who elected to
participate, subject to continued employment with the Company. Except in certain countries
outside of the United States as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, each
Replacement Option shall have a term equal to the remaining term of the Cancelled Option.
Except in certain countries outside of the United States as determined by the Commaittee in its
sole discretion, each Replacement Option shall be scheduled to vest as to 50% of the Shares
subject thereto on the first anniversary of the Grant Date and as to the remaining 50% of the
Shares subject thereto on the second anniversary of the Grant Date, subject to continued
employment with the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company’s Directors, Named
Executive Qfficers specified in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2003 Annual Meeting,
other Officers and non-U.S. Participants as determined in the sole discretion of the Committee
shall not participate in this exchange offer, and this exchange offer will be structured so that
the Company avoids incurring compensation charges for financial accounting purposes.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the Company, by its duly authorized‘ofﬁcer, has executed this
Amendment No. 1 to the restated Plan on the date indicated below.

Agilent Technologies, Inc.

By
Title:
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APPENDIX B
AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

1. MEMBERSHIP

A. The Audit and Finance Committee (the “Committee’’) of the Board of Directors (the
“Board’) shall consist of at least three directors whose qualifications include financial literacy,
independence and accounting or related financial expertise as determined under the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act (the “Act”) and applicable rules of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) and the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). At least one member of the Committee must be a
‘“financial expert” under the requirements of the Act. No member of the Committee may serve on
the audit committee of more than three public companies, including the Company, unless the
Board of Directors determines that such simultaneous service will not impair the ability of such
member to effectively serve on the committee,

B. No member of the Committee shall receive compensation other than director’s fees for
service as a director of the Company, including reasonable compensation for serving on the
Committee and regular benefits that other directors receive.

II. PURPOSE

A. The Committee serves as the representative of the Board for the general oversight of
Company affairs relating to:

1. The quality and integrity of the Company’s financial statements,

2. The Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

3. The independent auditor’'s qualifications and independence, and

4., The performance of the Company’s internal audit function and independent auditors.

B. Through its activities, the Committee facilitates open communication among directors,
independent auditors, the internal auditor and management by meeting in private session
regularly with these parties.

C. The Committee also provides coversight regarding significant financial matters, inciuding
borrowings, currency exposures, dividends, share issuance and repurchases, and the financial
aspects of the Company’s benefit plans.

I[II. MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES
A. The Committee shall convene at least four times each year.

B. It shall endeavor to determine that auditing procedures and controls are adequate to
safeguard Company assets and to assess compliance with Company policies and legal
requirements.

C. The Committee shall be given full access to the Company’s internal auditors, Board
Chairman, Company executives and independent auditors. When any audit has been prepared by a
registered public accounting firm for the Company, the Committee shall timely receive a report
from such firm on (1) all critical accounting policies and practices; (2) all alternative treatments
of financial information within generally accepted accounting principles that have been discussed
with management officials of the issuer, ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures
and treatments, and the treatment preferred by the registered public accounting firm; and
(3) other material written communications between the registered public accounting firm and
company management, such as any management letter or schedule of unadjusted differences.
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IV. RESPONSIBILITIES
A. The Committee shall:

1. Have the sole authority to select compensate oversee “evaluate and, where
approprlate replace the independent auditor.

2. Annually review and approve the proposed scope of each ﬁscal year’'s 1nterna1 and
outside audit at the begmmng of each new fiscal year.

3. Inform each reglstered pubhc accounting firm performlng work for the Company
that such firm shall report directly to ‘the Commlttee

4. Oversee the work -of any registered public accounting firm' employed by the
Company, including the resolution of any disagreement between management and the auditor
regarding financial reporting, for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit opinion or
related work. ' S ' ’

5. Review and approve in advance any audit and non-audit services.and fees to be
prov1ded by the Company s independent auditor, other than pI‘Ohlblted non-auditing
services” and minor audlt services, each .as specified in the Act. The Committee has the sole
authority to make these approvals, although such approval may be delegated to any
committee member so long as the. approval is presented to the full Committee at a later time.

6. At, or shortly after the end of each fiscal year, review with the independent auditor,
the.internal .auditor and Company management, the audited financial statements and related
opinion and costs of the audit of that year.

7. Review funding and investment policiés, implementation-of funding policies and
investment performance of the, Company’s benefit plans.

8. Provide any recommendation, certifications and reports that may be required by the
NYSE or the SEC including the report of the Committee that must 'be mcluded in the
Company’s annual proxy statement

9. Review and discuss the annual audited financial statements and quarterly financial
statements with management and the independent auditor.

10. Establish and oversee procedures for (a) the receipt, retention, and treatment of
complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or
auditing matters; and (b) the confidential anonymous submission by employees of the
Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

11. Have the authority to engage independent counsel and other advisers as it
determines necessary to carry out its duties. The Company shall provide for appropriate
funding, as determined by the Committee, in its capacity as a committee of the Board of
Directors, for payment of compensation to any advisers employed by the Committee and to
the independent auditor employed by the Company for the purpose of rendering or issuing an
audit report.

12. Ensure the rotation of the lead audit partner at least every five years.

13. Confirm with any independent auditor retained to provide audit services for any -
fiscal year that the lead (or coordinating) audit partner (having primary responsibility for the
audit), or the audit partner responsible for reviewing the audit, has not performed audit
services for the Company in each of the five previous fiscal years of the Company and that
the firm meets all legal and professional requirements for independence.

14. Discuss with management and the independent auditor the Company’s policies with
respect to risk assessment and risk management.
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15. Meet separately, periodically, with management, with internal auditors and with the
independent auditor.

16. In consultation with the independent auditor, management and the internal
auditors, review the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting process.

17. Review periodically the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives, as well as off-
balance sheet structures, on the financial statements of the Company. '

18. Review with the independent auditor (2) any audit problems or other difficulties
encountered by the auditor in the course of the audit process, including any restrictions on
the scope of the independent auditor’s activities or on access to requested information, and
any significant disagreements with management and (b) management’s responses to such
matters.

19. Review and discuss with the independent auditor the responsibility, budget and
staffing of the Company’s internal audit function.

20. Set clear hiring policies for employees or former employees of the independent
auditor. At a minimum, these policies should provide that any registered public accounting
firm may not provide audit services to the Company if the CEO, Controller, CFO, Chief
Accounting Officer or any person serving in an equivalent capacity for the Company was
employed by the registered public accounting firm and participated in the audit of the
Company within one year of the initiation of the current audit.

21. Report regularly to the Board of Directors. Such report to the Board of Directors
may take the form of an oral report by the Chairman or any other member of the Committee
designated by the Committee to make such report.

22. Perform a review and evaluation, at least annually, of the performance of the
Committee. In addition, the Committee shall review and reassess, at least annually, the
adequacy of this Charter and recommend to the Board of Directors any improvements to this
Charter that the Committee considers necessary or valuable. The Committee shall conduct
such evaluations and reviews in such manner as it deems appropriate.
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To Our Shareholders

The persistent downturn in the telecommumcatlons and electronics markets was the maJor
factor in Agilent’s 2002 results. We are obviously not .pleased to report a decline in orders and
revenue and a loss for the year. However, we did make substantlal progress in returning the
company to proﬁtablllty as we moved through 2002 achlev1ng break-even on an earnings-before-
gOOClWlll (EBG) basis in the fourth quarter

‘ Th1s year we also. strengthened Agilent for long-term, success in two Ways We made
investments in R&D that are driving product and technology breakthroughs, and we became much
more competitive by transforming many aspects of our operations. None of these achievements
would have been possible without Agilent’s people, who made superb contributions in 2002 under
extremely trying cond1t10ns In this letter I'll describe what we are doing to return to sustained
profitability, the actiohs we're taklng to bulld the company for the long term, and the outlook for
fiscal 2003.

Annual
Report

Qur Top Prﬁority' Restoring Proﬁtability

At the start of the year we expected a slow but gradual improvement in the telecom and
semiconductor markets in which demand had fallen so sharply in 2001. During the first two
quarters of 2002 we did see a slight improvement in the semiconductor market, and our overall
orders and revenue increased. But conditions weakened again in the middle of 2002 and the
outlook for 2003 declined. It was’ clear that we had to size the company for profitability at a much
lower level of business. '

In August 2002 we announced reductions in the number of Agilent employees that went
beyond our previously announced plans to reduce the workforce by 8,000 people. The latest round
of reductions will lower our workforce by about another 2,500 people, with many of these people
scheduled to leave the company by the end of the first quarter of 2003.

These workforce reductions have been and remain very difficult for all of us. But they are a
painful necessity in light of the business climate. By the end of 2002, we had completed the 8,000-
person workforce reduct10n and, had lowered our total costs, on an annual ba51s by about
$1.2 billion.

These workforce reductions, combined with other efforts to streamline our cost structure and
reduce discretionary spending, enabled us to lower our total costs and expenses by 21 percent in
2002, on an EBG basis, compared with 2001. Our inventory reductions, along with capital
spending that was about $580 million lower this year than in fiscal 2001, were the key factors in
our significant improvement in asset management.

Another key to restoring profitability is to deliver a steady stream of innovative new products.
In 2002 we spent $1.1 bil,lion on research and development (R&D), on an EBG basis, compared
with, $1.3 billion in 2001. We maintained our investments in high-priority R&D efforts to help our
customers pursue new opportun1t1es and get the most out of their current technology investments.

‘New products drove market share. gains in 2002 in communications test semiconductor test;
semiconductor solutions for PCs and cellular phones; and life sciences and chemical analysis. In
the fourth quarter of 2002, we believe we outgrew our markets by about $125 million in revenue
compared with the fourth quarter of 2001. We plan to spend approximately $1 billion on R&D in
fiscal 2003 in order to leverage our market share gains and to take full advantage of any recovery
in our markets.

New products were also critical to the widespread customer recognition we received this year.
We won 14 industry and customer awards, 1nclud1ng recognition from Cisco Systems Celestica,
Solectron, Brocade and Logitech. -




In the fourth quarter of 2001, Agilent reported a loss, on an EBG basis, of $275 million. In Q2
of 2002, our EBG loss was $112 million, and in Q4 of this year we lost $2 million. We're
encouraged by this progress, and we are determined to return to profitability in 20603.

Major Progress in Transforming How We Operate

Since Agilent became an independent company in November 1999, we have worked hard to
transform our operations. These efforts take many forms but have a common goal: to make Agilent
even more competitive by improving our speed, flexibility and cost-effectiveness. In 2002 we made
excellent strides in this effort.

In June 2002 we launched the first phase of our new enterprise resource planning
(ERP) system. This is a highly complex, ambitious program that will reduce more than 2,000
legacy information systems and applications to just a handful of best-in-class integrated
information systems. The benefits from this work will be substantial. We will generate real-time
information that our people and customers need. We will be able to manage assets more efficiently
and share information much more readily than we can now. In short, the ERP system will enable
us to function much more effectively as a single company.

Startup issues after the ERP launch made it difficult for us to meet customer expectations
and had a significant impact on our third-quarter financial results. Our people performed
heroically to resolve these issues and to stabilize the system in our fourth quarter.

We will continue to roll out the ERP system through fiscal 2003, and we expect to realize
substantial savings from the implementation beginning in the second half of fiscal 2003. We will
also apply what we have learned to the implementation of our new customer relationship
management (CRM) system. This rollout is planned for the first quarter of 2003.

Progress in operations during 2002 was not limited to new information systems. We reduced
the worldwide space we use by 1.6 million square feet, which saved about $90 million. We
improved our on-time delivery rate and reduced the time between receipt of an order and delivery
to the customer.

We will work to build on these accomplishinents in our operations through 2003. Qur
progress in this area complements and supports our work to maintain product and technology
leadership.

A Resilient Agilent Culture

Workforce reductions, navigating the downturn and the launch of our ERP system posed
daunting challenges to our people and culture in 2002. I'm extremely proud of how our employees
responded. They worked tirelessly to create a large number of outstanding new products and to
deliver the operational improvements we achieved, while also actively supporting our citizenship-
related efforts. During 2002, we were proud to be ranked 31st on Fortune magazine's annual
survey of “Best Places to Work,” an improvement from our ranking of 46th the previous year. The
company was also named to comparable lists in other countries, including Korea (#3), Australia
(#5), India (#6) and Singapore (#1). In our latest employee survey, 85 percent of our employees
said they would recommend Agilent as a great place a work — a powerful testament to the culture
we are building together.

Senior Management Changes

In early 2002, Adrian Dillon became executive vice president and chief financial officer after
Bob Walker decided to leave the company. Adrian is making a major contribution to the evolution
of our financial metrics and reporting. During the year we also named Bill Sullivan our chief
operating officer, after Alain Couder left Agilent to pursue other opportunities. Bill brings a
superb track record and broad skills to the urgent task of our operational transformation. In
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November 2002 Jerry Grinstein, Agilent’s chairman of the board, announced his plans to retire
effective after the 2003 Annual Meeting. Until that time, Jerry will serve as our lead director and
David Lawrence will succeed him following .the meeting: Jerry was instrumental in helping us
'launch ,Agilent as an independent company, and.I'm very appreeiative of all he has contributed.

R

Busmess @mﬂ:]ioo]k ‘

- Our top pr10r1ty 1s to return to proﬁtablhty as qu1ckly as poss1ble and we beheve we can ‘
achieve modest profitability in 2003.- The overall outlook for 2003 is highly dependent on the pace
of recovery in our markets. We believe we can achieve a revenue increase of 5 to 10 percent,
based primarily on our strong new- -product introductions that will enable us to build on our
market share gains and enter new. markets We W111 continue our v1g1lance on costs and expenses,
and we will move ahead aggress1vely on, the operatlonal 1mprovements ‘that have begun to yleld
very promising results.

During 2003 we will continue to strive for the fight balance between the short-term challenges
of a difficult en\nronment and the long—term goals we are pursuing. The last two years have not
diminished, our belief in Agllent S potenmal or in the opportunities we are addressing. We have the
people, the products and the. customer relatlonshlps that success demands, and we are committed
to bulldmg on these strengths durmg 2003. :

Ned Barnholt
Chairman, President and Chief Executlve Ofﬁcer

'Agilent’s EBG amounts exclude from earnings amortization of goodwill and other intangibles,
acquisition and divestiture related items, and other one-time and non-recurring items such as
restructuring.
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Agilent at a Glance

Agilent delivers innovative technologies, solutions and services to a wide range of customers
in communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis. The breadth and depth of our
expertise enable us to offer solutions across our customers’ entire product life cycle from research
and development to manufacturing to installation and management. With insight gained from this
unique and comprehensive perspective, we can help our customers get the best products and
services to market quickly and profitably.

Business Group 2002 Net Revenue Description
Test and Our test and measurement business provides standard
Measurement $3.3 billion and custcmized solutions that are used in the design,

development, manufacture, installation, deployment and
operation of electronic equipment and systems and
communications networks and services. These solutions
include test and measurement instruments and systems;
automated test equipment; communications network
monitoring, management and optimization tools; and
software design tools and associated services.

Semiconductor $ 1 6 Our sgmicondugtor products business is a leading
Products o billion supplier of semiconductor components, modules and

assemblies for high-performance communications
systems. We design, develop and manufacture products
for the networking and personal systems markets.

Life Sciences & Our life sciences and chemical analysis business
$ 1. 1 billion provides application-focused solutions that include

Cheml?al instruments, software, consumables and services that

Analysis enable customers to identify, quantify and analyze the
physical and biological properties of substances and
products.

Agilent Labs Agilent Laboratories is Agilent Technologies’ central research organization.

Agilent Labs engages in two types of research: 1) applied research that
leads to technology that can be transferred to Agilent’s existing businesses
in communications, life sciences and electronics, and 2) research that
creates new businesses that are outside of Agilent’s current markets but
within Agilent’s fields of interest. Agilent Labs also provides technology
integration across the company.




More than half of Agilent’s revenue is generated from outside of the United States. With
customers in more than 110 countries, our global presence offers a distinct competitive advantage.
Agilent’s manufacturing, R&D, sales-and support capabilities around the world give our customers
the flexibility they need in today’s competltlve enwronment

Agilent prowdes technologles solutions and semces to help our customers accelerate vital
progress'in their industries ... to make dreams ]reall

Key Products

Markets and Cuétomers

We design, develop and manufacture test and

design products that range from single-unit
electronic measurement devices to large scale
integrated-circuit test solutions. We provide
communications equipment test solutions;
installation, maintenance -and operations
support solutions for communications service
providers; general purpose test solutions;

semiconductor automated test equipment; and

high-frequency electronic design tools. .-

The markets for our test and measurement
products comprise three major customer
groups: communications test, general purpose
test and semiconductor test. We sell our test
and measurement solutions to customers
across a broad array of industries. Our
customers include Agilent Financial Services,
ASE Test, ASML, Intel Corporation, Lockheed
Martin Corporation, Motorola, Nokia,
Samsung, SBC Communications and United
States Department of Defense.

Our major product areas include networking
and personal systems. Within networking, we
provide fiber optics products and high speed
digital integrated circuits. In personal
systems, our products are targeted for use in
applications such as mobile phones, printers,
PC peripherals and consumer electronics.
Products are radio frequency and microwave
communications devices, including FBAR
duplexers and E-pHEMT power amplifiers;
infrared emitters, detectors and transceiver
modules; printing application specific
integrated circuits (ASICs); optical image
sensors and processors, optical position
sensors, light emitting diodes (LEDs) and
optocouplers.

We sell to a broad array of customers in
networking and personal systems. We sell to
original equipment manufacturers directly,
including Hewlett-Packard, Cisco Systems,
Huawei, Logitech, Nortel Networks' ™, and
Samsung. We also sell to contract
manufacturers, including Celestica,
Flextronics, Jabil Circuit, Sanmina-SCI
Systems and Solectron.

Our seven key product categories include .
microarrays, microfluidics, gas
chromatography, liquid chromatography, mass
spectrometry, software and informatics, and
related consumables and services.

We sell our products and services to a broad
array of customers in the life sciences and
pharmaceutical as well as chemical analysis
markets. Life sciences customers include
Merck, GlaxoSmithKline, Pfizer, Aventis, and
Pharmacia. Chemical analysis customers
include Boehringer Ingelheim, Dow Chemical,
BASF AG, E.I. du Pont de Nemours and
Company and Akzo Nobel.

Agilent Sales
and Support

Agilent sells and distributes its products and services through its
direct sales force as well as a number of alternate channels, including
distributors, resellers, telephone and electronic commerce. Our

businesses provide a range of services and customer support,
including systems integration, technical and product support,
consulting and knowledge services.

Nortel Networks is a trademark of the Nortel Networks Corporation.
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(part time), Microsoft
Corporation

Walter B. Hewlett
Independent Researcher
and Director, Center for
Computer Assisted
Research in the
Humanities and Public
Policy Institute of
California

Heidi Kunz

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial
Officer, Gap, Inc.

David M. Lawrence, M.D.
Chairman Emeritus

of Kaiser Foundation
Health Plan, Inc.

and Kaiser Foundation
Hospitals

A. Barry Rand
Chairman Emeritus,
Former Chairman and
CEQ, Avis Group
Holdings, Inc.

Board
Committees

Audit and Finance
Committee

Heidi Kunz, Chairperson
Robert J. Herbold
Walter B. Hewlett

Compensation Committee
David M. Lawrence, M.D.,
Chairperson

James G. Cullen

Gerald Grinstein*

A. Barry Rand

Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee
Gerald Grinstein,
Chairperson”

James G. Cullen
Robert J. Herbold
Walter B. Hewlett
Heidi Kunz

David M. Lawrence

A. Barry Rand

Executive Committee
Gerald Grinstein,
Chairperson*
Edward W. (Ned)
Barnholt

All listed officers, except William R. Hahn, Didier Hirsch and Marie Oh Huber, are executive officers of Agilent under
Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

* Effective November 20, 2002, in anticipation of Gerald Grinstein’s planned retirement at the 2003 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, Edward W. Barnholt succeeded Mr. Grinstein as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Grinstein
was appointed Lead Director. After Mr. Grinstein retires he will be succeeded by Dr. David M. Lawrence.
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Agilent’s annual meeting of shareholders will take place on Tuesday; March 4, 2003 at

10:00 a.m. at the South San Francisco Conference Center, 255 South Airport Boulevard, South San

Francisco, Cahforma

" Investor Information

Please see the full and audited financial statements and footnotes contained in this
booklet. To receive paper copies of the annual report, proxy statement, Form 10-K, earnings
announcements and other financial information, people in the United States and Canada should
call our toll-free number: (877) 942-4200. People calling from outside the United States and
Canada should dial: (402) 573-9919. You can also access financial information at Agilent’'s Investor
Relations Web site. The.address is http://www.investor.agilent.com.

Corporate Governance, Busmess Conduct and Ethics

Agilent’s corporate governance guidelines, the charters of our Audit and Finance
Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating /Corporate Governance Committee as well
as Agilent’s Standards of Business Conduct are available on the Investor Relations Web site at
http://www.investor.agilent.com. You can also request a hard copy of any of this information by - -
contacting (877) 942-4200 (in the Umted States or Canada) or (402) 6§73-9919 (outs1de the United
States and Canada).

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Please contact our transfer‘agént? at the phone number or address listed below, with any
questions about stock certificates, transfer of ownership or other matters pertaining to your stock
account.-

" Computershare Investor Services
"P.O. Box A3504

Chicago, IL 60690-3504

United States

If calling from anywhefe within the United States and Canada: (877) 309-9856.
If calling from outside the United States (312) 588-4672.

The e-mail address for general shareholder inquiries for Computershare is:
web.queries@computershare.com.

Investor Contact

Agilent Technologies, Inc.
Investor Relations Department
395 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, CA 94306

You can also contact the Investor Relations Department via e-mail at the Agilent Investor
Relations Web site at http://www.investor.agilent.com. Click on “Email Notification” to send a
message. ' ‘ '

Agilent Headqumteré

Agilent Technologies, Inc.
395 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, CA 94306
Phone: (650) 7562-5000
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Common Stock

Agilent is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and our ticker symbol is “A.” There were
approximately 71,353 registered shareholders as of December 2, 2002. Since we plan to retain
future earnings to maximize the growth and development of our company, we do not anticipate
paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We do not currently offer direct purchase of
Agilent shares from the company or a dividend re-investment plan (DRIP).

The following tables summarize the high and low stock prices by period for Agilent’s
common stock.

Fiscal 2001 High Low

First Quarter (ended January 31, 2001) $68.00 $38.06
Second Quarter (ended April 30, 2001) $55.00 $25.00
Third Quarter (ended July 31, 2001) $41.18 $26.20
Fourth Quarter (ended October 31, 2001) $32.70 $18.00
Fiscal 2002 ' , High Low

First Quarter (ended January 31, 2002) $33.30 $22.06
Second Quarter (ended April 30, 2002) $38.00 $24.83
Third Quarter (ended July 31, 2002) $31.25 $16.00
Fourth Quarter (ended October 31, 2002) $18.88 $10.50

This Annual Report, including the letter titled “To Our Shareholders,” contains forward-
looking statements (including, without limitation, information regarding projected revenue,
profitability, earnings, cash flow, R&D spending, savings from restructuring programs, breakeven
cost structure, and overall financial results; the status, impact and benefits of the ERP and CRM
systems implementations; and the outlook for the general economy and for the markets that
Agilent serves) that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause results of Agilent to differ
materially from management’s current expectations. These risks include the ability to execute
successfully through the current economic downturn and an upturn, the ability to meet and
achieve the benefits of our cost reduction goals and otherwise successfully adapt our cost
structures to changes in business conditions, competitive and pricing pressures, the successful
implementation of Agilent’s ERP and CRM systems and the ability to realize the benefits from
these and other IT systems investments, the ability to improve asset performance to adapt to the
current economic slowdown and other changes in demand, the ability to successfully introduce
new products, and other risks detailed in Agilent’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Oct. 31, 2002 as well
as any subsequent filings made after December 20, 2002.

The materials contained in this annual report are as of January 9, 2003, unless otherwise
noted. The content of this annual report contains time-sensitive information that is accurate only
as of this date. If any portion of this annual report is redistributed at a later date, Agilent will not
be reviewing or updating the material in this presentation.

This Annual Report contains the full, audited financials and notes. thereto contained in the
following section of this booklet with the tab “Annual Report Financials”. Within the Annual
Report Financials, please refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and ‘“‘Risks, Uncertainties and Other Factors That May Affect Future
Results” for more complete information on each of our businesses and Agilent as a whole.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

" (Unaudited)
Years Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Consolidated Statement of Operations
. Data (1, 2, 3, 4): -
CNELTeVENUE ... .. . $ 6,010 $8,396 $9,361 $6,830 - $6,612
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before
DS . oot $(1,547) $ (477) $1,018 $ 463 $ 191
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations. ...... $(1,022) $(406) $ 672 $ 306 $ 126
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of
taxes........... O — 6 85 206 131
(Loss) gain from:the sale of discontinued
operations, netof taxes . ...................... (10) 646 — - —
(Loss) earnings before cumulative effect of
accounting changes................ .. ... .. .. (1,032) 246 757 512 ° 257
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net of
taxes. ........ ..o P - (25) - - -
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net of . .
taxes......... ... i, e Lo - 47) — — —
Net (loss) earnings . ...............covviiiven... $(1,082) $ 174 §. 757 § 512 § 257
Net (loss) earnings pér share — Basic: o '
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations, .... $ (2.20) $(0.89) $ 149 §$ 081 § 0.33
Earnings from discontinued operations ........ - 10.01 0.19. 0.54 0.35
(Loss) gain from the sale of discontinued
Qperations, net. .o L (0.02) 1.41 — - —
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net — (0.05) - - —
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net.. ... - (0.10) — — —
Net (loss) earnings ............. e $ (222 $038 $ 168 $ 135 $ 0.68
Net (loss) earnings per share.— Diluted: ' ) .
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations. . . .. $ (220) $(089 $ 148 $ 081 $ 033
Earnings from discontinued operations .......: - 0.01 0.18 0.54 0.35
(Loss) gain from the sale of discontinued N B
operations, net.. ................ .o (0.02) 1.41 - - —
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net L= (0.05) - - —
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net.. ... S = (0.10) — — —
Net (loss) earnings ....................cooon... $ (222) $038 $166 $ 135 $ 068
Weighted average shares used in computing basic
net (loss) earnings per share .................. 465 458 449 380 380
Weighted average shares used in computing
diluted net (loss) earnings per share........... 465 458 455 380 380
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October 31,
2002 2001 2000 1898 1998
(in millions)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (1, 4):

Working capital .. ...................iiiiiiii $2,699 $2797 $2476 $1275 $1,010
Total assets. ........ ... .. .. ... . $ 8,203 $7986 $8,330 $5,364 $4,922
Senior Convertible Debentures .................. $1,150 $§ - $ - - 3 -
Stockholders’ equity . ................ .. ... ..... $ 4,627 $5659 $5,265 $3,382  $3,022

(1) Consolidated financial data and notes for all pericds present our healthcare solutions business
as a discontinued operation. See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations” to the consolidated
financial statements.

(2) Loss from continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2002 includes a pre-tax
restructuring charge of $474 million including a pre-tax asset impairment charge of
$163 million. Loss from continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2001 includes a
pre-tax gain of $26¢ million relating to the sale of surplus land in California, a pre-tax
restructuring charge of $154 million primarily relating to severance expenses and a pre-tax
asset impairment charge of $74 million for our customer support software. Earnings from
continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 1999 includes a pre-tax asset
impairment charge of $51 million. Earnings from continuing operations for the year ended
October 31, 1998 includes a pre-tax restructuring charge of $155 million. See Note 13,
“Restructuring and Asset Impairment,” to the consolidated financial statements.

(3) Consolidated statement of operations data for the year ended October 31, 2001 and 2000
includes the impact of the sale of our portfolio of lease assets to CIT Group Inc. (formerly
known as Tyco Capital Corporation). In 2001, net proceeds from this sales transaction were
$287 million and we recognized $254 million in net revenue from continuing operations and
$131 million in cost of products from continuing operations. In 2000, net proceeds from this
sales transaction were $234 million and we recognized $197 million in net revenue from
continuing operations and $83 million in cost of products from continuing operations. See
Note 5, “Acquisitions and Sale of Assets’, to the consolidated financial statements.

(4) The historical financial data from 1998 through 1999 was carved out from the historical
financial information of Hewlett-Packard using the historical results of operations and
historical bases of the assets and liabilities of the Hewlett-Packard businesses that comprise
our company. We began accumulating retained earnings on November 1, 1999. Therefore, the
historical financial data presented for 1998 and 1999 is not indicative of our future
performance and does not reflect what our consolidated financial position and results of
operations would have been had we operated as a separate, stand-alone entity during those
periods.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSI[@N AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The following discussion
contains forward-looking statements including, without limitation, statements regarding our
liquidity position and our expected overall growth, the material impact from the adoption of new
accounting pronouncements, our financial results, the impact of the enterprise resource planning
implementation, savings from restructuring programs, the length of the economic downturn,
trends and growth in the markets we sell into, the anticipated completion of transactions and
contracts, new product introductions and changes to our manufacturing process that involve risks
and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by
these forward-looking statements due to certain factors, including those discussed below in
“Factors That May Affect Future Results’” and elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview
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Agﬂént Technologies, Inc. (‘“‘we”, “Agilent” or the “Company”), incorporated in Delaware in
May 1999, is a global diversified technology organization that provides enabling solutions to
technology markets within the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis
industries. Prior to our initial public offering of 16 percent of our stock in November 1999, we
were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hewlett-Packard Company (“Hewlett-Packard’”). Hewlett-
Packard distributed the remaining 84’ percent of our stock to its stockholders on June 2, 2000 in
the form of a stock dividend.

Our fiscal year end is October 31. Unless otherwise stated, all years and dates refer to our
fiscal year.

Reclassifications

Amounts in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended October 31,
2001 and October 31, 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in 2002.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. requires that management make a number of assumptions and estimates that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in our consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes. Management bases its estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions that may impact the
Company in the future, actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Our critical accounting policies are those that affect our financial statements materially and
involve a significant level of judgment by management. Those policies are revenue recognition,
restructuring and impairment charges, inventory valuation, retirement and post retirement plan

. assumptions, valuation of long-lived assets and accounting for income taxes.

Revenue is recognized on a sale to a customer only after the product or service has been
delivered or installed and accepted by the customer. We record reductions to revenue for
estimated product returns and distributor price protection, when appropriate. We monitor the
creditworthiness of our customers and do not record revenue on sales if collection is not
reasonably assured. Most of these conditions are subjective and actual results could vary from the
estimated outcome, requiring future adjustments to revenue.

We accrue for restructuring costs when management approves and commits to a firm plan.
The three main components of our restructuring plans are related to workforce reductions, the
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consolidation of excess facilities and asset impairments, primarily property, plant and equipment.
Workforce-related charges are accrued based on an estimate of expected benefits that will be paid
out to the employees. Plans to consolidate excess facilities result in charges for lease termination
fees and losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements, net of estimated future sublease income.
Asset impairment charges are based on an estimate of the amounts and timing of future cash
flows related to the expected sales or disposals of buildings and equipment that we currently use
in manufacturing, research and development and support. These estimates were derived using the
guidance of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS’) No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of’ (“SFAS No. 1217),
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 100, “Restructuring and Impairment Charges” (‘“SAB 100”), and
Emerging Issues Task Force No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructur-
ing)” (“EITF No. 94-3"). If the amounts and timing are significantly different from what we have
estimated, the actual amount could be materially different, either higher or lower, than what we
have recorded. However, as of October 31, 2002 and the date of this filing, we believe our
estimates remain materially correct. Beginning January 1, 2003, we will follow new guidance
provided in SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”
(““SFAS No. 146™). See “New Accounting Pronouncements” below.

We continually assess the valuation of cur inventory and periodically write down the value for
estimated excess and obsolete inventory based upon assumptions about future demand and market
conditions. Such estimates are difficult to make under current volatile economic conditions. Reviews
for excess inventory are done on a quarterly basis and required reserve levels are calculated with
reference to our projected ultimate usage of that inventory. In order to determine the ultimate
usage, we take into account recent sales forecasts, projected obsolescence and our current inventory
levels. The excess balance determined by this analysis becomes the basis for our excess inventory
charge. Our marketing department plays a key role in our excess inventory review process by
providing updated sales forecasts, managing product rollovers and working with manufacturing to
maximize recovery of excess inventory. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, additional write-downs may be required. If actual market conditions are
more favorable than anticipated, inventory previously written down may be sold, resulting in lower
cost of sales and higher earnings from operations than expected in that period.

Retirement and post retirement benefit plans are a significant cost of doing business and yet
represent cbligations that will be ultimately settled far in the future and therefore are subject to
estimates. Pension accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit costs over the
employee’s approximate service period based on the terms of the plans and the investment and
funding decisions made by us. We are required to make assumptions regarding such variables as
the expected long-term rate of return on assets and the discount rate applied to determine service
cost and interest cost to arrive at pension income or expense for the year. As of Octeber 31, 2002,
the expected long-term rate of return in the U.S. was 8.75 percent, and ranged from 5.5 to
7.75 percent for our plans outside the U.S. We have analyzed the rates of return on assets used
and determined that these rates are reasonable based on the plans’ historical performance
relative to the overall markets in the countries where the plans are effective. Management will
continue to assess the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption for each plan
based on relevant market conditions as prescribed by accounting principles generally accepted in
the U.S. and will make adjustments to the assumptions as appropriate. A one percent decrease in
the estimated return on plan assets would result in increased pension expense of $10 million for
2003 in the U.S. and $7 million for 2003 for all plans outside the U.S. Pension expense is aliocated
to cost of sales, research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of operations. See Note 15, “Retirement Plans and Post Retirement
Benefits” to the consolidated financial statements for the full list of assumptions.




We have assessed the recoverability of long:lived assets, including intangible as‘sets,v by
determining whether the carrying value of such assets will be recovered through undiscounted
future cash flows according to the guidance of SFAS No. 121 1If the total of future cash flows is
less than the carrying amount of the asgets, we recognize ah 1mpalrment loss based on the excess
of the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets. Estiinates of the future cash flows
associated with the assets are crmcal to these assessments. Changes in these estimates based on
changed e¢onomic conditions could result in'material impairment charges in future periods.
Beginning November 1, 2002, we will use the new gu1dance prov1ded in SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill’
and Other Intangible Assets” (**SFAS No. 142”) and SFAS No. 144; “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144'"). See'“NeW Accounting
Pronouncements below. .

Slgmﬁcant management Judgment is requlred in determmmg our provision for income taxes
and in determining whether deferred tax assets will be realized in full or in part. When it is more
likely than not that all or some portion of specific ‘deferred tax assets such as foreign tax credit.
carryovers will not be realized, a valuation allowance must be established for the amount of the
deferred tax assets that are determined not to be realizable. As of October 31, 2002, a valuation
‘allowance for deferred tax assets was not deemed necessary. Accordmgly, if the facts or financial
results were to change, thereby impacting the likelihood of realizing the déferred tax assets,
judgment would have to be applied to determine the amount of valuation allowance required in
any given period. We continually evaluate strategies that would allow for the future utilization of
our deferred tax assets-and currently believe we have the ability to enact strategies to fully realize
. our deferred tax assets should our earnings in future periods not support the full realization of
_ the deferred tax assets. We have not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding tax
on a portion of our non-U.S. subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings as of October 31, 2002 because
we intend to reinvest such earnings indefinitely. If management decides to remit these earnings to
.the U.S. in a future period, our. provision for taxes may increase matenally in that period.

Cyclical Business and Genetal Emmomﬁc Conditions

The sales of our products and services are dependent, to a large degree; on customers whose
industries are subject to cyclical trends in the demand for their products. Shifts in the
semiconductor market, electronics industry, computer industry and telecommunications markets,
as well as rapidly shifting global economic conditions, have had and will have significant impacts
on our businesses. . :

In 2001, an economic downturn reduced consumer and capital spending in many of the
“worldwide markets that we serve. This economic downturn has continued in 2002. It also has
created an imbalance of supply and demand in the wireless and semiconductor manufacturing
industries. In 2002, net revenue was down 28 percent compared to: 2001, and we incurred a net
loss of $1,032 million compared to net earnings of $174 million in 2001. In 2002, loss from
continuing operations increased 152 percent compared to 2001. In 2001, net revenue and net
earnings were down 10 percent and 77 percent, respectively, compared to 2000. Our earnings
from continuing operations in 2000 declined 160 percent to a loss from continuing operations in
- 2001. Substantially all of the impacts of this decline occurred in our test and measurement and
semiconductor products businesses. Wireline telecommunication markets within our test and
~measurement group continue to- decline and a recovery in these markets is not expected for some
* time. Additionally, as a capital equipment provider, our revenue is driven by the capital
expenditure budgets and spending patterns of our customers, who often delay or accelerate
purchases in reaction to’changes in their businesses and in the economy. We expect some
portions of our businesses to remain cyclical in the future. Given that a high proportion of our
costs are fixed, variability in revenue as a result of these business cycles could disproportionately
- affect our quarterly and annual results.
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Restructuring and Asset Impairment
Summary

We currently have two active restructuring plans —one initiated in the fourth quarter of 2001
(the “2001 Plan’") and the other initiated in the fourth quarter of 2002 (the 2002 Plan’") after it
became clear that the actions taken in the previous year would not be sufficient to return the
company to profitability. Both plans were designed to reduce costs and expenses in order to
return the company to profitability without relying on an improvement in economic conditions. To
date we have achieved savings of approximately $300 million per quarter, principally through
reducing our workforce by 8,000 people.

Actions have been focused on segments that were impacted most severely by the changing
environment — our test and measurement and semiconductor products groups — but actions were
also taken to reduce the costs associated with support services such as finance and
administration. Cost reductions were initiated by reducing the huraber of properties, particularly
sales and administrative sites, and by reducing our workforce within the impacted segments.

Our 2001 Plan was substantially complete as of October 31, 2002. The 2002 Plan is still being
implemented — we expect to complete it no later than the first quarter of 2004. We anticipate that
we will save an additional $50 million per quarter by mid 2003 as a result of the 2002 Plan.

The 2001 Plan

In 2001, as a result of the economic downturn that impacted many of the markets that we
serve, we took steps to restructure our businesses. On August 20, 2001, we announced a plan to
reduce our workforce by approximately 4,000, or about nine percent, by the middle of 2002. On
November 15, 2001, we enhanced and supplemented our plan by announcing a further reduction
of 4,000 jobs once we had determined that the actions contemplated in August would not be
sufficient to return us to profitability. Together these actions form the 2001 Plan, which was
designed to reduce costs across almost all of our administrative and support services, including
sales and marketing, and to focus our production activities on those products that we believed
would return us to profitability, such as those in life sciences, semiconductor test and wireless
telecommunications. Our plan impacted the test and measurement group and the semiconductor
products group and had little direct impact on the life sciences and chemical analysis group
except as the plan related to support services reductions across all of our businesses. Within the
test and measurement segment, we reduced production capacity dramatically for communications
test product lines and reduced production to some degree in general purpose and semiconductor
test product lines. Within the semiconductor products segment we reduced production capacity
significantly for product lines in networking, especially long-haul networks, and reduced
production capacity for some personal systems products. The 2001 Plan was substantially
complete as of October 31, 2002, although we will continue t¢c make lease payments on a number
of properties vacated as a result of this plan through at least the next 5 years.




A summary of restructurlng act1v1ty for the. 2001 Plan through October 31, 2002 is shown in
the table below: :

Impairment of

. Consolidation Assets,
Workforce of Excess Property, Plant .
Reduction : Facilities and Equipment Total
. ) (in millions)

- Beginning balance at July 31,2001 .... -§ —° 3 — ‘ $ - 3 -
Total charge .......... e Lo o117 20 R Y 154
Cash payments........... e (65) ' — - (65)

" Ending balance at October 31 2001 . 52 - - 20 17 89
Total charge e e : 175 53 129 357
Asset 1mpalrment .......... [ ,‘ — » — (146) ) (146)
Cash payments....................... _(210) (10) - (220)
Ending balance at- October 31, 2002 . -$ 17 - $ 63 $ - $ 80
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. The three main components of the 2001 Plan relate to Workforce reductions, consolidation of
excess facilities and impairment of property, plant and equipment.

Workforce related charges were incurred as a result of the 8,000-person workforce reduction;
the cuts impacted all regions, all expense categories and most of our segments. Research and -
development activities were terminated on some product development initiatives, none of which
were individually or in total significant to our future revenues or profitability. We also took action
to reduce the number -of employees at production facilities-that had experienced declining
-demand, such as those making equipment for the long-haul wireline business.

Our plan to consolidate excess facilities resulted in charges for lease termination fees and
losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements. We have exited, or plan to exit in the near future,
more than 100 production, support and sales facilities, or parts of facilities, across all regions,
particularly in the U.S. and Japan, representing more than 3.6 million square feet, or about
19 percent, of our worldwide property. As of October 31, 2002, we have vacated approximately 40
percent of these facilities. The decision to exit individual facilities was made as a result of specific
economic conditions in certain countries and as part of our strategy to centralize support services
and to consolidate facilities. We lease most of these buildings from third parties, and the closures
impacted all three of our segments. In most cases, we are exiting office space housing sales and
administrative employees. However, a small number of production facilities were closed as a result
of our plans to consolidate manufacturing into fewer sites.

Asset impairment charges relate to fixed assets and weére determined using estimates of the
expected future cash flows generated from those assets. Impairments were recorded for machinery
and equipment in production facilities that we were closing or scaling back, such as for the long-
haul wireline business and for leasehold improvements in leased facilities that we planned to exit.
One production facility in Kobe, Japan accounted for approximately $60 million of the
$129 million of asset impairment charges in 2002. In order to determine the amount of the
impairment, under the held-for-use model in accordance with SFAS No. 121, we estimated the
cash flows that would result from our continued use of the building until we expect to vacate it
and also estimated the sales proceeds that we expected to be able to realize. The resulting
1mpa1rment was approximately 80 percent of the net book value of the facility, primarily due to
the ‘decline in the local property market.

We have incurred $511 million of expenses for the 2001 Plan through October 31, 2002:
$154 million in 2001 and $357 million in 2002. The most significant revision to the plan was made
in the fourth quarter of 2002, after updating our lease termination costs and sub-lease income
assumptions as the real estate leasing market continued to decline, adding a number of leased
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sales offices and two owned production facilities to the list that we were planning to exit,
including the facility in Kobe, Japan, described above; we incurred incremental asset impairment
costs of $94 million and lease facility costs of $36 million in relation to these changes.

We have reduced our workforce by approximately 7,700 (approximately 6,400 from involun-
tary terminations and approximately 1,300 from net attrition) as of October 31, 2002 and believe
we have achieved collective savings of approximately $880 million in 2002 from the restructuring
efforts. Restructuring savings were $325 million in cost of sales, $160 million in research and
development and $395 million in selling, general and administrative expenses. We paid
approximately $210 million in cash for severance payments in 2002. The cash payments were
funded using cash generated from operations, existing working capital and credit facilities, where
necessary.

We expect that future savings of approximately $1.2 billion per annum will be achieved in
total among all types of expenses — cost of products and services, research and development and
selling, general and administrative. Savings are expected to be realized from the reductions in
salary and benefit expenses, reduction in rent and other facilities costs and from savings
associated with materials and supplies. We expect the restructuring plan to have a positive impact
on our liquidity in 2003, as the savings generated are predominantly cash.

The 2002 Plan

On August 19, 2002, we announced our intention to further reduce our operational costs by
$50 million per quarter so that we might reach profitability at target revenue levels of $1.6 billion
per quarter. We concluded that we must further reduce our breakeven point given our current
level of revenues because the wireline and communications markets are recovering more slowly
than we anticipated. This plan primarily affects the manufacturing and field operations serving
the wireline markets that are components of our test and measurement group.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2002 Plan through October 31, 2002 is shown in
the table below:

Impairment of
Assets,
Workforce Property, Plant
Reduction and Equipment Total

(in millions)

Beginning balance at July 31, 2002 ................... $ — $ — $ —
Total charge..................... R 83 34 117
AsSet IMPairment. .. ......oovvrree e L - (34) (34)
Cashpayments ............. ... _(15) - (15
Ending balance at October 31,2002 .................. 68 $ — $ 68

As part of the 2002 Plan we have reduced our workforce by approximately 300 as of
October 31, 2002, but collective savings were insignificant in 2002 because the plan implementa-
tion began late in the fourth quarter of 2002. We expect to reduce our workforce by 2,500 in total
by the time the plan is completed. We expect to achieve the majority of the $50 million reduction
in quarterly operational costs by mid-2003.

Asset impairment charges of $34 million relate to machinery and equipment, primarily owned
by the semiconductor products group in Singapore. The equipment had been purchased in support
of communications research but as a result of our restructuring plans we have decided to sell the
equipment and conduct the research using existing equipment in the U.S.
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A summary of the income statement impact of the combined plans. in 2002 and 2001 is shown
below. There were no.significant restructuring activities in 2000.

Years ended

. October 31,
o - 2002 2001
Lo : ‘ (in millions)
Cost of products and 'services .. ........ e e Y. $210. $ 19
Research and development ....... .. .... il P e 56 17
Selling, general and administrative ..................... . 208 58
$154

|

*Total restructuring’and asset impairment charges................... Loaiy $474

Other asset impairment charges

In June 2001, we recognized a $74 million asset impairment charge with respect to our
decision to cancel the development of a software system for our customer support activities. We-
entered into an agreement with Hewlett-Packard to extend our use of their.legacy customer
support systems in place of the one that we were developing. In 2002, we began to develop a new
Customer Relationship Management (“CRM") system independent from Hewlett-Packard. We
expect-the CRM to be 1n1t1a11y nnplemented in the first quarter of 2003
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Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In July 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141”), which
requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for using the
purchase method of accountmg and changes the criteria for recognition of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination. The impact of adopting SFAS No. 141 was not material to the
consolidated financial statements. :

Effective November 1, 2000, we adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (*“SFAS No. 133”), as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting
for Certain Derivative Instruments and:Certain Hedging Activities”. SFAS No. 133, as amended,
establishes accounting and reportihg standards for derivative instruments, and requires that all
derivatives be recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and carried at fair
value. Changes in the fair value-of the derivative instruments are recognized in earnings or
stockholders’ equity, depending on the intended use of the instrument. The adoption of SFAS. .
No. 133 in-‘November 2000 resulted in a cumulative pre-tax'reduction in earnings of $41 million
($25 million after- tax) primarily relating to the valuation of warrants to purchase securities and a
pre-tax increase in other comprehenswe mcome of $10 m11110n

In December 1999, the Securlties and Exc’hange Commission (“SEC’) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Fmanc1al Statements” (“SAB 1017). During the fourth
quarter of 2001, we adopted SAB 101 retroactive to the begmnmg of the fiscal year. The
cumulative effect of the adoptlon reflecting the deferral of net revenue and cost of products from
October 31, 2000, resulted in.a cumulative pre-tax reduction in earmngs of $74 million
($47 million after tax). As a result of adopting SAB 101, delivery is considered to have occurred
when title and risk of loss have transferred to the customer. For the fiscal year ended October 31
2001, the net impact on 2001 net revenue, 'including amounts deferred at October 31, 2001, was
an increase of $67 million of net revenue and $29 million of cost of products which were included
in the cumulative effect adjustment. The results for the first three quarters of 2001 have been
restated in accordance with SAB 101. Pro forma amounts for the year ended October 31, 2000
have not been presented, as the effect of the change could not be reasonably determined.
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New Accounting Pronocuncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB’") issued SFAS No. 142 under
which goodwill will no longer be amortized but reviewed annually (or more frequently if
impairment indicators arise) for impairment. We adopted SFAS No. 142 on November 1, 2002.
Subsequently, we are required to evaluate our existing goodwill and intangible assets and make
any necessary reclassification in order to comply with the new criteria in SFAS No. 142. Based on
our assessment, effective in the first quarter of 2003, approximately $6 million of intangible assets
associated with workforce-in-place will be reclassified to goodwill.

As part of our assessment, we used the fair value measurement requirement, rather than the
previously required undiscounted cash flows approach, and as a result we expect to record a
transitional impairment loss from the implementation of SFAS No. 142 as a change in accounting
principle in the first quarter of 2003. The fair value of the reporting units was determined
primarily by the income approach, which estimates the fair value based on the future discounted
cash flows. The first step evaluation of reporting units on a fair value basis, as required by SFAS
No. 142, indicated that an impairment exists in the communications solutions reporting unit
within our test and measurement business. The revenue forecasts of the communications solutions
reporting unit have been impacted by the prolonged economic downturn in the communications
test markets. We were required to perform the second step analysis to determine the amount of
the impairment loss for the reporting unit that failed the first step test. The second step analysis
consisted of comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’'s goodwill, with an impairment charge resulting from any excess of
the carrying value of the reporting unit’'s goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting
unit's goodwill. Based upon this evaluation, the pre-tax impairment is expected to be
$268 million, approximately 44 percent of total consolidated goodwill recorded as of October 31,
2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 is also expected to have a material impact on our results of
operations because goodwill will no longer be amortized subsequent to the adoption of SFAS
No. 142. Amortization of goodwill was $326 million in 2002, $303 million in 2001 and $64 million
in 2000,

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144’"). SFAS No. 144 amends existing accounting guidance on
asset impairment and provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of.
Among other provisions, the new rules change the criteria for classifying an asset as held-for-sale.
The standard also broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for reporting as
discontinued operations, and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations. We will
adopt SFAS No. 144 in the first quarter of 2003. We do not believe that the adoption will have a
material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, which nullifies EITF No. 94-3. SFAS No. 146
requires that a liability be recognized for restructuring costs only when the liability is incurred,
that is, when it meets the definition of a liability in the FASB’s conceptual framework. SFAS
No. 146 also establishes fair value as the objective for initial measurement of liabilities related to
exit or disposal activities and is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after
December 31, 2002, with earlier adoption encouraged. The effect of adoption is dependent on the
timing of our related restructuring activities; however, we do not believe that the adoption of
SFAS No. 146 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Acquisitions

On January 5, 2001, we acquired Objective Systems Integrators, Inc. (“OSI'") for approxi-
mately $716 million. Of this total, $690 million was cash and the remainder represents the fair
value of options granted. Using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Accounting
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Principles Board. (“APB") Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations” (“APB No. 16”), the purchase
price was allocated to tangible and intangible assets including goodwill. The original goodwill
balance of $593 million was being amortized over three years. The net book value of goodwill
associated with this acquisition at October 31, 2002 was $234 million. At the time of acquisition,
OSI was a leading provider of next-generation operations-support-system software for communica-
tions service providers and has become part of our test and measurement business.

In July 1999, Hewlett-Packard entered into an agreement with Yokogawa Electric Corporation
(*Yokogawa”) to acquire Yokogawa’'s 25 percent equity interest in Agilent Technologies Japan, Ltd.
for approximately $521 million (the “Yokogawa Purchase’). The acquisition was done in several
steps. In the initial step, which occurred in January 2000, we purchased approximately 10 percent
of Agilent Technologies-Japan, Ltd. shares from Yokogawa for approximately $206 million. In the
second step, which occurred in April 2000, we purchased approximately 11 percent of additional
Agilent Technologies Japan, Ltd. shares from Yokogawa for approximately $216 million. In
January.2001, we completed the Yokogawa Purchase by purchasing the remaining 4 percent
interest for approximately $99 million. Of the total purchase price, $243 million was allocated to
tangible assets and $278 million was attributed to goodwill and was being amortized over
ten years. The remaining net book value of goodwill associated with this acqulsmon was .
$205 mllhon at October 31, 2002.

In addition to the OSI acquisition and the Yokogawa Purchase, we acqulred several other
companies during 2002, 2001 and 2000, Wthh were not significant to our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. These acquisitions were accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting as defined in APB No. 16 or SFAS No. 141 dependmg on the date
of acquisition. The results of operations of the acquired companies were included prospectively
from the date of acquisition and the acquisition cost was allocated to the acquired tangible assets
and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets based on fair values at the date of acquisition.
Residual amounts were recorded as goodwﬂl In-process research and development write-offs have
not been significant. :

Unaudited pro forma statement of operations information has not been presented because the
effécts of these acquisitions were not material on either an individual or an aggregated basis. -

The net book value of goodwill was $610 million at October 31, 2002, and- $944 million at
October 31, 2001. Goodwill related to acquisitions completed prior to June 30, 2001 was
amortized over periods ranging from three to ten years. Effective in the first quarter of 2003,
goodwill will no longer be amortized, in accordance with our adoption of SFAS No. 142. The
aggregate amount of goodwill impairment losses was $12 million in 2002, $8 million in 2001 and
insignificant in 2000. See further discussion in ‘“New Accounting. Pronouncements’ above.

Amortization of purchased intangible assets was $52 million in 2002, $41 million in 2001 and
$7 million in 2000. The carrying amount of purchased intangibles was $75 million as of
October 31, 2002. Effective in the first quarter of 2003, approximately $6 million of workforce-in-
place will be reclassified from intangible assets to goodwill. The rémaining intangible assets of
$69 million will be amortized as follows: $46 million in 2003 and $23 million in 2004.

Discontinued Operations

On August 1, 2001, we completéd the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Koninklijke
Philips Electronics, N.V. (“Philips”’) pursuant to an Asset Purchase ‘Agreement for a total purchase
price of $1.7 billion. Philips paid initial proceeds of $1.6 billion to us on August 1, 2001, with
further payments following pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of
November 17, 2000, as amended and supplemented by the Amendment and Supplemental
Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2001 (collectively, the “Asset Purchase Agreement”). The total
purchase price was subject to adjustment based on the determination of the final purchased net
assets and on our performance.of integration services for Philips.

11

Annual
Heport
Financials




Our consolidated financial statements reflect our healthcare solutions business as discontin-
ued operations in accordance with APB Opinion No. 30 “Reporting the Results of Operations —
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions” (**APB No. 30°"). The financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of our healthcare solutions business have been classified as
discontinued and prior periods have been restated, including the reallocation of general overhead
charges to our three remaining business segments. We recorded an after-tax gain of $646 million
in 2001 and an after-tax loss of $10 million in 2002 as a result of the sale to Philips. In 2002,
adjustments were made to the gain as a result of purchase price adjustments to reflect the final
purchased net assets and additional costs that were not anticipated at the time of the sale.

We signed an agreement with Philips, dated as of May 15, 2002, finalizing the purchase price
adjustments from the sale. The adjustments did not result in a material adjustment to the gain on
sale. Since August 1, 2001, we received all of the $100 million withheld by Philips from the total
purchase price at the time of the sale plus adjustments for the final purchased net assets. For
incremental fees, we provided support services to Philips after August 1, 2001 and a portion of
these fees offset costs that include an element of fixed costs which are recognized in selling,
general and administrative expenses in 2001 and 2002, As of October 31, 2002, we have completed
our contractual obligation to provide services to Philips.

Under the Asset Purchase Agreement, we are restricted from competing in the development,
manufacturing, selling or servicing of certain medical products for five years after the sale. We do
not expect any material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows from
this non-compete agreement because we do not intend to engage in those specified businesses.

Asset Sales
Sale of Leasing Peorifolio

In the fourth quarter of 2000, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with CIT Group
Inc. (“CIT,” formerly Tyco Capital Corporation) pursuant to which we sold them substantially all
of our leasing portfolic (the “CIT Group Sale’”) over the course of 2000 and 2001. There was no
impact on our consolidated cash flows and results of operations for the CIT Group Sale in 2002.
The impact on our consolidated cash flows and results of operations of the CIT Group Sale in the
previous two years is shown below.

Year Ended Year Ended
October 31, 2001 October 31, 2000

(in miltions)

Net proceeds from the CIT Group Sale................. $287 $234
Product revenue .......... .. ... it 254 197
Costofproducts .......... ... i 131 83

We also entered into a vendor financing arrahgement with CIT whereby CIT will provide
equipment financing and leasing services to our customers on a global basis. This agreement has
been in place since the fourth quarter of 2000.

In addition to the CIT Group Sale and the sale of the healthcare solutions business, we sold
assets related to portions of our businesses to third parties during 2002, 2001 and 2000. Gross
proceeds from these dispositions were $31 million in 2002, $13 million in 2001 and insignificant
in 2000. Gains from the dispositions, included in other income (expense), net, in the consolidated
statement of operations, were $15 million in 2002, $9 million in 2001 and insignificant in 2000.

Sale of San Jose Land

In February 2001, we sold a parcel of surplus land in San Jose, California for $287 million in
cash, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $269 million. In August 2001, we invested in the
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leasehold of several municipal properties in southern California for a total value of $289 million. .
In 2002, we received $237 million in non-refundable prepaid rent related to the investment in
leaseholds as described above.

Foreign Currency

We are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates as a result of our global
operating and financing activities. Our foreign currency exposures are hedged as part of our
global risk management program, which is designed to minimize short-term exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations. Movements in exchange rates net of our hedging activities had no material
effect on our operations in the periods presented.

Effective November 1, 2001, we have determined that the functional currency for many of our
subsidiaries outside the U.S. has changed from the U.S. dollar to local currency based on the
criteria of SFAS No. 52 “Foreign Currency Translation”. This change did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position as of November 1, 2001. '

Results of Continuing Operations

Results from operations declined for a second year to a $1,607 million loss in 2002 from a
$778 ‘million loss in 2001 and $924 million in earnings in 2000. This trend generally followed the
continuing decline in orders to $6,013 millien in 2002 from $6,414 million in 2001 and
$10,566 million in 2000. In response to declining orders and revenue, beginning in 2001, we took
a number of steps to reduce our overall cost structure. We began the 2001 Plan in the fourth
quarter of 2001 and continued it through 2002. The 2001 Plan resulted in a workforce reduction
of 7,700 including normal attrition, and a further reduction of 2,500 was announced in the 2002
Plan. Primarily as a result of approximately $880 million in restructuring savings from efforts in
the 2001 Plan, total costs and expenses declined in 2002 to $7,617 million from $9,174 million in
2001. After adjusting for the differences in inventory charges and the costs of restructuring, total

costs and expenses declined approximately $1,458 million year-over-year in 2002, despite an
increase of $89 million related to our Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) and Customer
Relatlonsh1p Management (CRM) software initiatives in 2002.

Although we are cautiously opmmlstlc about the recent growth in our quarterly revenue, with
the fourth quarter of 2002 representing our best performance since the third quarter of 2001,
quarterly orders remained stagnant at around $},5OO million throughout 2002. We have therefore
concluded that we must further reduce our cost structure in 2003 and have announced the 2002
Plan, which began in the. fourth quarter of 2002. The effort is designed to reduce our overall cost
structure by an addltlonal $50 million per quarter beginning in the second half of 2003.

We currently do not expect.a major upturn in orders or revenue in the ﬁrst six months of
2003. We intend to continue to reduce our costs and expenses and reach breakeven in our cash
flows from operations in 2003. We also do not expect significant disruptions in our business from
completing our ERP and CRM implementations in 2003. We did experience some slowdown and
loss of orders during third quarter of 2002 related to our ERP implementation, which we
substantlally recovered in our fourth quarter. We believe that the risk of future material order and
revenue losses is not significant.
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Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended Gctober 31, 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000
2002 2001 2000 % Change % Change
(in millions)
OFAETS .. .o $6,013  $6,414 $10,566 (6)% (39)%
Net Revenue:
PrOdUCES . oo oo $5234 $7,485 § 8,300 (30)% (10)%
Services and other ................ 776 911 1,061 (15)% (14)%
Total net revenue ................... $6,010 $8,396 $ 9,361 (28)% (10)%
Years Ended October 31, 2002 over 2061 2001 over 2000
2002 2001 2000 Ppts Change Ppts Change
% of Total Net Revenue Products ..... 87% 89% 89% (2 -
Services and other .................. 13% 11% 11% 2 —
Total . ....... . ... 100% 100% 160% — -
Years Ended Cctober 31, 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000
2002 2001 2000 % Change % Change

(in millions)

Net Revenue by Region

UnSe et $2,355 $3,373 $ 3,992 (30)% (16)%
International ....................... 3,665 5,023 5,369 @2N% (6)%
TOtAl . . oottt $6,010 $8,396 $ 9,361 (28)% (10)%

Orders in 2002 declined compared to 2001 primarily due to continued weakness in
telecommunications markets, which primarily affected our test and measurement business, but the
decline was offset by orders growth in our semiconductor products and life sciences and chemical
analysis businesses. Orders in 2001 compared to 2000 declined due to dramatic overall declines in
the telecommunications, semiconductor and computer industries. Going into 2003 we will be
relying primarily on new products to drive orders growth.

Net revenue declined in 2002 as compared tc 2001 primarily due to continued weakness in
key market segments, particularly wireless and wireline telecommunications, as well as pricing
pressures from both customers and competitors in the face of a weak economy. Declines outside
the U.S. were slightly lower than domestically in part due to our customers buying infrastructure
products in Asia. Continued slow markets in communications drove declines in product revenue;
declines in service revenue were driven by reduced contract renewal rates as an increasingly large
portion of our customers have elected to receive service on a time-and-materials basis. Services
and other includes revenue generated from servicing our installed base of products, warranty
extensions and consulting in all years, in addition to operating lease revenue in 2001 and 2000.

Excluding the CIT Group Sale of $254 million in 2001 and $197 million in 2000, net revenue
for 2001 decreased 11 percent compared to 2000. The decrease related primarily to the slowdown
in the telecommunications, semiconductor and computer industries, which severely impacted our
customers’ ability to purchase our products. The decrease in domestic net revenue for 2001 came
primarily from our businesses that serve the communications and electronics markets; the
slowdown in those markets impacted our net revenue in the U.S. somewhat more severely than
other parts of the world. The decrease in product revenue for 2001 was driven primarily by the
slowdown in communications and electronics markets. The decline in service revenue for 2001
was primarily the result of the CIT Group Sale and the decline in service contract renewal rates.
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Generally, there is a lag between service revenue trends and product revenue trends; this lag:
occurs because service revenue is dlrectly related to. the s1ze of our installed base, of products not
covered by warranty : ‘ ‘ o . :

Costs and ~Expenses L
‘ " , Years Ended October 31, 5002 oyer 2001 2001 over 2000
As a % of Net Revenue - ' 2002 2001 - 2000 Ppts Change Ppts Change
Cost of products as a percentage of )

product revenue....................... 62% - B9% - 49% 3 10
Cost of services and other as a percentage = ’

of services and other revenue .......... 58% 50% . B1% - .8 . ey
Total costs as a percentage of total net . - N

TEVENUE .. ivivrevenann i, Lo, - BI% 58% 49% '3 9
Research and development . ... ........ o 19% -168% 0 11% 4 4
Selling, general and administrative.. ... ... 46% 36% - 30% 10 _ 6

Cost of products and services.as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2002 compared to
2001, despite decreases in the actual dollar amounts of costs, due to the steep decline in revenue
we experienced this year. Our fixed costs relating to..continued overcapacity increase as a
percentage of net revenue with any decline in net revenue. Savings in dollar terms were primarily
the result of the 2001 Plan, which yielded approximately $325 million of savings in cost of
products and services for the year, and reduced inventory charges. Excluding the CIT Group Sale
and restructuring charges of $79 million in 2001, cost of products and services as a percentage of
net-revenue for 2001 increased 10 percentage points compared to 2000. The increase was
primarily attributable to decreased sales volume and increased charges for excess and obsolete
inventory. During: 2001, cost of products as a percentage of product revenue increased due to the
same factors mentioned above and higher discounts offered to our customers. Discount increases
affected the majority of our products and. were the result of pressure from competltors and
customers in theface of a declining economy

Inventory charges totaled $4O million in 2002 compared to $459 m1111on in 2001 and

$70 million in 2000. The abnormally high charges in 2001 compared to 2000 and 2002 were the
result of the: rapld and steep market decline that year, which caused excess inventory of then-
current products and hastened the obsolescence of older products. Inventory charges in 2001
spanned the vast majority of* our products as well as raw materials. Additional charges in 2002
reflected continuing wéakness in some of our-largest markets, particularly telecommunications,
but were partially offset by the sale of 1nventory previously written off in our semiconductor
product lines. :

" -Research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue 1ncreased in 2002
compared to 2001 as a direct result of decreased revenue; in 2001 compared to 2000 research and
development expenses increased in, both dollar terms and. as a percentage of net revenue as a
result of continuing expenditures toward new product introductions, many of which helped to
offset our revenue losses in the current year. Our research and development efforts focus on
potential new products and product improvements covering a wide variety of technologies, none
of which is individually significant to our. operations. We conduct five types of research and
development: basic research, which contributes to the fundamental understanding of areas critical
to our future; foundation technologles research, which enables fundamental advances across all
businesses; communications research which creates technologies to enable pervasive access to
information; life sciences research, which enables next-generation pharmaceuticals and improved
patient -outcomes; and -measurement research, which provides critical advances in test and .
measurement electronics and systems. Our research improves on various technical competencies
in electronics-such as compound semiconductor devices, digital imaging systems and microfabrica-
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tion technologies; systems and solutions such as applied mathematics, knowledge management
and measurement science; life sciences such as computational biology, molecular diagnostics and
high-throughput measurements; and photonics, such as precision automation technology, optical
switching and high-speed optical links. In each of these research fields, we conduct research that
is focused on specific product development for release in the short-term and other research that is
intended to be the foundation for future products over a longer time horizon. A significant portion
of our product development research is designed to improve on the more than 20,000 products
already in production, and other research is on major new product releases. Because of the large
number of new and existing products and research and development projects across all of our
businesses, it is difficult to quantify the impact of any specific products or projects. ‘

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2002
compared to 2001, despite reductions in overall spending, due to the significant decline in net
revenue. Overall our spending on selling, general and administrative expenses in 2002 was
$250 million lower than in 2001, despite an increase of approximately $89 million in expense for
our ERP and CRM systems as a result of savings from the 2001 Plan. Selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2001 compared to 2000
primarily due to goodwill amortization relating to our 2001 acquisition of OSI. As a result of
various expense-control initiatives in 2001, selling, general and administrative expenses before the
effect of goodwill and other intangible amortization, restructuring and asset impairment charges
declined 12 percent compared to 2000.

(Loss) Earnings from Operations

Years Ended October 31, 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000
2002 2001 2000 Change . Change
(in millions)
(Loss) earnings from operations. .. ... $(1,607) $(778) $924 (107)% (184)%
Operating (deficit) margin ........... @2N% (N% 10% (18) points (19) points

Our increased loss from operations in 2002 compared to 2001 was a direct result of the
decline in revenue that we experienced, as well as increases in restructuring and asset
impairment charges related to restructuring. However, we demonstrated considerable success in
realigning our businesses to the weakened economic conditions; the increase of $829 million in
our loss from operations was less than 35 percent of our total revenue decline of $2,386 million.

Excluding the CIT Group Sale, we had a loss from operations of $901 million in 2001
compared to earnings from operations of $810 million in 2000. Excluding the restructuring
charges and the CIT Group Sale, we had a loss from operations of $447 million in 2001 compared
to earnings from operations of $925 million in 2000. The decrease in 2001 compared to 2000 was
primarily due to the fact that net revenue declined much more rapidly than costs and expenses in
the test and measurement and semiconductor businesses. Increased goodwill amortization related
to recent acquisitions also contributed to the decrease. The decrease was partially offset by the’
performance of our life sciences and chemical analysis business.

Other Income (Expense), Net
Years Ended October 31, 5942 gver 2001 2001 over 2000

2002 2001 2000 % Change % Change
] (in millions)
Other income (expense), net............... $60 $301 $94 (80Y% 220%

Excluding the $269 million impact of the sale of land in San Jose, California in 2001, other
income (expense), net increased $28 million in 2002 compared to 2001. This net increase was due
to: $45 million from reduced losses on equity investments, $31 million from increased interest
income from cash deposits and reduced interest expense due to the pay down of commercial
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: paper and $6 million from gains from dispositions. These increases were partially offset by:

$35 million due to interest payable on convertible debt issued in 2002, $4 million due to currency
" movement and $§"15 million due to various items, none of which was individually material. Other

_ income (expense), net increased $207 million in 2001 over 2000. The increase was primarily due
to the sale of land in San Jose, California, which resulted in a pre-tax gain of $269 million. The
increase in other income (expense), net for 2001 compared to 2000 was partially offset by higher
interest expense due to a higher average debt balance. ‘

We sold assets related to portions of our businesses to third parties during 2002, 2001 and
2000. Gross proceeds from these dispositions were $31 million in 2002, $13 million in 2001 and
insignificant in 2000. Gains from the dispositions, included in other income (expense), net in the
“consolidated statement of operations, were $15 million in 2002, $9 million in 2001 and
1n51gmﬁcant in 2000

(Benefit) Provision for Taxes

The effective tax-benefit rate fof cbntihuing operations in 2002 was 34 percent. For 2001 and Annual

2000, the effective rates were 19 percent and 34 percent, respectively. Report
: R _ Financials .
In 2002, the higher benefit tax rate was due to the relatively higher loss from continuing ;
operations in 2002 than in 2001. In 2001 compared to 2000, the change in the tax rate for

continuing operations was due to the tax benefits arising from the losses caused by the global
economic downturn of that year. Taxes on the sale of our. healthcare solutlons business in 2001
were reflected in the gain from sale of discontinued operations.

Our future effectwe tax rate will continue to be calculated using our pre-tax earnings or loss
and will be affected by additional research and development tax credits, the expected level of
" other tax benefits, the effects of business acquisitions and dispositions as well as changes in the
mix of our pre-tax earnings among Jur1sdlct10ns with varying statutory rates. '

Segment Results

For 2002, we changed the method by which we allocate corporate expenses to the segments.
Prior period (loss) earnings from operations have been restated accordingly. Management
measures the profitability of each of the business segments after excluding goodwill and other
intangible amortization and non-recurring items such as restructuring charges; these items have
been excluded for-all perlods presented. »

Test and Measuremem

Our test and measurement business provides standard and customized solutions that are used
in the design, development, manufacture, installation, deployment and operation of electronic
equipment and systems and communications networks and services. Overall orders activity over
the last' 12 quarters indicates that the markets for our test and measurement products were fairly

" consistent throughout 2000, dropped dramatically during 2001 ‘and have remained depressed in .
2002 with. some unusually steep quarterly variations through the year. Within the business, orders
trends were mixed, with our automated test products showing a slight rebound in 2002 compared
to 2001 while the other product lines trended downward similarly to the overall results for the
business. Generally speaking, declines in both years were the result of a weak market for
telecommunications products, with offsetting growth in 2002 driven by orders from semiconductor
contract manufacturers in the U.S. and Asia, particularly for our system-on-a-chip products.
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Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000
2002 2001 2000 Change Change
. (in millions)
Orders .......ooviiiii $3,204  $4,021 . $7,002 .(18)% (43)%
Net revenue from products............ $2,791  $4,763  $5,299 (4% (10)%
Net revenue from services and other . .. 527 669 809 @21)% (17)%
Total net revenue .................... $3,318 $5,432  §$6,108 (39)% (11)%
(Loss) earnings from operations .. .. ... (837) (120) 756 (698)% (1186)%
Operating margin (deficit) ............ (25)% (2)% 12% (23) points (14) points

The declines in orders in 2002 compared to 2001 and in 2001 compared to 2000 followed
overall trends in the markets where this business focuses its sales, and were driven primarily by
weakness in the telecommunications market. However, despite the declines over the prior two
years we feel well positioned going into 2003, as we have made major strides toward stabilization
since implementing our Enterprise Resource Planning software platform and our products are
well positioned to take advantage of the growth anticipated in China as that market continues to
open in the near future. Generally speaking, the outlook for wireless communications test
products is beginning to improve, while wireline products are anticipated to have a difficult year
and we expect the market for general-purpose test products to be mixed. Overall, we will rely on
new products for orders growth in the coming year, both to take share in limited new market
opportunities and to gain share in larger existing markets.

The decline in net revenue for 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily the result of the
slowdown in the telecommunications industry, as was the decline in 2001 compared to 2000. The
slowdown was particularly sharp in the second half of 2001 as we became increasingly dependent
on incoming orders, which declined in virtually all of the product lines of our test and
measurement businesses. Excluding the CIT Group Sale, total net revenue for 2001 declined
12 percent compared to 2000. Pricing pressures from customers and competitors including sales
of used equipment by customers either downsizing or going out of business also contributed to the
decline in revenue in 2002 compared to 2001. Overall discounts have increased by approximately
4 percentage points since the beginning of 2001, resulting in approximately $150 million less
revenue in 2002 compared to 2001. Our percentage of revenue from new products increased
approximately 20 percentage points since early 2001; in 2002 we introduced more than 100 new
products, nearly a quarter of which have significant strategic and financial impact on our
business. These new products include vector network analyzers, optical electrical generators,
performance signal analyzers and automated performance characterization testing products. Net
revenue from services and other declined less dramatically than product revenue in 2002
compared to 2001 despite customers increasingly moving away from contracts and towards service
on a time-and-materials basis; service revenue is generally more stable than product revenue in
difficult market conditions as our installed base of products continues to generate service needs.
Net revenue from services and other decreased more dramatically than net revenue from products
for 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to the CIT Group Sale. In addition, a number of
customers chose not to renew their service contracts in 2001 in response to cost constraints due
to the difficult economic conditions that year.
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Costs and Expenses

The following table shows the percentage point increase in our test and measurement
business’ costs and expenses as a percentage of net revenue for 2002, 2001 and 2000.

i ' : " 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000

Increase as ;a. % of Net Reveﬁue . . Ppts Change Ppts Change
Cost of products and services . ............... T S . 3 9
Research and development ........ ... .. ... .. ... . .. . . . . 7 3
Selling, general and administrative .................. ... ... ... .... " 13 2

Cost of prbduéts and services as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2002 over 2001
primarily due to the overall decrease in net revenue. On a dollar basis, costs were down
35 percent for the year, drlven primarily by savings from restructuring and reduced inventory
‘charges. Cost of products and services as a percentage of net revenue ‘increased in 2001 compared
to 2000 primarily due to increased charges for excess and obsolete inventory. Exéluding the
impact of inventory charges, cost of products and services as a percentage of net revenue
increased 3 percentage points in 2001 from 2000. Due to the fixed nature of our manufacturing
costs, lower than anticipated manufacturing volumes contributed to the mcrease in cost of
products and services as'a percentage of net revenue.

Inventory charges totaled $54 million in 2002 compared to $364 million in 2001 and
$57 million in 2000. The large increase from 2000 to 2001 was the result of rapidly deteriorating
conditions in the telecommunications and electronics markets; the charges affected parts for the
majority of all product types. Additional charges in 2002 are closer to our run-rate in 2000, and
particularly reflect continuing weakness in the communications test market even beyond our
expectations at the end of 2001. Inventory charges in 2002 primarily affected optical
communications measurement products, demo inventory and raw materials.

Research and development expense as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2002 from
2001 due to the overall decrease in net revenue. On a dollar basis, expenses were down
10 percent for the year, predominantly as a result of restructuring and from delays and reductions
in new product introductions that would otherwise have been developed for near-term release.
Specifically, our research and development funding has been refocused to take advantage of the
markets that are beginning to recover from the declines or stagnation of the last several quarters,
while reductions have been targeted to products in markets that are particularly weak and not
expected to recover in the near term, such as wireline telecommunications. The increase in
research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue in 2001 compared to 2000 was
primarily due to our continuing expenditures toward new product introductions that were
anticipated to generate matemal contributions to revenue in future perlods combined with the
decrease 1n overall net revenue. :

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue mcreased in 2002
compared to 2001 due to the overall decrease in net revenue. On a dollar basis, expenses were
down 16 percent primarily as a result of restructuring. In 2001 selling, general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of net revenue were flat compared to 2000.

(]Loss) ]Eanrnmgs from Operations

Our reduced revenue drove the increase in loss from operations in 2002 compared to 2001;
weak sales overcame significant new product wins, and restructuring savings during the year.
However, the fact that losses increased only $1,027 million after removing the impact of reduced
inventory charges, compared to reduced revenue of $2,114, is a sign that our restructuring efforts
have had significant success in reducing our overall cost structure. The 2001 Plan saved
approximately $600 million in 2002 and we reduced average headcount by 11 percent. The 2002
Plan will be focused on achieving breakeven or profitability for the business in 2003, including an
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additional reduction in average headcount of 8 percent and incremental savings of approximately
$40 million per quarter by the end of the year. The savings will result from both the reduction in
employee-related costs and from shifting manufacturing and sales into lower-cost regions.

Loss from operations in 2001 was a result of reduced demand, which led to fewer sales and
increased charges for excess and obsolete inventory. Excluding the CIT Group Sale, loss from
operations was $242 million compared to earnings from operations of $644 million in 2000. -

Semiconductor Products

Qur semiconductor products business is a leading supplier of semiconductor components,
modules and assemblies for high performance communications systems. We design, develop and
manufacture products for the networking and personal systems markets. Overall orders activity
over the last 12 quarters indicates that the markets for our semiconductor products declined
slightly during 2000, dropped dramatically during 2001 with an abnormally low bottom point near
the middle of the year, and improved again gradually in 2002. The average for 2002 was just
under two-thirds the average in 2000. Underlying market conditions remain little changed in 2002
compared to 2001, including continuing pricing pressure on the orders we book, which is
demonstrated by our steadily declining revenue for the same comparison periods despite the
orders increase in the current year. ‘

Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000
2002 2001 2000 Change Change
(in millions)
Orders ........ FR $1,568 $1,290 $2511 22% (49)%
Netrevenue ...................... $1,559 $1,850 $2,213 (16)% (16)%
(Loss) earnings from operations . ... (68) (177) 229 62% (A77%
Operating (deficit) margin ......... (D% (10)% 10% 6 points (20) points

The overall increase in orders for 2002 compared to 2001 was the result of growth in our
personal systems product lines, partially offset by reductions in our networking product lines. In
personal systems, we saw orders growth of 50 percent for our imaging products and 33 percent
for general optoelectronic components while orders for our wireless products were flat from the
prior year. In networking, our optical products declined 11 percent compared to the prior year
while our smaller overall orders for integrated circuits grew 20 percent. There is still no
indication of stabilization in the telecommunications market, but other markets for our
networking products show potential for growth in the coming year. The decline in orders for 2001
compared to 2000 was a direct reflection of the steep and rapid decline in the semiconductor
products marketplace that year. Looking forward, geographical trends in orders show growth in
Asia as an increasing number of companies shift manufacturing out of North America and Europe
into mainland China and Southeast Asia.

The decrease in net revenue for 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily the result of the
carryover of revenue into 2001 from relatively high orders in 2000. During 2001, the timing
difference between orders and revenue became much smaller, resulting in lower carryover of
revenue into 2002. Non-recurring royalty revenue relating to changes in our agreement with
Adaptec Inc. in 2001 also contributed $35 million to the decrease in the comparison between 2002
and 2001. The decrease in net revenue for 2001 compared to 2000 was primarily due to the sharp
decline in demand for our semiconductor products. The global economic slowdown led to lower
volumes in virtually all product lines of the business. Revenue from sales to Hewlett-Packard,
consisting primarily of application-specific integrated circuits (“ASICs”) and motion control
products, represented approximately 33 percent of the business’ total net revenue for 2002,

31 percent of net revenue for 2001 and 30 percent of net revenue for 2000. No individual new
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. products had a material impact on results in 2002; We,.‘are seeing good eustomer acceptance of our
F-BAR and E-pHEMT wireless products, but those items are not yet'showing a material impact on
results. ' ‘

Cbsts and Expenses

The following table shows the percentage point ihcrease or decrease in our semiconductor
products business’ costs and expenses as a percentage of its net revenue for 2002, 2001 -and 2000.

. . . Coe e . : : 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000
Increase (decrease) as a % of Net Revenue Ppts Change Ppts Change

Cost of products . . .. .. e ST SR (6) - 11
Research and development ...... R . e L - 6 -

Selling, general ar}d admmlstratlve oo E . 1 - 3

-The decrease in cpst of products as a percentage of net revenue in 2002 compared to 2001
despite overall reduced‘revenue was a direct result of the:2001 Plan; savings from restructuring
reduced total cost of products by approximately $170 million for the year. The increase in cost of
products as a percentage of net revenue in 2001 compared to 2000.-was due in part to increased
inventory charges for ‘excess and obsolete inventory. In addition to increases from inventory
charges, lower than anticipated manufacturing volumes contributed to the increase in cost of
products as a percentage of net revenue due to the fixed nature of our manufacturing costs, as the
product lines in this business are particularly capital intensive. Unfavorable mix and large
shipments to single customers carrylng deep discounts impacted cost of products as a percentage
of net revenue unfavorably. Excluding the impact of increased inventory charges, cost of products
as a percentage of net revenue for 2001 increased 6 percentage points compared to 2000.

In 2002 we sold $18 million of inventory previously written-down compared to inventory
charges of $84 million in 2001 and $4 million in 2000. The sales of written-off inventory in the
current year were due to unanticipatedide‘mand for products previously considered to be
unmarketable. The bulk of the unanticipated sales in 2002 . were made in image/navigation, general
fiber optics and hardcopy ASICs. The large increase in inventory charges in 2001 compared to
2000 reflected the dramatic decline of market conditions where this business focuses its sales; the
charges affected raw materials used in all of our major products, including image/navigation,
telecom fiber optics, general fiber optics, hardcopy ASICs and couplers.

Both research and development expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses
were flat for 2002 compared to 2001. The increase in research and development expenses as a
percentage of net revenue in 2001 compared to 2000 was driven by a continued commitment to
develop new products in the fiber optics, hlgh speed networking, and image position sensor
businessés. The increase in selling, general ard administrative expenses as a percentage of net
revenue for 2001 compared to 2000 was the result of declining revenue; the total amount of
selling, general and administrative expenses were reduced by $9 million due to the expense
containment measures that We‘impzlemented' in 2001 prior to restructuring.

(Loss) Earnings from Operations

The reduced loss from operations in 2002 compared to 2001 was the result of reduced
inventory charges and our cost containment measures, including the 2001 Plan. Overall, we
reduced average headcount by 13 percent in 2002, in addition to headcount reductions of
12 percent at the end of 2001 compared to the end of 2000. Overall savings from restructuring in
2002 totaled $250 million for the full year. For the 2002 Plan, the business expects to further
reduce average headcount-in 2003 by about 6 percent; the scope of the restructuring covers all
categories of cost and expenses and all regions of operations. When complete, the 2002 Plan is
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expected to save approximately $10 million per quarter by the end of the year, and is expected to
bring the business back to profitability. )

The loss from operations in 2001 compared to earnings from operations in 2000 resulted
primarily from lower net revenue and higher cost of products and expenses as a percentage of net
revenue due to the fixed nature of our expenses.

Life Sciences and Chemical Analysis

Cur life sciences and chemical analysis business provides application-focused solutions that
include instruments, software, consumables and services that enable customers to identify,
quantify and analyze the physical and biological properties of substances and products. Overall,
orders growth over the last 12 quarters has indicated that the markets for our life sciences and
chemical analysis products has been slowly but steadily increasing, with some regular seasonality
patterns that recur predictably each year. Due to U.S. government and large pharmaceutical
budgets, orders in our first and fourth quarters are seasonally greater than those in our second
and third quarters. However, general economic trends, new product introductions and competition
might overshadow this trend in any given year. In 2002, the primary driver for growth in life
sciences products revenue was strong acceptance of new products, with some offsetting declines
in the pharmaceuticals market. The primary drivers of revenue growth in chemical analysis for
2002 were U.S. government spending and Asian economic development.

Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000
2002 2001 2000 Change Change
(in millions)
Orders ........................... $L151  $1,103 $1,053 4% 5%
Net revenue from products......... $ 884 $ 872 § 788 1% 11%
Net revenue from services and other 249 242 252 3% (D%
Total net revenue ................. $1,133 81,114  $1,040 2% 7%
Earnings from operations . ......... 150 91 10 65% 810%
Operating margin ................. 13% 8% 1% 5 points 7 points

The increase in orders in 2002 compared to 2001 was driven by government spending in the
U.S. and abroad, growth in new technology areas such as microarrays and Chemchip and the
growth of the chemical analysis market. In our life sciences markets, new technologies drove
improved orders performance, while our pharmaceuticals customers continued to reduce orders
this year. In our chemical analysis markets, U.S. government spending on homeland security and
Asijan government spending on infrastructure were the primary growth areas. Orders in Asia grew
12 percent this year, primarily for products in the environmental and foods markets. The increase
in orders in 2001 compared to 2000 was the result of the overall steady upward market trend in
life sciences and chemical analysis products. We expect that recently- and soon-to-be-released new
products will continue to produce orders growth in the coming year.

The increase in net revenue for 2002 compared to 2001 was a result of increased sales in
both our life sciences products and our chemical analysis products. In life sciences, increased
revenue was driven by growth in new technology areas such as microarrays and Chemchip, but
overall weakness in pharmaceutical industry spending continues. New products contributed
significantly to our performance in 2002; revenue for new products was approximately $80 to
$90 million for the year, primarily for microarrays and microarray systems, Chemchip
applications and systems and new liquid chromatography and liquid chromatography/mass
spectrometry applications. The increase in net revenue for 2001 compared to 2000 was the result
of increased sales of our products in the life sciences market moderated by decreased sales of our

22




products in our traditional chemical and petrochemical markets. Net revenue from products
including liquid chromatography equipment, bioanalyzers and microarrays grew more than

20 percent in 2001 compared to 2000. Services and other revenue decreased slightly in 2001
compared to 2000, primarily as a result of customers choosing to receive services on a time-and-
materials basis rather than renewing long-term service contracts, a common trend in the face of
difficult economic times.

Costs and Expenses

The following table shows the percentage point decrease in our life sciences and chemical
analysis business’ costs and expenses as a percentage of its net revenue for 2002, 2001 and 2000.

2002 over 2001 2001 over 2000

Decrease as a % of Net Revenue ’ ' Ppts Change Ppts Change
Cost of products and Services .. ..., 3 - (2)
Research'and development ...................0 e, - ey
Selling, general and administrative ............... .. ... ... ... ... (2) %)

Cost of products and services as a percentage of net revenue was down slightly in 2002
compared to 2001. Tight expense management and cost reductions, improved management of
inventories and reductions in infrastructure expenses this year drove a $17 million decrease in
total spending. Cost of products and services as a percentage of net revenue was flat in 2001
compared to 2000; additional depreciation expense related to increased spending in manufactur-
ing capacity for microarrays was offset by cost controls and improved operational efficiencies.

Inventory charges totaled $4 million in 2002 compared to $11 million in 2001 and $9 million
in 2000. The slightly increased inventory charge run-rate in 2001 compared to both 2000 and 2002
was due to overall inventory reductions in the face of the difficult economy and some
consolidation of warehouses to increase efficiency.

The life sciences and chemical analysis business did not participate significantly in the 2001
Plan until the fourth quarter of 2002, when we took steps to consolidate our facilities in
California. In order to minimize moving expense and capital investments in existing space, we will
outsource components of the manufacturing process. For the 2002 Plan, our restructuring efforts
will be focused on improving the manufacturability and quality of our products.

Research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue were flat for both 2002
compared to 2001 and 2001 compared to 2000. Steady spending on research and development is
required to produce new products that can improve revenues and market share in future years.
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue were flat in 2002
compared to 2001; the decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
net revenue for 2001 compared to 2000 reflected our efforts to reduce cost structures and
discretionary expenses.

Earnings from Operations

The increase in earnings from operations in 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to
increased revenue and continued cost controls. Overall, cost controls, inventory management and
infrastructure reductions contributed approximately $20 million to our bottom line for the year.
The increase in earnings from operations in 2001 compared to 2000 was primarily due to higher
net revenue and reduced spending resulting from our cost reduction measures. In addition,
operational efficiencies arising -out of manufacturing centralization efforts begun in fiscal 2000 and
increased volumes contributed to the increase. :
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Healthcare Solutions — Discontinued Operations

Our healthcare solutions business has been classified as a discontinued operation. The table
below shows the results of our healthcare sclutions business before general overhead allocations
and net of the costs of divestiture. Results for the year ended October 31, 2001 include operaticns
from November 1, 2000 to May 31, 2001, the measurement date in accordance with APB No. 30.
The net loss from discontinued operations of $58 million for the two-month period following our
May 31, 2001 measurement date was included in the gain from sale of discontinued operations.
The after-tax gain resulting from the sale of our healthcare solutions business including this loss
was $646 million.

The following table shows the detailed results of operations of our discontinued healthcare
solutions business for 2001 and 2000. These results are also included in cur consolidated
statement of operations as net earnings from discontinued operations for the years ended 2001
and 2000.

Years Ended
QOctober 31,
2001(a) 2000

(in millions)

NEL TEVEIMUE . . o e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e $765 $1412
Costs and €XPEISES ... ...ttt e _ 747 1,283
Earnings from discontinued operations . ........ ..., 18 129
Other income (EXPENSE), NMEL . .. ... ottt et 3 17
Earnings from discontinued operations before taxes ......... ... ... ... . ..... 21 146
ProviSIONn fOr taXES . ..ottt e e e 16 61
Net earnings from discontinued operations .. .............c.ooiieiiiiianan ... $___;_E_5 $§ 85

(a) Includes operations from November 1, 2000 tc May 31, 2001, the measurement date.

Financial Condition
Liguidity and Capital Resources

Our financial position remained strong at October 31, 2002, with cash and cash equivalents of
$1,844 million.

We used cash from continuing operations of $585 million in 2002 compared to $114 million
used in 2001 and $536 million generated in 2000. Of the $585 million cash used in operations in
2002, $235 million was spent on restructuring activities, primarily in the form of severance
payments. Inventory-related charges were significantly lower in 2002 than in the previous year at
$40 million compared to $459 million a year ago. The abnormally high charges in 2001 compared
to 2000 and 2002 were the result of the rapid and steep market decline that year, which caused
excess inventory of then-current products and hastened the obsolescence of clder products. As
demand for our products generally declined in 2002, we have been able to manufacture more
products using inventory on hand and have reduced the amounts that we have purchased from
suppliers.

An 8 percent increase in revenues in the fourth guarter of 2002 compared to the same
quarter in 2001 was the primary cause of a 14 percent increase in accounts receivable at the end
of 2002 as compared to the prior year. At the end of fiscal 2001 accounts receivable had
decreased by about 50 percent compared to the end of fiscal 2000, primarily due to a 47 percent
decline in fiscal 2001 fourth quarter revenues as compared to the fourth quarter of 2000. There
were no material bad debt charges in any of the years presented. The net amount of cash used in
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the reduction of accounts payable declined from $480 million in 2001 to $89 million in 2002. This
trend is generally consistent with the decrease in our operating expenses.

In 2'0'02,‘_$84 million of cash was used to fund our U.S. defined benefit plans and $105 million
was contributed to our international defined benefit plans. This year’s contributions were ’
aﬁproiimately $128 million or 210 percent larger than in the previous year due primarily to a
decline in equity markets globally. Our annual contributions are'highly dependent on the relative -
performance of our assets versus our projected liabilities, among other factors. If the value of our
assets declines relative to our future projected obligations, we have to make larger contributijons
to maintain our funded status. In 2003, we expect to fund our retirement plans in approximately
the same amounts as in 2002. .

' We currently have over $1 billion of deferred tax assets. The significant increase in deferred
tax assets for 2002 is due primarily to net operating loss carry-forwards (“NOLs"), foreign tax
credits and research and development tax credits. Wé expect to utilize the NOLs, foreign tax .
credits and research and development tax credits to reduce future tax liabilities when we return
to profitability..

Our need to control discretionary spending and conserve cash in the face of the weak
economy has significantly reduced the amounts we considered to be available for investments such
as new company acquisitions, equity investmerits and property, plant and equipment. Net cash
used by investing activities for 2002 was $71 million compared to $1,365 million in 2001 and 4
$1,062 million in 2000. In’ 2002, we used $15 million to purchase equity in strategically aligned
companies. I 2001 we spent $904 million, primarily for-the acquisition of OSI and for the
Yokagawa Pirchase. In 2000 we used $634 million for the first'and ‘second installments of the
Yokagawa Purchase along with investments in several other companies. In 2001, we used cash of
$289 million for a long-term leasehold investment on which the lessee prepaid $237 million of
rent in 2002. Capital spending controls imposed in.the fourth quarter of 2001 reduced spending
on property, plant and equipment by $580 million in 2002 compared to the prior year. In 2002 the
majority of property, plant and ‘equipme_nt'purchase‘s were related to the implementations of our
ERP and CRM systems and to the development of our website. The total program costs for these
three initiatives were $281 million in 2002 compared to $164 million in 2001. Of these amounts,
we capitalized $148 million in 2002 and $91 million in 2001 and the remainder was expensed. We
estimate that the total program cost in 2003 for these initiatives will be approximately "
$160 million. Although these programs used significant resources in 2002 and 2001, when they are
completed we will bé able to retire over 1000 legacy systems, resulting in significant savings: We
had no matérial dispositions of property, plant and equipment in 2002 compared to $633 million
in 2001 related to the sale of land in-San Jose and the CIT Group Sale.

In November 2001,.we borrowed $1,123 million, net of issuance costs, under a private offering

of 3 percent senior convertible debentures due in 2021, A registration statement filed on behalf of _

certain holders of the debentures became effective on April 11, 2002. The debentures are
convertible at any time into our common stock at an initial conversion price of $32.22 per share,
subject to adjustment (as defined in the related Indenture agreement dated November 27, 2001)
and are redeemable at our option at any time on or after December 6, 2004. Holders of the
debentures have the ability to require us to repurchase the debentures, in whole or in part, on
specified dates in 2006, 2011 and 2016. Holders also have the right to require us to repurchase all
or.a portion of the outstanding debentures if we undergo a Fundamental Change (as defined in
the Indenture agreement) at a price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount plus interest.
The debentures bear interest at an annual rate of 3 percent, payable on June 1 and December 1 of
each year beginning.June 1, 2002. The interest rate will reset (as defined in the Indenture '
agreement) in June 2006, June 2011 and June 2016, but in no event will it be reset below

3 percent or above 5 percent:per annum. More information regarding the terms of the deberitures, -

including conversion price, Fundamental Change and the interest rate reset can be found in the
Indenture; agreement. . -

25

-

NINR
Haport
Finaneials




On August 1, 2001 we completed the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Phillips for
initial proceeds of approximately $1.7 billion. In May of 2002 we finalized the sale agreement. We
received $1.6 billion in August of 2001 and since then we have received all of the $100 million
withheld by Philips from the total purchase price at the time of the sale plus adjustments for the
final purchased net assets. Cash flows from discontinued operations include the proceeds from the
sale and cash used in the operations of the healthcare solutions business during the year up until
the date of sale.

We have terminated our $250 million five-year revolving credit facility that was due to expire
on November 5, 2005 and have not extended the $250 million 364-day revolving credit facility that
terminated on November 1, 2002. We had no outstanding balances under these credit facilities
during 2002. We did not have plans to use these credit facilities, and we believe that the costs of
renewing and/or retaining these credit facilities outweighed their benefits. We continue to have
access to uncommitted credit lines through our banking partners, although we do not anticipate
any significant additional credit needs in the next year.

In the normal course of business, we enter into contractual commitments to purchase
materials and components from suppliers in exchange for favorable pricing or more beneficial
terms. These regular purchase agreements did not exceed 5 percent of cost of sales. We have
contractual commitments to non-cancelable operating leases and vendor financing arrangements
with CIT. We provide lease guarantees on these financing arrangements and we have no other
material guarantees or commitments. See Note 16, “‘Other Accrued Liabilities” to the consolidated
financial statements for further information on lease guarantees. See Note 18, “Commitments” to
the consolidated financial statements for further information on our non-cancelable operating
leases.

We are taking actions to achieve positive cash flows frem operations in 2003. We will benefit
from significant cost savings through our restructuring programs and we have plans to further
improve our collection of accounts receivable and lower our inventory levels. Inventory levels
already have been reduced by over $400 million from two years ago. This represents major
progress in a key area of our asset performance.

Our liquidity is affected by many factors, some of which are based on normal operating cash .
flow patterns of our businesses and some of which arise from fluctuations related to global
economies and markets. Our cash balances are generated and held in a number of locations
throughout the world, and in some cases tax rules and regulations could restrict our ability to
move cash balances from one jurisdiction to meet cash requirements in another jurisdiction
without incurring tax penalties. We do not currently expect such regulations and restrictions to
impact our ability to pay vendors and conduct operations threcughout our global organization. We
believe that our current cash and cash equivalents and other borrowing capabilities will be
sufficient to satisfy our working capital, capital expenditure and other liquidity needs for 2003.

Risks, Uncertainties and Other Factors That May Affect Future Results

Our operating results and financial condition could continue to be harmed if the industries
into which we sell our products, such as the communications, electronics and semiconductor
industries, remain depressed.

The economic downturn resulted in reduced purchasing and capital spending in many of the
markets that we serve worldwide. In particular, the communications, semiconductor and
electronics industries have been in a downward cycle characterized by diminished product
demand, excess manufacturing capacity and the increasing erosion of average selling prices.
Although some segments of these industries have shown recent signs of stabilization, others,
especially in communications, continue to exhibit a downward cycle. There has been year-over-
year orders growth in our semiconductor products, life sciences and chemical analysis,
semiconductor test and wireless test businesses, but demand in these markets remains volatile so
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the underlying trend is uncertain. In addition, -our busmesses serving wireline telecommunications
markets have continued to decline. Prlcmg pressures intensified throughout 2002 reducmg our
gross margins.

We are Uncertain how long the current downturn will last and when a sustained recovery in
our markets may occur. Any further decline in our customers’ markets or in general economic
conditions would likely result in a further reduction in .demand for our products and services. In
addition, if our customers’ markets continue to decline, we may not be able to collect on
outstanding amounts due to us. Such further decline could harm our consolidated financial
position, results of operations, cash flows and stock price, and could limit our dbility to reach our
goals for restoring profitability. Also, in such an environment, pricing pressures could continue,
and if we are unable to respond quickly enough this could negatively impact our- gross margins.
Finally, we may be required to secure additional debt or equity financing at some time in the
future, and we cannot assure you that such financing will be available on acceptable terms when
required. :

The actions we look in response to the reduced demand for cur products and services could
have long-term adverse effects on our business.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2001, our revenue started deelining To scale back our
operations and to reduce our expenses in response to this decreased demand for our products
and services and lower revenue, we reduced our workforce, froze hiring, cut back 51gn1ﬁcantly on
our use of temporary workers and reduced discretionary spending. We also 1n1trated short- term
facility closures to reduce production levels.

In calendar year 2001, we announced plans to reduce our workforce by approximately 8,000
people This reduction was completed at the end of the fourth quarter of 2002. In connection with
our announcement of our results for the quarter ended July 31, 2002, we announced that to reach
our profitability goals we will have to reduce costs by approximately another $50 million per
quarter. This entails approximately 2,600 additional job cuts, which are underway. In addition,
from May 1 to October 31 of 2001, we instituted a 10 percent pay reduction applicable to all
employees globally, wherever legally permissible. Starting in the first quarter of 2002, we
continued the 10 percent pay reduction for approximately 2,000 of our senior managers In
February of 2002, we reinstated the pay reduction at a rate of 5 percent for our other employees,
wherever legally permissible. The reductions in pay took effect via a reduction in hours for certam
employees, in accordance with local law. In addition to these measures, we are contmulng our
initiatives to streamline our operations. The pay reductions continued throughout our third
quarter. Starting August 1, 2002, we restored full pay to all employees worldwide; which increases
the pressure to reach our profitability goals. ¢

There are several risks inherent in our efforts to transrtlon to a reduced cost structure. These
include the risk that we will not be able to reduce expenditures quickly enough and sustain them
at a level necessary to restore profitability, and that we may have to undertake further
restructuring initiatives that would entail additional charges. For example, prior to the third .
quarter of 2002, we had not anticipated the necessity for the further restructuring initiatives to
reduce costs by another $50 million per quarter. In addition, there is the risk that cost-cutting
initiatives will impair our ability to effectively develop,and market products and remain -
competitive in the industries in which we compete. Each of the above measures "could have long-
term effects on our business by reducing our pool of technical talent, decreasing or slowing
improvements in our products, making it more difficult for us to respond to customers, limiting
our ability to increase production quickly if and when the demand for. our products increases and
limiting our ability to hire and retain key personnel. These circumstances could cause our
earnings to be lower than they otherwise might be. '
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As demand for our products does not maich our manufacturing capacity, our eqrnings may
continue to suffer.

Because we cannot immediately adapt our production capacity and related cost structures to
rapidly changing market conditions, when demand does not meet our expectations, our
manufacturing capacity will likely exceed our production requirements. Currently, we have excess
manufacturing capacity as a result of the decrease in purchasing and capital spending in the
communications, electronics and semiconductor industries. The fixed costs associated with excess
manufacturing capacity have adversely affected, and may continue to adversely affect, our
earnings. Conversely, if during a market upturn we cannot increase our manufacturing capacity to
meet product demand, we will not be able to fulfill orders in a timely manner, which in turn may
have a negative effect on our earnings and overall business.

Failure to adjust our orders for parts and inventories due to changing market conditions
could adversely affect our earnings.

QOur earnings could be harmed if we are unable to adjust our orders for parts to market
fluctuations. In order to secure components for the production of products, we may continue to
enter into non-cancelable purchase commitments with vendors, or at times make advance
payments to suppliers, which could impact our ability to adjust cur inventory toc declining market
demands. Prior commitments of this type have resulted in an excess of parts as demand for our
communications, semiconductor and electronics products has decreased. For example, in the year
ended October 31, 2001, we incurred approximately $459 million of inventory-related charges, and
in the twelve months ended October 31, 2002, we have incurred approximately another
$40 million in inventory-related charges. If the demand for our products continues to decrease, we
may experience additional excess and obsolete inventories and be forced to incur additional
charges. By contrast, during a market upturn, our results could be materially and adversely
impacted if we cannot increase our inventories quickly enough to meet increasing demand for our
products. Approximately 5 percent of our parts require custom work. Of these, some parts are not
readily available from alternate suppliers, due to their unique nature or the length of time
necessary for design work. Should a supplier cease manufacture of such a component, we would
be forced to reengineer our product. In addition to discontinuing parts, suppliers may also extend
lead times, limit supplies or increase prices due to capacity constraints or other factors.

We are continuing to implement new information systems, and problems with the design or
implementation of these new systems have interfered and could further interfere with our
operations. '

We are in the process of implementing new information systems to eventually replace our
current systems, which are largely based on legacy systems that were created when we were a
part of Hewlett-Packard. As a part of this effort, we are implementing new enterprise resource
planning software and other software applications to manage our business operations. We may
not be successful in implementing these new systems and transitioning data. In the quarter ended
October 31, 2002, following the first phase of our enterprise resource planning software
implementation, we were still experiencing some difficulties in providing customer quotes and in
acknowledging and shipping customer orders. Although we believe that we have identified, to a
large extent, the problems associated with the implementation and that the system is now
stabilizing, new problems could arise that we have not foreseen. During 2003, we expect to
implement a new customer support information system and some additional functionality to our
enterprise resource planning software. If further disruptions occur in the current implementation
or the implementation of the additional system and functionality in 2003, our operations could be
interrupted. Such disruptions could adversely impact our ability to do the following in a timely
manner: provide quotes, take customer orders, ship products, provide services and support to our
customers, bill and track our customers, fulfill contractual obligations and otherwise run our
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business. As a result, our financial position, results of operations, cash flows and stock price
could be adversely affected. In addition, our future revenue and profit projections could be
inaccurate if we have misjudged the realization ‘of potentlal future savings from the new systems

Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results may cause wlmmlaty m the pmce of our
common stock and the senior convertible debentures.

Given the nature of the markets in which we participate, we cannot r’eliably predict future
revenue and profitability. Our quarterly sales and operating results have become highly dependent
on the.volume and timing of orders received during the quarter, which are difficult to forecast.

. Throughout 2002, the continued low levels of orders significantly affected our ability to efficiently
plan production and inventory levels, which led to. fluctuations in operating results. In addition, a
significant portion of our operating expenses is relatively fixed in nature due,to our significant
sales, research and development and manufacturing costs. If we cannot adjust spending quickly.
enough to compensate for a revenue shortfall, this may magnify the adverse impact of such
revenue shortfall on our results of operatlons Fluctuations in our operatmg results may cause
volatility in the price of our common stock and the debentures

If we d@- not introduce successful new products and services in a timely manner, our
products and services will become obsolete, and awr @pemtmg results will suffer.

We generally sell our products in industries that are characterlzed by rapid technologlcal
changes, frequent new ‘product and service introductions and changlng industry standards.
Without the. tlmely introduction of new products, services and enhancements, our products and
services will become technologlcaﬂy obsolete over time, in which case our revenue and operating
results would suffer. The success of our new product and service offerings will depend on several
factors, including our ability to:

° properly 1dent1fy customer needs,

° 1nnovate and develop new technologles services and apphcatlons

° successfully commercialize new _technologles in a timely manner;

° manufacture and deliver our products in sufﬁment volumes oni’ mme

e :‘dxfferentlate our offermgs from our competitors’ offermgs :

¢ price our products competltlvely, and

° anticipate our, competltors development of new products services or technologlcal

1nn0vap10ns

Econcmw, political and other risks associated with mternwtwnal sales and operatwns
could adversely. affect our resulis of operaiions. :

Because we sell our products worldwide, our business is subject to-risks associated with
doing business internationally. We anticipate that revenue from international operations will
continue to represent a substantial portion of our total revenue. In addition, many of our
manufacturing facilities and suppliers are located outside the U.S.- Accordingly, our future results
could be harmed by a variety of factors, including:

° interruption to transportatien flows for delivery of parts. to us and finished goods to our
customers; ‘
° ‘changes in foreign currency exchange rates; ‘

o changes in a specific country’s or region’s political or economic condmons

o trade protection measures. and import or export licensing requirements;
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e negative consequences from changes in tax laws;

¢ difficulty in staffing avnd managing widespread operations;
¢ differing labor regulations;

¢ differing protection of intellectual property; and

* unexpected changes in regulatory requirements.

The current U.S. and international response to terrorism could exacerbate these risks. For
example, there may be an increased risk of political unrest in regions such as Southeast Asia,
where we have significant manufacturing operations. This could disrupt our ability to manufacture
products or import parts as well as cause interruptions and/or delays in our ability to transport
preducts to our customers or parts to other locations to continue the manufacturing and assembly
processes. Any such delay or interruption could have an adverse effect on our results of
operations. ’

QOur business will suffer if we are not able to retain and hire key personnel.

Our future success depends partly on the continued service of our key research, engineering,
sales, marketing, manufacturing, executive and administrative personnel. If we fail to retain and
hire a sufficient number of these personnel, we will not be able to maintain or expand our
business. Our decision to continue temporary pay cuts in 2002 and to eliminate pay increases for
2002 where legally permissible, along with the scaled-down pay increase program for 2003, may
harm our long-term ability to retain and hire key personnel. Although the labor market has ‘
changed dramatically within the past two years, and our attrition rate has remained low, there is
still intense competition for certain highly technical specialties in geographic areas where we
continue to recruit.

Our acguisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures may result in financial
results that are different than expected.

In the normal course of business, we frequently engage in discussions with third parties
relating to possible acquisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures. As a result of
such transactions, our financial results may differ from the investment community’s expectations
in a given guarter. In addition, acquisitions and strategic alliances may require us to integrate a
different company culture, management team and business infrastructure. We may have difficulty
developing, manufacturing and marketing the products of a newly-acquired company in a way that
enhances the performance of our combined businesses or product lines to realize the value from
expected synergies. Depending on the size and complexity of an acquisition, our successful
integration of the entity depends on a variety of factors, including:

s the retention of key employees;
» the management of facilities and employees in different geographic areas;
- the retention of key customers; and

¢ the integration or coordination of different research and development, product manufactur-
ing and sales programs and facilities.

A successful divestiture depends on various factors, including our ability to:
¢ effectively transfer liabilities, contracts, facilities and employees to the purchaser;

e identify and separate the intellectual property to be diveéted from the intellectual property
that we wish to keep; and

o reduce fixed costs previously associated with the divested assets or business.
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Any additional impairment of the value of purchased assets and goodwﬂl could have a
significant negative impact on our future operating results.:

' In addition, if customers of the divested business do not receive the same level of service
from the new owners, this may adversely affect our other businesses to the extent that these
customers.also purchase other Agilent products. All of these efforts require varying levels of
management resources, which may divert our attention from other business operations. Further,.if
market conditions or other factors lead us to change our strategic direction, we may not realize
the expected value from such transactions. If we do not realize the expected benefits or synergies
of such transactions, our consolidated financial position, results of operations,.cash flows and
-stock price could be negatively impacted.

If sales of custom integrated circuils to Hewletl-Packard decline, our semiconductor
products revenue will suffer, and we are limited in our ability to sell these integraled
circuits lo other companies. : : .

Hlstoncally, our semicoriductor products business has sold custom products to Hewlett-
Packard and has engaged-in product development efforts with divisions of Hewlett-Packard. For
the twelve months ended October 31, 2002, shipments from our semiconductor products group to
Hewlett-Packard accounted for approximately 8 percent of our total shlpments and approximately
33 percent of our semlconductor products business’ shipments.
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We have a license agreement with Hewlett-Packard that covers integrated circuit technology
used in custom integra‘p'ed circuits for Hewlett-Packard’s printers, scanners and computers. The
license agreement provides that, until November 2002 in some cases and until November 2009 in -
other cases, we are prohibited, with some exceptions, from using this integrated circuit technology
for the development and sale of integrated circuits for use in inkjet products, printer products
(including printer supplies, accessories and components), document scanners and computmg
products to third parties other than Hewlett-Packard.

Although we have entered into a supply agreement for the sale to Hewlett-Packard of custom
integrated circuits used in printers, scanners and computers, the agreement does not require
Hewlett-Packard to purchase a minimum amount of product from us. In the event that Hewlett-
Packard reduces its purchases of our custom integrated circuits, we would be unable to address
this reduction through sales of these kinds of integrated circuits for these types of products to
other customers. : ‘

Environmental contamination ﬁrom past operations could subject us to unreimbursed costs
and could harm on-site operations and the future use and value of the properties mwived
and envirenmental conlamination caused by ongoing operations could subject us to
substantial liabilities in the future.

Some of our properties are undergoing remediation by Hewlett-Packard for subsurface
contaminations that were known at the time of our separation from Hewlett-Packard. Hewlett-
Packard has agreed to retain the liability for this subsurface contamination, perform the required
remediation and indemnify us with respect to claims arising out of that contamination. The
determination -of the existence and cost of any additional contamination caused by us could
involve costly and time-consuming negotiations'and litigation. In addition; Hewlett-Packard will
have access to our properties to perform remediation. While Hewlett-Packard has agreed to
minimize interference with on-site operations at those properties, remediation activities and
subsurface contamination may require us to incur unreimbursed costs and could harm on-site
operations and the future use and value of the properties. We cannot be sure that Hewlett-
Packard will continue to fulfill its indemnification or remediation obligations.

We have agreed to indemnify Hewlett-Packard for any liability associated with contamination
from past operations at all other properties transferred from Hewlett-Packard to us other than
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those properties currently undergoing remediation by Hewlett-Packard. While we are not aware of
any material liabilities associated with any potential subsurface contamination at any of those
properties, subsurface contamination may exist, and we may be exposed to material liability as a
result of the existence of that contamination.

QOur semiconductor and other manufacturing processes involve the use of substances
regulated under various international, federal, state and local laws governing the environment. We
may be subject to liabilities for environmental contamination, and these liabilities may be
substantial. Although our policy is to apply strict standards for environmental protection at our
sites inside and outside the U.S., even if the sites outside the U.S. are not subject to regulations
imposed by foreign governments, we may not be aware of all conditions that could subject us to
liability.

Qur customers and we are subject to various governmental regulaiions, compliance with
which may cause us to incur significant expenses, and iff we fail io maintain salisfactory
compliance with certain regulations, we may be forced to recall products and cease their
manufacture and distribution, and we could be subject to civil or criminal penalfies.

Cur businesses are subject to various significant international, federal, state and local
regulations, including but not limited to health and safety, packaging, product content, labor and
import/export regulations. These regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to
become more stringent over time. We may be required to incur significant expenses to comply
with these regulations or to remedy violations of these regulations. Any failure by us to comply
with applicable government regulations could also result in cessation of our operations or
portions of our operations, product recalls or impositions of fines and restrictions on our ability
to carry on or expand our operations. In addition, because many of our products are regulated or
sold into regulated industries, we must comply with additional regulations in marketing our
products.

Our products and operations are also often subject to the rules of industrial standards bodies,
like the International Standards Organization, as well as regulation of other agencies such as the
U.S. Federal Communications Commission. We also must comply with work safety rules. If we fail
to adequately address any of these regulations, our businesses could be harmed.

Scme of our chemical analysis products are used in conjunction with chemicals whose
manufacture, processing, distribution and notification requirements are regulated by the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency under the Toxic Substances Control Act, and by regulatory
bodies in other countries with laws similar to the Toxic Substances Control Act. We must conform
the manufacture, processing, distribution of and notification about these chemicals to these laws
and adapt to regulatory requirements in all countries as these requirements change. If we fail to
comply with these requirements in the manufacture or distribution of our proeducts, then we could
be made to pay civil penalties, face criminal prosecution and, in some cases, be prohibited from
distributing our products in commerce until the products or component substances are brought
intc compliance.

We are subject to lows and regulations governing government contracts, and our failure to
address these laws and regulalions or comply with government contracts could harm our
business by leading to a reductiorn in revenue associaled with these customers. -

We have agreements relating to the sale of our products to government entities and, as a
result, we are subject to various statutes and regulations that apply to companies doing business
with the government. Our sales to U.S. government agencies and contractors are approximately
5 percent of our total sales. The laws governing government contracts differ from the laws
governing private contracts. For example, many government contracts contain pricing terms and
conditions that are not applicable to private contracts. We are also subject to investigation for
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compliance with the regulations governing government contracts. A failure to comply with -these
regulations might result in suspension of these contracts, or administrative penalties.

Third parties may claim that we are infringing their intellectual property, and we could
syffer significant litigation or licensing expenses:or be preventéd from selling products. .

While we do not believe that any of our products infringe the valid intellectual property rights
of third parties, we may be unaware of intellectual property rights of others that may cover some
of our technology, products or semces Any litigation regardlng patents or other mtellectual
property could be costly and time-consuming and could divert our management and key personnel
from our business operations. The complexity of the technology involved and the uncertainty of
intellectual property litigation increase these.risks. Claims of intellectual property infringement
might also-require us to-enter into,costly license agreements. However,.we may not be able to
obtain license agreements on terms acceptable to us,;or at all. We.also- may be subject to
significant damages or injunctions against development and sale of certain of our products.

~ We often rely on licenses of 1nte11ectual property useful for ‘our busmesses We cannot ensure
that these licenses w111 be available in the future on favorablé terms or at all: In addition, our -,
position with respect to the negotlatlon of litenses. has changed as a result of our separation from ~‘~,m:,ags
Hewlett—Packard In the past, as a part of Hewlett Packard we benefited from our access to
Hewlett-Packard’s entire intellectual’ property portfolio when assertlng counterclaims and
negotiating cross-licenses with third parties. Our current patent croés-license agreement with
Hewlett-Packard gives us only a limited right to, sublicense a portion of Hewlett-Packard’s
intellectual property portfolio. Accordingly, we may be unable to obtain agreements on terms as
favorable as we may have been able to obtain if we could have sublicensed Hewlett-Packard’s
entire intellectual property portfolio. Nothing restricts Hewlett-Packard from competing with us
other-than some restrictions on the use of patents licensed to Hewlett-Packard by us.

Third parties may mﬁmge our mtellecmul pmperw, and we may expemd sagmﬁc«wmt
< resources enforcing our rights or suffer competitive injury.

Our success depends in large part on our propiietary technologj. We rely on a combination of
patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, confidentiality provisions and licensing arrange-
ments to establish and protect our proprietary rights. If we fail to successfully enforce our
intellectual property rights, our competltlve position could suffer, which could harm our operating
. results.

Our pending patent and trademark registration applications may not be allowed, or
competitors may challenge the validity or scope of our patents or trademark registrations. In
addition, our patents may not provide us a significant competitive advantage.

We may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and police our intellectual
property rights. We may not be able to detect infringement and our competitive position may be
harmed before we do so. In addition, competitors may design around our technology or develop
competing technologies. Intellectual property rights may also be unavailable or limited in some
foreign countries, which could make it easier for competitors to capture market share.
Furthermore, some intellectual property rights are licensed to other compames, allowing them to
'compete with us using that intellectual property.

If we suffer loss to our factom’es, Jacilities or distribution system due to catastrophe, our -
operalions could be seriously harmed.

Our factories, facilities and distribution system are subject to catastrophic loss due to fire,
flood, terrorism or other natural or man-made disasters. In particular, sevéral of our facilities
could be subject to a catastrophic loss caused by earthquake due to their locations. Our
production facilities, headquarters and Agilent Technologies Laboratories in California, and our
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production facilities in Washington and Japan, are all located in areas with above average seismic
activity. If any of these facilities were to experience a catastrophic loss, it could disrupt our
operations, delay production, shipments and revenue and result in large expenses to repair or
replace the facility. Although we carry insurance for property damage and business interruption,
we do not carry insurance or financial reserves for interruptions or potential losses arising from
earthquakes or terrorism.

If we are required to account for options under our employee stock plans as a
compensation expense, our net income and earnings per share would be significantly
reduced. ‘

There has been an increasing public debate about the proper accounting treatment for
employee stock options. Currently we record compensation expense only in connection with
option grants that have an exercise price below fair market value. For option grants that have an
exercise price at or in excess of fair market value we calculate compensation expense and disclose
the impact on net (loss) earnings and net (loss) earnings per share in a footnote to the
consolidated financial statements. It is possible that future laws and regulations will require us to
record the fair market value of all stock options as compensation expense in our consolidated
statement of operations. Note 14, “Stock-Based Compensation,” of the consolidated financial
statements reflects the impact that such a change in accounting treatment would have had on our
net (loss) income and (loss) earnings per share if it had been in effect during the past three years.

If our operating results do not improve in the long-term we may be required to establish a
valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets.

We evaluate whether our deferred tax assets can be realized and assess the need for a
valuation allowance on an ongoing basis. Realization of our net deferred tax assets is dependent
on our ability to generate future taxable income. A valuation allowance would be recorded if it
were more likely than not that some or all of our deferred tax assets would not be realized before
they expire. If we establish a valuation allowance we might record a tax expense in our statement
of operations which would have an adverse impact on our net income.
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STATEMENT. OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

Agilent Technologies’.management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity
of the éonsolidated financial statements and other financial information presented in this report.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. and reflect the effects of certain estimates
and Judgments made by management.

- Management maintains an effective system of mternal control that is designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly recorded and
executed. in accordance with management’s authorization. The system is continuously monitored
by direct management review and by internal auditors who conduct audits throughout the
company. We select and train qualified people who are provided with and expected to adhere to
Agilent Technologies’ standards of business conduct. These standards, which set forth strong .
principles of business ethics and conduct, are a key element of our control system.
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Our consohdated ﬁnanmal statements have been audited by PrlcewaterhouseCoopers LLP,

’ independent accountants. Their audits were conducted in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the U.S., and included a review of financial controls and tests of accounting
records and procedures as they considered necessary in the circumstances.

The Audit and Finance C_Qmmittee of the Board of Directors, which consists of outside
directors, meets regularly with management, the internal auditors and the independent
accountants to review accounting, reporting, auditing and internal control matters. The committee
has direct and private access to both the internal auditors and the independent accountants.

Edward W. Barnholt , ‘ : Adrian T. Dillon
Chatrman of the Board of Directors, President Executive Vice President and
and Chief Executive Officer ' Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Agilent Technologies, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated
statements of operations, cash flows and stockholders’ equity present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Agilent Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries at October 31,
2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended October 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for cur opinion.

As discussed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” and changed its method of revenue recognition as of November 1, 2000.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
November 18, 2002
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000

(in millions, except per
share amounts)

Net revenue:

Products ........................ U $5234 $7,485 $8,300
Servicesand other ...... ... ... . . 776 . - 911 - 1,061
Total Net revenue ........... ... vuirinenrnneann.s e 6,010 8,396 9,361
Costs and expenses: . . . . . . v
Cost of Products ... ... i . 3,244 4432 4,046
Costof servicesand other .............. ... ... ... ...l PN - 450 . ._458 540
Total costs............. PP R -3,694- 4,890 4,586
Research and development..................... P P 1,169 . 1,280 1,065 N ’
Selling, general and administrative ........... .. .. ... . . i 2,754 3,004 2,786 ',;;fff'
Total costs and exXpenses ................. ... i 7,617 9,174 8,437. F:iﬂ‘;ncials
(Loss) earnings from operations .................... e (1,607 (778) 924
Other income (expense), net ........... SR 60 301 94
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before taxes....................... ‘(1,547) a7 1,018
(Benefit) provision for taxes................ o e - (525) ((8Y)] 346
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations. ... ..............c..oiiiiieaiil.! CU(1,022)  T(406) 672
Earnings from discontinued operations (net of taxes of $15 million and . )
$61 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively)................... [ - 6 85
(Loss) gain from sale of discontinued operations (net of tax benefit of $6 million .
and expense of $422 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively) ................. (10) 646 -
(Loss) earnings before cumulative effect of accounting changes................. (1,032) 246 757
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133 (net of tax benefit of $16 million). .. Y >4 N
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101 (net of tax benefit of $27 million) ... .... — 47 -
Net (1085) BATTUIES . .. .o o ece ottt $(1,082) $ 174 § 757
Net (loss) earnings per share — Basic: . 4 ' ,
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations.................. .0 ........... . $(2.20) %089 $ 1.49
- Earnings from discontinued operations, net ............................ cee - 0.01 .19
(Loss) gain from sale of discontinued operations, net.......... P ©(0.02) 141 -
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net ......... .. .. ... ... ... ... - (0.05) -
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net..............0c.oiiiaa e, < - (0.10) =
Net (1088) €arNINGS .. .. ..ottt ettt e PP $(222) $ 038 § 168
Net (loss) earnings per share — Diluted: . ‘ ' o : :
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations.................... e $ (2.20) $(0.89) $ 1.48
Earnings from discontinued operations, net ...... B R - 0.01 0.18
(Loss) gain from sale of discontinued operations, net..... S - (0.02) 141 -
Cumulatiye effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net ........... P ' - (0.05) -
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net. .. ... P . - (0.10) ~
Net (10SS) €ATTUNGS . oo\ ee et RERATp : $ (2.22) $ 038 $ 1.66
Weighted average shares used in computing net (loss) earnings per share: ‘ - .
Basic ..... R A P 465 458 449

Diluted. . ... e 465 - 458 465

The accompanying notes are -an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

October 31,
2002 2001

(in millions,
except par value
and share data)

ASSETS
Current assets: .
Cash and cash equivalents. .. ... ... eeenn, $1,844 $1,170 -
Accounts receivable, net. .. .. ... . e 1,118 977
LGNS 1L ¥ 1,184 1,491
* Net investment in 1ease TeCeivable. ... ... e e 1 237
Current deferred tax aSSetS. . . ..ot i e 462 494
Other CUurTent aSSetS . . ... i et e e e e e 271 430
Total CUITENE ASSeTS . . ..ot vttt et e 4,880 4,799
Property, plant and equipment, net ............ .. ... i 1,679 1,848
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net ......... .. ... . . . il 685 1,070
Long-term deferred tax assets .. ......... ittt e 635 10
OB RET BSOS . . oottt e e e e 424 259
TOtal ASSEES . .o\ttt $8,203 $7,986

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable ............ .. ... ... e $ 306 $ 392
Employee compensation and benefits .......... ... ... ... . . e 733 576
Deferred TeVEIIUIE . . ...\ttt ittt et e e et e e 244 279
Income and other taxes payable............... O 325 173
Other accrued liabilities . ... ... . i i 574 582
Total current liabilities ... ... ... .. . . e 2,181 2,002
Senior convertible debentures ............ .. 1,150 -
Other liabilities . . . ... ... e 245 325
Total liabilities .. ........ . o e 3,576 2,327
Commitments and contingencies ............. .. i - -

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 125 million shares authorized; none issued
and outstanding . ....... ... - -

Common stock; $0.01 par value; 2 billion shares authorized; 467 million
shares at October 31, 2002 and 461 million shares at October 31, 2001

issued and outstanding. . .......... . 5 5
Additional paid-in capital ......... ... . . e 4,872 4,723
Retained (deficit) earnings. .. .. ... ... .. e (101) 931
Accumulated comprehensive 10Ss......... ... .o (149) —

Total stockholders’ equity ... ... ... .. . i 4,627 5,659

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .......... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... $8,203  $7,986

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000
(in millions)

Cash flows from operating acmvmes ‘ i
(Loss) earnings from continuing operatlons ...................... e Lo $(1,022) $ (478) 672

Adjustments to reconcile (loss) earnings from continuing operatlons to net
cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. .............. ... . ... ..o AT 735 734 460
Inventory-related charges ................ P T . 40 459 70
Deferred tAXES . ... .......'ouir e R o (664) (94) (69
Non-cash restructuring and asset analrrnent charges ....... [ ' 204 161 o 8
Retlrement plans curtailment gain . .......... .. ... . .. oo (19 - ' -
Net gain on divestitures and sale of assets .......................... .. - C(18).. . (44T (152)
Adoption of SFAS No. 133 . .. ... i - 41 - Apnual
Changes in assets and liabilities: , ‘ © | Repoit
Accounts receivable .................. e S coo (139) 933 ©(897) | Fingncials
Inventory . ... .. P S ‘278 - (373) (431)
Accounts payable. .............. .. ........ ..... e L (89) (480) - 356
Employee compensation and benefits ... .. .. . e - 89 - (145). - 149
Income taxes......... PR, S 137+ (472) 235
Other current assets and liabilities............... S . 16 8 . 4
Other long-term assets and liabilities................ U Co(133) - 55 - (79
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities ........... e (585) (1 14) - 536
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘ ‘ T o
Investments in property, plant and equ1pment N P ©(301) (881) (803)
Dispositions of property, plant and equipment ................... e - 633 333
Proceeds from (net investment in) lease receivable ....... ... PP 237 (289) -
Sale of equity investments............ e e ‘ -, 74 .60
Purchase of equity iNVESTIMENtS . . ... ..\t ie et e T3y @n . 32
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired ......... e e ' (15}’ (904_)‘: ©(634)
" Proceeds from dispositions ........ e 31 13 -
‘Other, net ...................... R e . = T8 14
Net cash used in investing activities......................... .. e (71 (1,365j (1,062)
Cash flows from financing activitiés: ‘ } .
IPO proceeds. . ... .. i e e e — - 2,068
IPO proceeds transferred to Hewlett—Packard ........ e - - (2,068)
Issuance of senior convertible debentures, net of issuance costs .......... 1,123 — -
Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans .. .............. L 121 150 . 84
Net (payments to) proceeds from notes payable and short-term borrowings €N T (113) 110
Financing from Hewlett-Packard .......... ... ... .. ... .. ..., L - — 1,081
Net cash provided by ﬁnancing activities ................ P 1,243 37 1,275
Net proceeds and cash provided by discontinued operations.............. e 87 1,616 247
Change in cash and cash equivalents............................. e ‘ 674 174 C 996
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of VEATr . e Lo L1170 996 —
Cash and cash equivalents at -end of year ......... e e $ 1,844 § 1,170 $ 996

The accompanying notesrare an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. .
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance as of October 31, 1999 ...
Components of comprehensive
income:
Netearnings ..................
Unrealized loss on investment
(net of tax benefit of
$3 million)..................

Total comprehensive income

Shares issued in the IPO .........
Proceeds from IPO transferred to
Hewlett-Packard ...............
Shares issued for employee benefit
plans and other ...............
Cash funding from Hewlett-
Packard ......................
Transfer of net assets to Hewlett-
Packard ......................

Balance as of October 31, 2000 ...
Components of comprehensive
income:
Net earnings ..................
Reclassification adjustment
relating to warrants (net of
tax expense of $12 million). ..
Reclassification adjustment
relating to derivatives (net of
tax expense of $3 million). ...
SFAS No. 133 cumulative
transition adjustment ........
Change in unrealized loss on
investment (net of tax benefit
of $13 million) ..............
Unrealized gain on derivatives
(net of tax expense of
$4 million)..................

Total comprehensive income

Shares issued for employee benefit
plans and other ...............

Issuance of common shares and
options for Acquisitions........

Other additional paid in capital. ..
Balance as of October 31, 2001 ...

Common Stock

Number Additional  Retained Accumulated
of Par Paid-in (Deficit) Comprehensive
Shares Value Capital Earnings Loss Total
(in millions, except number of shares in thousands)
380,000 $4 $3378 $ — $ - $ 3,382
- - —_ 757 - 757
- - - - (3) (%)
762
72,000 1 2,067 ~ - 2,068
- €y (2,067) ~ ~ (2,068)
1,976 1 125 - — 126
- - 1,858 - - 1,858
- - (853) - - (853)
453,976 5 4,508 757 G 5,265
— - — 174 — 174
- ~ —~ - 22 22
- - - = (6) (6)
- - - - 6 6
— — - — (24) (24)
- - —~ - 7 7
179
5,604 - 150 - — 150
1,461 - 70 - - 70
- - (5) - - (5
461,031 5 4,723 931 - 5,659
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Common Stock .

Nujlfnber . Additional jReta.méd» Accumulated
of . Par - -+ Paid-in (Deficit) Comprehensive
Shares ~ Value Capital Earnings Loss

(in millions, except number of shares in thousands) -

Components of comprehensive
" loss: | L . - e , .
Net10SS . ....oooveiionn. - = (1L,032) . — (1,032)
‘Reclassification adjustment ‘ ‘ '
relating to derivatives (net
of tax expense of

$4 million) ... ... S R - - . — NG ‘ ' (7)
SFAS No. 133 cumulative ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ .

transition adjustment . . .. L - - - - (6) ©)
Foreign currency translation- = - — = - = 7 7

Change in unrealized gain
on investment (net of tax : S : R _
expense of $1 million). .., - — = - (1) . (1)
Unrealized gain on ' ‘ ‘ ‘
derivatives (net of tax

St
Fzpett
Fnanedaie

expense of $2 million).... - = - - : 4 4
Minimum pension liability _
adjustment .............. e - - te = (146) (146)
Total comprehensive ) ) o ‘ ‘
Closs... e ‘ T c S (118D
Shares issued for employee ~ - L . ‘ R o
benefit plans and other..... . 5,893 - . 145 . - — 145
Other additional pald in _ ‘
capital ............... L. o ‘ : 4 ‘ S 4

&
(9]

Balance as of October 31, 2002 467,024

$4872 © $ (101) - $(149) 8 4,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNGLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Overview and Basis of Presentation

Agilent Technologies, Inc. (“we,” “Agilent” or the “Company”), incorporated in Delaware in
May 1999, is a global diversified technology organization that provides enabling solutions to
technology markets within the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis
industries. Prior to our initial public offering of 16 percent of our stock in November 18999, we
were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hewlett-Packard Company (“Hewlett-Packard”). Hewlett-
Packard distributed the remaining 84 percent of our stock to its stockholders on June 2, 2000 in
the form of a stock dividend. '

On August 1, 2001 we completed the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Koninklijke
Philips Electronics, N.V. The results of the healthcare solutions business are presented as
discontinued operations for all periods in the consolidated financial statements included herein.
See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations”.

QOur fiscal year end is October 31. Unless otherwise stated, all years and dates refer to our
fiscal year.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation. The accompanying financial data has been prepared by us pursuant
to the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC’). Amounts in
the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended October 31, 2001 and
October 31, 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in 2002.

Principles of consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the company and our wholly- and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated. ‘

Use of esttmates. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires that management make a number of estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in
our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Management bases its estimates on
historical experience and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions that may
impact the Company in the future, actual results may be different from the estimates.

Revenue recognition. Revenue from product sales, net of trade discounts and allowances, is
recognized once delivery has occurred provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Delivery is
considered to have occurred when title and risk of loss have transferred to the customer. Revenue
is reduced for estimated product returns and distributor price protection, when appropriate. For
sales that include customer-specified acceptance criteria, revenue is recognized after the
acceptance criteria have been met. For products that include installation, if the installation meets
the criteria to be considered a separate element, product revenue is recognized upon delivery, and
recognition of installation revenue is delayed until the installation is complete. Otherwise, neither
the product nor the installation revenue is recognized until the installation is complete. Provisions
are established for estimated costs that may be incurred for product warranties. Revenue from
services is recognized over the contractual period or as services are rendered and accepted by the
customer.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Shipping and handling costs. Our shipping and handling costs charged to customers are
included in netrevenue and the associated expense is recorded in total costs for all periods
presented.

Deferred revenue. Deferred revenue is prlmarlly made up of service, support and
maintenance agreements, and advanced billings and customer deposits.

Goodwill and purchased intangible assets.  Goodwill and purchased intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed using the straight-line
method over the economic lives of the respective assets, generally three to ten years. Goodwill
resulting from acquisitions completed after June 30, 2001 has not been amortized, in accordance
with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142,
“Goodwﬂl and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142"),

Advertising. Advertising costs are expensed as 1ncurred and amounted to $81 million in
2002, $115 million in 2001 and $178 million in 2000. .

Taxes on-earnings. Income tax expense or benefit is based on earnings or loss before taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized principally for the expected. tax consequences of
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts.
Prior to June 3, 2000, our operating results were included in Hewlett-Packard’s consolidated
U.S. and state income tax returns and in tax returns of certain Hewlett-Packard forelgn
subsidiaries.

Net (loss) earnings per share. Basic net (loss) earnings per share is computed by dividing
net (loss) earnings — the numerator — by 'the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding — the denominator — during the period excluding the dilutive effect of stock options
and other employee stock plans. Diluted net (loss) earnings per share gives effect to all potentially
dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period. In computing diluted net (loss)
earnings per share, the average stock price for the period is used in determining the number of
shares assumed to be purchased from the proceeds of stock option exercises. Diluted net (loss)
earnings per share for 2002 and 2001 excludes the potentlally dilutive effect of common stock
equivalents as their effect is antidilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents. We. classify inv_estments as cash equivalents if their original
maturity is three months or less. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair
value. ' ‘

Fair value of financial instruments. The carrying values of certain of our company’s
financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accrued compensation and other
accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of their short maturities. The fair values of
investments are determined using quoted market prices for those securities or similar financial
instruments.

Concentration of credzt risk. We sell the majority of our products through our direct sales
force. No single customer accounted for 10 percent or more of the combined accounts receivable
balance at October 31, 2002 and 2001. Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is generally
diversified due to the large number of entities comprising our customer base and their dispersion
across many different industries ‘and geographies. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our
customers’ financial conditions, and requlre collateral, such as letters of credit and bank
guarantees, in certain c1rcumstances

Derivative instruments. We enter into foreign exchange contracts, primarily forward
contracts and purchased options, to hedge exposures to changes in foreign currency exchange
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

rates. These contracts are designated at inception as hedges of the related foreign currency
exposures, which include committed and anticipated intercompany transactions and assets and
liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than functional currency. To achieve hedge
accounting, contracts must reduce the foreign currency exchange rate risk otherwise inherent in
the amount and duration of the hedged exposures and comply with established risk management
policies; hedging contracts generally mature within twelve months. We do not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

When hedging anticipated intercompany cash flow exposure, foreign exchange contract
expirations are set so as to occur in the same period that the goods are expected to be sold to
third parties, allowing realized gains and losses on the contracts to be recognized into cost of
goods |sold. When hedging balance sheet exposure, gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts
are recognized in other income (expense), net in the same period as the occurrence of gains and
losses|on remeasurement of the non-functicnal currency denominated assets and liabilities. The
gains and losses, which have not been material, are included in cash flows from operating
activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

We may also, from time to time, acquire warrants to purchase securities of other companies
as part of strategic relationships.

Inventory. Inventory is valued at standard cost which approximates actual cost computed
on a first-in, first-out basis, not in excess of market value.

Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Additions, improvements and major renewals are capitalized; mainte-
nance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. When assets are retired or disposed
of, the assets and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from our
general ledger and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations. Buildings and
improvements are depreciated over fifteen to forty years and machinery and equipment over three
to ten|years. The straight-line method of depreciation was adopted for all property, plant and
equipment placed into service after November 1, 2001. The effect of this change on the net loss for
the year was insignificant. For property, plant and equipment placed into service prior to
November 1, 2001, depreciation is provided using accelerated methods, principally over fifteen to
forty years for buildings and improvements and three to ten years for machinery and equipment,
including equipment leased to customers under operating leases. Depreciation of leasehold
improvements is provided using the straight-line method over the life of the asset or the term of
the lease, whichever is shorter.

Capitalized software. We capitalize certain internal and external costs incurred to acquire
or create internal use software in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Capitalized software
is included in property, plant and equipment under machinery and equipment and is amortized
over its useful life when development is complete.

Impairment of long-lived assets. We continually monitor events and changes in circum-
stances that could indicate carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including intangible assets, may
not be recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances occur, we assess the
recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value of such assets will be
recovered through undiscounted expected future cash flows. If the total of the future cash flows is
less than the carrying amount of those assets, we recognize an impairment loss based on the
excess| of the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets. See Note 3, “New Accounting
Pronouncements” for further discussion.
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» AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ (Continued)

Foreign currency translation. Effective November 1, 2001, we have determined that the
functional currency for many of our subsidiaries outside the U.S. has changed from the U.S. dollar
to local currency based on the criteria of SFAS No. 52 “Foreign Currency Translation”. This
change-did not have a material impact'on our consolidated financial posmon as of November 1,
2001. For those subsidiaries that operate in a local currency functional environment, all assets
and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars using current excharige rates; revenue and expenses
are translated using average exchange rates in efféct during each period. Resulting translation
adjustments are reported as a separate component of accumulated comprehensive loss in
stockholders’ equity. ‘

For those subsidiaries that operate in a U.S. dollar functional environment, foreign’ currency
assets and liabilities are remeasured into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates except for
inventory, property, plant and equipment, other assets and deferred revenue, which are’
remeasured at historical exchange rates. Revenue and expenses are generally translated at average
exchange rates in effect during each period, except for those expenses related to balance sheet
amounts that are remeasured at historical exchange rates. Gams or losses from foreign currency
remeasurement are included in consohdated net (loss) earnmgs

For our subsidiaries whlch are local currency functional, the effect of foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations during 2002 on our consolidated cash and cash equivalents balance
was not material.

3. New Accounting Proncuncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 142 under
which goodwill will no longer be amortized but reviewed annually (or more frequently if
impairment indicators arise) for impairment. We adopted SFAS No. 142 6n November 1, 2002.
Subsequently, we are required to evaluate our existing goodwill and intangible assets and make
any necessary reclassification 1f1 order to comply with the hew criteria in SFAS No. 142. Based on
our assessment, effective in the first quarter of 2003, approxrmately $6 million of intangible assets
associated with workforce-in-place will be reclassified to goodwﬂl

As part of our assessment, we used the fair value measurement requirement, rather than the
previously required undiscounted cash flows approach, and as a result we expect to record a
transitional impairment loss from the implementation of SFAS No. 142 as a change in accounting
principle in the first quarter of 2003. The fair value of the reporting units was determined
primarily by the income approach, which estlmates the fair value based on the future. discounted
cash flows. The first step evaluation of reportmg units on a fair value basis, as required by SFAS
No. 142, indicated that an impairment exists in the commumcatlons solutions reporting unit
within our test and measurement business. The revenue forecasts of the communications solutions
reporting unit have been impacted by the prolonged economic downturn in the communications
test markets. We were required to perform the second step ana1y51s to determine the amount of
the impairment loss for the reporting unit that failed the first step test. The second step analysis
consisted of comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill, with an impairment charge resulting from any excess of
the carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting
unit's goodwill. Based upon this evaluation, the pre-tax impairment is expected to be
$268 million, approximately 44 percent of total consolidated goodwill recorded as of October 31,
2002: The adoption of SFAS No. 142-is also expected to have a material impact on our results of
operations because goodwill will no longer be amortized subsequent to the adoption of SFAS
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

No. 142. Amortization of goodwill was $326 million in 2002, $303 million in 2001 and $64 million
in 2000.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS No. 144’"). SFAS No. 144 amends existing accounting guidance on
asset impairment and provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of.
Amon% other provisions, the new rules change the criteria for classifying an asset as held-for-sale.
The standard also broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for reporting as
discontinued operations, and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations. We will
adopt SFAS No. 144 in the first quarter of 2003. We do not believe that the adoption will have a
material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In| July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, which nullifies EITF No. 94-3. SFAS No. 146
requires that a liability be recognized for restructuring costs only when the liability is incurred,
that is, when it meets the definition of a liability in the FASB’s conceptual framework. SFAS
No. 146 also establishes fair value as the objective for initial measurement of liabilities related to
exit or disposal activities and is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after
December 31, 2002, with earlier adoption encouraged. The effect of adoption is dependent on the
timing of our related restructuring activities; however, we do not believe that the adoption of
SFAS |[No. 146 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

4. Discontinued Operations

n August 1, 2001, we completed the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Koninklijke
Philips Electronics, N.V. (Philips”) pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement for a total purchase
price|of $1.7 billion. Philips paid initial proceeds of $1.6 billion to us on August 1, 2001, with
further payments following pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of
Nove} ber 17, 2000, as amended and supplemented by the Amendment and Supplemental
Agreg\ment, dated as of August 1, 2001 (collectively, the ‘““Asset Purchase Agreement’”). The total
purchase price was subject to adjustment based on the determination of the final purchased net

assets and on our performance of integration services for Philips.

ur consolidated financial statements reflect our healthcare solutions business as discontin-
ued pperations in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (““APB’’) Opinion No. 30
“Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”
(“APB No. 30”). The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of our healthcare
solutions business have been classified as discontinued, and prior periods have been restated,
including the reallocation of general overhead charges to our three remaining business segments.
We recorded an after-tax gain of $646 million in 2001 and an after-tax loss of $10 million in 2002
as a result of the sale to Philips. In 2002, adjustments were made to the gain as a result of
purchase price adjustments to reflect the final purchased net assets and additional costs that were
not |anticipated at the time of the sale.

We signed an agreement with Philips, dated as of May 15, 2002, finalizing the purchase price
adjustments from the sale. The adjustments did not result in a material adjustment to the gain on
sale. Since August 1, 2001, we received all of the $100 million withheld by Philips from the total
purchase price at the time of the sale plus adjustments for the final purchased net assets. For
incremental fees, we provided support services to Philips after August 1, 2001 and a portion of
these fees offset costs that include an element of fixed costs which are recognized in selling,
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AGILENT ’JI‘ECHN@LOGK]ES, INC. .
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —~ (Conmmned)

general and administrative expenses in 2001 and 2002. As of October 31, 2002, we have completed ‘

our contractual obligation to provide semces to Philips.

The followmg table shows the components of the gain on sale of dlscontmued operatlons

initially recorded and the subsequent ad]ustments

Gain on sale oi‘

discontinued
operations
) (in millions)
Proceeds not subject to contingeney . .......... ... . N [ $1,771
Book value of assets and liabilities sold .. . .. A e P A (495)
Book value of assets and liabilities written off .......................... (98)
Net loss from operations post-measurement date oo (58)
Costsofdlsposmon.......;...........‘.................L.i....“ ...... ' (52)
Gain on sale DefOTe TAXES . . .. ..o vve et e e 1,068
AR eS o P : (422)
Gain from sale of discontinued operatlons net of ta.xes for the year ended
October 31, 2001 ................................................... $ 646
Adjustment to gain; . . , . ‘
Cash received after satisfaction of cont1ngenc1es 1nclud1ng mterest $ 20
Purchase price adjustment......................... e e e L 44).
Information technology and other costs.. .- .. PR P S @
Retirement plan curtailment ......... e e e o 10
Loss on sale before taxes ..................... e ........... (16)
Taxbenefit.............. ... . . ... .. P R EERTERR ‘ 6]
Loss from sale.of discontinued operations, net of taxes for the year ended
October 31, 2002............. e e $.(10)

The following table shows the- results of operations of our healthcare solutions busmess in

2001 and 2000. There were no results from operation in 2002.

’ Years Ended
Qctober 31,
2001(a) 2000
i (in millions)
NEE FEVEIUE .\ ... oottt i e et e e $765  $1412
COStS and EXPEINSES ...ttt e e 747 1,283
Earnings from discontinued operations .......... e, . 18 129
Otherlncome(expense),net.....................‘.‘»....- ........ e B, 17
Earnings from discontinued operations before taxés ......................... 721 146
Provision for taxes ............... R e e 16 61
Net earnings from discontinued operations....... [P e $ 6 % 85

(a) Includes operations from November 1, 2000 to May 31, 2001, the measurement date.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

5. Acquisitions and Sale of Assets

On January 5, 2001, we acquired Objective Systems Integrators, Inc. (“OSI"”) for approxi-
mately $716 million. Of this total, $690 million was cash and the remainder represents the fair
value of options granted. Using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations” (“APB No. 16’"), the purchase price was allocated to
tangible and intangible assets including goodwiil. The original gocdwill balance of $593 million
was being amortized over three years. The net book value of goodwill associated with this
acquisition at October 31, 2002 was $234 million. At the time of the acquisition OSI was a leading
provider of next-generation operations-support-system software for communications service
providers and has become part of our test and measurement business.

In July 1999, Hewlett-Packard entered into an agreement with Yokogawa Electric Corporation
(“Yokogawa) to acquire Yokogawa’s 25 percent equity interest in Agilent Technologies Japan, Ltd.
for approximately $521 million (the “Yokogawa Purchase”). The acquisition was done in several
steps, In the initial step, which occurred in January 2000, we purchased approximately 10 percent
of Agilent Technologies Japan, Ltd. shares from Yokogawa for approximately $206 million. In the
second step, which occurred in April 2000, we purchased approximately 11 percent of additional
Agilent Technologies Japan, Ltd. shares from Yokogawa for approximately $216 million. In
January 2001, we completed the Yokogawa Purchase by purchasing the remaining 4 percent
interest for approximately $99 million. Of the total purchase price, $243 million was allocated to
tangible assets and $278 million was attributed to goodwill which was being amortized over

ten years. The remaining net book value of goodwill associated with this acquisition was

$205 [million at October 31, 2002,

In addition to the OSI acquisition and the Yokogawa Purchase, we acquired several other
companies during 2002, 2001 and 2000, which were not significant to our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. These acquisitions were accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting as defined in APB No. 16 or SFAS No. 141 depending on the date of
acquisition. The results of operations of the acquired companies were included prospectively from
the date of acquisition and the acquisition cost was allocated to the acquired tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets based on fair values at the date of acquisition. Residual
amounts were recorded as goodwill. In-process research and development write-offs have not been
significant.

Unaudited pro forma statement of operations information has not been presented because the
effects of these acquisitions were not material on either an individual or an aggregated basis.

The net book value of goodwill was $610 million at October 31, 2002 and $944 million at
October 31, 2001. Goodwill related to acquisitions completed prior to June 30, 2001 was
amortized over periods ranging from three to ten years. Effective in the first quarter of 2003,
goodwill will no longer be amortized, in accordance with our adoption SFAS No. 142. Effective in
the first quarter of 2003, approximately $6 million of workforce-in-place will be reclassified from
intangible assets to goodwill. Goodwill amortization was $326 million in 2002, $303 million in
2001 |and $64 millicn in 2000. The aggregate amount of goodwill impairment losses was

$12 million in 2002, $8 million in 2001 and insignificant in 2000. See further discussion in

Note |3,“New Accounting Proncuncements.”

The net book value of purchased other intangible assets was $75 million at October 31, 2002
and $126 million at October 31, 2001. Purchased intangible assets such as purchased technology
($59 million as of October 31, 2002), workforce-in-place ($6 million as of October 31, 2002) and
customer relationships ($10 million as of October 31, 2002) are amortized over periods from three
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to four years, Amortization of purchased intangible assets was $52 million in 2002, $41 million in
2001 and $7 million in 2000. : :

Sale of Leasing Portfolio. In the fourth quarter of 2000, we entered into an asset purchase
agreement with CIT Group Inc. (“CIT,” formerly Tyco Capital Corporation) pursuant to which we
sold them substantially all of our leasing portfolio (the “CIT Group Sale”) over the course of 2000 -
and 2001. There was no impact on our consolidated cash flows and results of operations from the
CIT Group Sale in 2002. The impact on our consolidated cash flows and results of operations of
the CIT Group Sale in the two previous years is shown below.

Year Ended Year Ended
October 31, October 31,

2001 2000

: ‘ (in millions)
Net proceeds from the CIT Group Sale.................. o, $287 $234
ProducCt TeVENUE . ... ...t e e $254 $197

Cost of products ................. P . $131 $ 83

We also entered into a vendor financing arrangement with CIT whereby CIT will provide
equipment financing and leasing services to our customers on a global basis. This agreement has
been in p.lac‘e since the fourth quarter of 2000.

In addition to the CIT Group Sale and the sale of the healthcare solutions business, we sold
assets related to portions of our businesses to third parties during 2002, 2001, and 2000. Gross
proceeds from these dispositions were $31 million in 2002, $13 million in 2001, and insignificant
in 2000. Gains from the dispositions, included in other income (expense), net, in the consolidated
statement of operations, were $15.million in 2002, $9 million in 2001, and insignificant in 2000.

6. Adoption of SAB 101

In December 1999, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™) issued Staff
‘Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” (“SAB 101”"). During
the fourth quarter of 2001, we adopted SAB 101 retroactive to the beginning of the year. The
cumulative effect of the adoption resulted in a charge to 2001 net earnings of $47 million (net of
income taxes of $27 million) or $0.10 per basic and diluted share. As a result of adopting SAB
101, delivery is considered to have occurred when title and risk of loss have transferred to the
customer. For the year ended October 31, 2001, the net impact on 2001 revenues including
amounts deferred at October 31, 2001 was an increase of $67 million of revenue and $29 million
of cost of products which were included in the cumulative effect adjustment. Pro forma amounts
for the year ended October 31, 2000 have not been presented, as the effect of the change could
not reasonably be determined.

7. Adbptiom of SFAS No. 133

Effectlve November 1, 2000 we adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedgmg Act1v1t1es,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain
" Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedgmg Activities” (““SFAS No. 133""). SFAS No. 133, as
amended, establishes accountlng and reporting standards for derivative instruments, and requires
that all derivatives be recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value of the derivative instruments are recognized in earnings or
stockholders’ equity, depending on the intended use of the instrument.
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If derivative instruments are designated and gqualify as a fair value hedge, changes in value of
the derivative are recognized in earnings in the current period, along with the offsetting gain or
loss|on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. If derivative instruments are designated
and |qualify as a cash flow hedge, changes in the value of the effective portion of the derivative
instrument are recognized in other comprehensive income, a component of stockholders’ equity.
These amounts are reclassified and recognized in earnings when either the forecasted transaction
occurs or it becomes probable the forecasted transaction will not occur. Changes in the fair value
of the ineffective portion of derivative instruments are recognized in earnings in the current
period. Ineffectiveness in 2002 and 2001 was not significant.

‘The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on November 1, 2000 resulted in a cumulative pre-tax
reduction to income of $41 million ($25 million after tax) and a pre-tax increase in other
comprehensive income of $10 milliqn.

8. (Loss) Earnings Per Share

he following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted
net (loss) earnings per share computations for the periods presented below.

For the Years Ended

October 31,
2002 2001 2000
(in millions, except per
share data)
Numerator:
(Loss) earnings from continuing operations ......................... $(1,022) $(406) $672
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of taxes................. - 6 85
L ‘ss) gain from the sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes .... (1) 646 -
(Loss) earnings before cumulative effect of changes in accounting ‘
ﬂ‘rmmples ...................................................... (1,032) 246 757
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net of taxes ............ - (25) -
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, netof taxes ................. — 47) -
Net] (10SS) @AIMINGS . ...\ttt it it $(1,032) $ 174 8757
Deno inators: _ '
Ba ic weighted average shares ......... ... .. ... .. ... 465 458 449
Potentially dilutive common stock equivalents — stock options and '
other employee stock plans........... ..., — — 6
Diluted weighted average shares ........... ... .. ... i, 465 458 455
()}tlons to purchase 73.8 million shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price
of $40 per share were outstanding in 2002, but were not included in the computation of diluted

expire no later than 2012, were still outstanding at the end of 2002. In 2001, options to purchase
63.9 million shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $46 per share were
outst nding, but were not included in the computation of diluted net earnings per share because
the 0 tions were antidilutive.

net (l%ss) earnings per share because the options were antidilutive for 2002. The options, which

senior converrlble debentures, which may be dilutive in 2003.

e Note 17, “Senior Convertible Debentures and Lines of Credit,” for a discussion of our
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9. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for income taxes was $160 million in 2002, $450 million in 2001 and $546 million
in 2000. Cash paid for interest was $36 million in 2002, $28 million in 2001 and was not material
in 2000.

Non-cash transactions ‘were primarily related to the issuance of common stock under various
employee stock plans in the amount of $23 million in 2002, $26 million in 2001 and $44 million in
2000, and acquisitions in the amount of $70 million in 2001 and $25 million in 2000.

10. Imventory

October 31,
2002 2001 Annust
‘ . (in- millions) Report
Finished goods ........ ... i S $ 377 § 400 Finncials
WOTK 1N PrOgress ..o e e e 130 239

Raw materials ... ...t .. e ... 877 - 852
| $1,184  $1,491

Inventory-related charges of $40 million, $459 million and $70 million were recorded in total
cost of products in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. We record excess and.obsolete inventory
charges for both inventory on our site as well as inventory at our contract manufacturers and
suppliers where we have non-cancelable purchase commitments. As required by the guidance in
SAB 100 inventory write-downs represent a new cost basis and therefore not a valuation
allowance.

1l. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

. QOctober 31
2002 | 2001
] (in millions)
Land .. ..o .. $ 148 §$ 148
Buildings and leasehold improvements .................. S 1,625 1,767
Machinery and eqUIPIENt . .. ......cooerore e L. 2,300 2210
Total property, plant and equipment ..................... U, e 4,073 4,125
Accumulated depreciation ........ P Y (2499 (2,277)

$ 1579 § 1,848

~ The net book value of capitalized software was $171 million at October 31, 2002 and -

$64 million at October 31, 2001. These amounts primarily relate to the development of our
website, Enterprise Resource Plarmmg (“ERP”) system and Customer Relationship Management
(*“CRM") software.

We have sold substantially all of our portfolio of operating leases to CIT. See Note 5,
“Acquisitions and Sale of Assets.” Equipment under operating leases was $10 million at
October 31, 2002 and $23 million at October 31, 2001 and was included in machinery and
equipment. Accumulated depreciation related to equipment under operating leases was $5 million
at October 31, 2002 and $4 million at October 31, 2001. ,
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The (benefit) provision for income taxes is comprised of:

Years Ended October 31,

2002 2001(z) 2000
(in millions)

12. Taxes on Earnings
U.8. federal taxes from continuing operations:

UTTEIE © oot ettt e e e e e $ - 8 22 8§77

eferred ... e (601) (105) (42)
Non-U.S. taxes from continuing operations:

L0 =) (L 142 38) 310

eferred ... ... e (113) 20 (18)
State taxes from continuing operations, net of federal benefit . . .. (63) (13) 19
Tdtal from continuing operations: ................c.oovieianan, $(525) $(114) 8346

{(2) The benefit for income taxes in 2001 includes $71 million tax benefit from operations,
$16 million tax benefit from adoption of SFAS No. 133 and $27 million tax benefit from
ad{ption of SAB 101

The significant components of deferred tax assets, for which no valuation allowance was
required, and deferred tax liabilities included on the consclidated balance sheet are:

October 31,
2002 2001
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
(in millions)

INVENLOTY . ..ottt ettt e $ 175 $ 4 $229 $ 9
Property, plant and equipment....................... 72 8 62 5
Warranty reSerVeS ...ttt 30 3 30 —
Retiree medical benefits . ............. ... ... .. ..., 51 - 54 -
Other retirement benefits . ............ .. ... .. ...... 78 44 - 44
Employee benefits, other than retirement ............. 242 9 189 4
Net operating losses and credit carryforwards......... 641 — 32 -
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries ........... - 238 - 203
Other . ... 134 33 103 24

$1,423 $339 $699 $290

t October 31, 2002, we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1,115 million
and tax credit carryforwards of approximately $245 million. The net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards will expire beginning in 2005 through 2022 if not utilized.

ax benefits of $6 million in 2002, $11 milliocn in 2001 and $16 million in 2000 associated
with jthe exercise of employee stock options were recognized in stockholders’ equity.
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The differences between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and our effective tax rate

are:
Years Ended
October 31,
2002 2001 2000

U.S. federal statutory income taxrate ..................... e 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal béneﬁt e e e e e 3.5 2.2 2.1
Lower rates in other jurisdictions, net............................ 2:1 6.1 (4.0)
Goodwill............ P DU o DT 9. (198 20
Credits . ... .. L I L L. 41 20 (05)
Other, net .......... e D (16 (65) (0.6)

Aanusl
Ranort
Fnancials

34.0% - 19.0% 34.0%

The domestic and forelgn components of (loss) earmngs from contmumg operatlons before

taxes are: :
Years Ended October 31,
2002 2001 2000
. ) . . (in millions) X
U.S. continuing-operations. .. .. .. e A L., $(1,804) $(487) $ 66
Non-U.S. continuing operations ......... P 257 (105) 952

$(1,547) $(592) $1,018

As a result of certain employment and capital investment actions undertaken by us, income
from manufacturing activities in certain countries is subject to reduced tax rates, or is wholly
. exempt from taxes, for tax years through 2010. The income tax benefits attributable to the tax
status of subsidiaries in these countries were estimated to be $33 million in 2002, $37 million in
2001 'and $41 million in 2000.

. We have not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $970 million
of non-U.S. subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings as of October 31, 2002 because we intend to
reinvest such earnings indefinitely. Where excess cash has accumulated in our non-

U.S. subsidiaries and it is advantageous for tax or foreign exchange reasons, subsidiary earnlngs
are remitted. .

18. Restructuring and Asset Impairment
Summary

We currently have two active restructuring plans — one. initiated in:the fourth quarter of 2001
(the “2001 Plan”) and the other initiated in the fourth quarter of 2002 (the “2002 Plan”) after it
became clear that the actions taken in the previous year would not be sufficient to return the
company to profitability. Both plans were designed to reduce costs and expenses in order to -
return the company to profitability without relying on an improvement in economic conditions.

Actions have been focused on segments that were impacted most severely by the changing
environment — our test and measurement and semiconductor products groups — but actions were
also taken to reduce the costs associated with support services such as finance and
administration. Cost reductions were initiated by reducing the number of properties, particularly
sales and administrative sites and by reducing our workforce within:the impacted segments.
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QOur 2001 Plan was substantially complete as of October 31, 2002. The 2002 Plan is still being
implemented — we expect to complete it no later than the first quarter of 2004.

The 2061 Plan

In|2001, as a result of the economic downturn that impacted many of the markets that we
serve, we took steps to restructure our businesses. On August 20, 2001, we annocunced a plan to
reduce our workforce by approximately 4,000, or about nine percent, by the middle of 2002. On
November 15, 2001, we enhanced and supplemented our plan by announcing a further reduction
of 4,000 jobs once we had determined that the actions contemplated in August would not be
sufficient to return us to profitability. Together these actiocns form the 2001 Plan, which was
designed to reduce costs across almost all of our administrative and support services, including
sales and marketing, and to focus our production activities on those products that we believed
would [return us to profitability, such as those in life sciences, semiconductor test and wireless
telecommunications. Our plan impacted the test and measurement group and the semiconductor
products group and had little direct impact on the life sciences and chemical analysis group
except|as the plan related to support services reductions across all of our businesses. Within the
test and measurement segment, we reduced production capacity dramatically for communications
test product lines and reduced production to some degree in general purpose and semiconductor
test product lines. Within the semiconductor products segment we reduced production capacity
significantly for product lines in networking, especially long-haul networks, and reduced
production capacity for some personal systems products. The 2001 Plan was substantially
complete as of October 31, 2002, although we will continue to make lease payments cn a number
of properties vacated as a result of this plan through at least the next 5 years.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2001 Plan through October 31, 2002 is shown in
the table below:

Impairment of
Assets,
Workforce Consolidation of Property, plant
Reduction Excess Facilities And equipment Total

(in millions)

Beginning balance at July 31,2001 .. § — $ — $ - $ -
Total charge ....................... 117 20 17 154
Cash payments..................... (65) — — (65)
Ending balance at October ?;1, 2001 .. 52 20 17 89
Total charge ....................... 175 53 129 357
Asset impairment .................. — — (146) (146)
Cashpayments..................... (210) (10) - (220)
Ending balance at October 31, 2002 .. 17 $ 63 § - $ 80

The three main components of the 2001 Plan relate to workforce reductions, consolidation of
excess facilities and impairment of property, plant and equipment.

orkforce related charges were incurred due to the 8,000-person workforce reduction; the
cuts impacted ali regions, all expense categories and most of cur segments. Research and
develgpment activities were terminated on some product development initiatives, none of which
were individually or in total significant to our future revenues or profitability. We also took action
to reduce the number of employees at production facilities that had experienced declining
demand, such as those making equipment for the long-haul wireline business.
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Our plan'to consolidate excess facilities resulted in. charges for lease termination fees and
losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements. We have exited, or plan to exit in the near future,
more than 100 production, support and sales facilities, or parts of facilities, across all regions
particularly in the U.S. and Japan, representing more than 3.6 million square feet, or about
19 percent, of our worldwide property. As of October 31, 2002, we have vacated approximately
40 percent of theseé facilities. The decision to exit individual facilities was made as a result of
specific economic conditions in certain countries and as part.of our strategy to centralize support
services and to consolidate facilities. We lease most of these buildings from third parties, and the
closures impacted all three of our segments. In most cases, we are exiting office space housing‘
sales and administrative employees. However, a small number ‘of production facilities were closed
as a result of our plans to consolidate manufacturing into fewer sites. :

Asset impairment charges relate to fixed assets and were determined using estimates of the
expected future cash flows generated from those assets. Impairments were recorded for machinery
and equipment in productlon facilities that we were closing or scaling back, such as for the long-
haul wireline busmess and for leasehold improvements in leased facilities that we planned to exit.
One production facility in Kobe, Japan accounted for approximately. $60 million of the
$129 million of asset impairment charges in 2002. In order to determine the amount of the
impairment, under the held-for-use model in accordance with SFAS:No. 121, we estimated the
cash flows that would result from our continued use of the building until we expect to vacate it
and also estimated the sales proceeds that we expected to be able to realize. The resulting
impairment was approximately 80 percent of the net book value of the fac1hty, primarily due to -
the decline 1n the local property market.

RN

We have incurred $511 million of the expenses for the 2001 Plan through October 31, 2002
$154 million in 2001 and $357 million in 2002. The most significant revision to the plan was.made
in the fourth quarter of 2002 after updating our lease termination costs and sub-lease income
assumptions as the real estate leasing market continued to declme adding a number of leased
sales offices and two owned production facilities to the list that we were planning to exit,
including the fac111ty in Kobe, Japan, described above; we incurred incremental asset impairment
costs of $94 mrlhon and lease facility costs of $36 million in relatlon to these changes. :

We have reduced our workforce by approximately 7,700 {(approximately 6,400 from involun-
tary terminations and approximately 1,300 from net attrition) as of October 31, 2002. We paid -
approximately $210 million in cash for severance payments in 2002. The cash payments were’
funded using cash generated from operations, existing working capital and credit facilities, Where
necessary.

The 2002 Plan

On August 19, 2002, we.announced our intention to further reduee our operétional costs by -
$50 million per quarter so that we might reach profitability at target revenue levels of $1.6 bjllion ‘

per quarter. We concluded that we must further reduce our breakeven point given our current

level of revenues.because the wireline and communications markets are recovering more slowly
than we anticipated. This plan primarily affects the manufacturmg and field operations servmg
the wireline markets that are components of our test and measurement group
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A summary of restructuring activity for the 2002 Plan through October 31, 2002 is shown in
the table below:

Impairment of
Assets,
Property, plant
Workforce And eguipment

!I
|

: Reduction (in millions) Total .

Beginning balance at July 31,2002 . .................. $ — $ — $ -
Total ChATEe. ..o 83 34 117
Asset impairment. . ....... ... ... . i - (34) (34)
Cash payments ............c. i (15) — (15)
Ending balance at October 31,2002 .................. 68 $ — $ 68

As part of the 2002 Plan we have reduced our workforce by approximately 300 as of
October 31, 2002. We expect to reduce our workforce by 2,500 in total by the time the plan is
completed. We expect to achieve the majority of the $50 million reduction in quarterly operational
costs by mid-2003. ‘

Asset impairment charges of $34 million relate to machinery and equipment, primarily owned
by the|semiconductor products group in Singapore. The equipment had been purchased in support
of communications research, but as a result of our restructuring plans, we have decided to sell the
equipment and conduct the research using existing equipment in the U.S.

A |summary of the income statement impact of the combined plans in 2002 and 2001 is shown
below. There were no significant restructuring activities in 2000.

Years ended

2002 2001

(in millions)
Cost of products and SEIVICES . ... ...\ttt $210 $ 79
Research and development ............. .. .. .ttt - 56 17
Selling, general and administrative .......... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... .. 208 58
Total restructuring and asset impairment charges.................... L. %474 $154

|

Other assel impairment charges

In June 2001, we recognized a $74 million asset impairment charge with respect to our
decision to cancel the development of a software system for our customer support activities. We
entered into an agreement with Hewlett-Packard to extend our use of their legacy customer
support systems in place of the one that we were developing.

14. Stock-Based Compensation

Employee stock purchase plans. Prior to February 2, 2000, virtually all of our employees’
were able to contribute up to ten percent of their base compensation to the quarterly purchase of
Hewlett-Packard’s common stock under the Hewlett-Packard Stock Purchase Plan (the ‘“‘Hewlett-
Packard Plan’). Under the provisions of the Hewlett-Packard Plan, employee contributions to
purchase shares were partially matched with shares contributed by Hewlett-Packard. These
matching shares generally vested over two years. After February 2, 2000, we implemented the
Agilent Technologies, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ‘“Legacy Plan’) that was similar to
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the Hewlett-Packard Plan and allowed eligible employees to contribute up to ten percent of their
base compensation to the purchase of our common stock. Under the provisions: of the Legacy Plan,
employee contributions were partially matched with shares contributed by us. These matching
shares also generally vested over two years. On June 2, 2000, all unvested matching shares of
Hewlett-Packard stock held by our employees were forfeited and replaced by our common stock of
equivalent value. Compensation expense for the matching provision for both the Hewlett-Packard
Plan and the Legacy Plan was measured using the fair value of shares on the date of purchase by
Hewlett-Packard for the Hewlett-Packard Plan and by Agilent for the Legacy Plan and was
recognized over the two-year vesting period. Compensation expense under both plans was

$16 million in 2002, $28 million in 2001 and $34 million in 2000. At October 31, 2002, 9,802,100
shares of our common stock had been authorized for issuance under the Legacy Plan and
3,359,279 of these shares had been issued. '

Effective October 31, 2000, purchases and contributions under the Legacy Plan ceased. All
unvested matching shares under the Legacy Plan maintained their original vesting terms based on
the employee’s continued employment. Vesting of these matching shares was completed by
October 31, 2002.

Effective November 1, 2000, we adopted a new plan, the Agilent Technologies, Inc. Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the “423(b) Plan”). Under the provisions of the 423(b) Plan, eligible
employees may contribute up to ten percent of their base compensation to purchase shares of our
common stock at 85 percent of the lower of the fair market value at the entry date or the
purchase date as defined by the 423(b) Plan. As of October 31, 2002, 35,000,000 shares of our
common stock were authorized for issnance under the 423(b) Plan and 6,407,624 of these shares
have been issued.

Incentive compensation plans. On September 17, 1999, we adopted the Agilent Technolo-
gies, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (the “Stock Plan”) and subsequently reserved 67,800,000 shares of our
common stock for issuance under the Stock Plan. In February 2001, our stockholders approved an
additional 45,000,000 shares of our common stock for issuance under the Stock Plan. These shares
were subsequently registered in May 2002, Stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards
and cash awards may be granted under the Stock Plan. Options granted under the Stock Plan may
be either “incentive stock options,” as defined in section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, or
non-statutory. Options generally vest at a rate of 25 percent per year over a period of four years
from the date of grant and have a maximum term of ten years. The exercise price for incentive
stock options is not less than 100 percent of the fair market value of our common stock on the -
date the stock award is granted.

At October 31, 2002, shares registered and available for option and restricted stock grants
were 51,949,609. Compensation expense for discounted options, stock appreciation rights and
restricted stock is recognized based on the intrinsic value method defined by APB Opinion No. 25,
““Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB No. 25”). Any compensation expense is
recognized ratably over the associated service period, which is generally the vesting period. The
compensation expense related to discounted options, stock appreciation rights and restricted
stock was $7 million in 2002, $8 million in 2001 and $24 million in 2000.

Effective June 2000, a majority of the Hewlett-Packard awards held by our employees were
converted to Agilent awards of equivalent value. The conversion of Hewlett-Packard options into
Agilent options was done in such a manner that (1) the aggregate intrinsic value of the options
immediately before and after the exchange was the same, (2) the ratio of the exercise price per
option to the market value per option was not reduced, and (3) the vesting provisions and options
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period of the replacement Agilent options were the same as the original vesting terms and option
period| of the Hewlett-Packard options.

The following table summarizes option activity for the years ended October 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price
(in thousands)

Outstanding options as of November 1, 1999 ....................... - $ —
Converted from Hewlett-Packard . ................. ... ..ccovuii.in. 17,687 $31
Granted . ... ... .. 30,425 859
EXerciBed ... ... (645) $23
Cancelled .......... .. e (1,333) $59
Outstanding as of October 31,2000 ............................... 46,134 $48
Granted .. ... ... 20,814 $40
Exercised ... ... (1,114) $20
Cancelled . ... ... . (1,879) $72
Outstanding as of October 31,2001 . ........... ... ............... 63,955 $46
Granted ... ... 20,152 $25
EXerCISed . ..o o (1,128) $12
Cancelled .. ... ... .. (9,140) $51
Qutstanding as of October 31,2002 ............................... 73,839 $40

The following table summarizes options exercisable and the fair value of options granted:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price
(in thousands)

Options exercisable as of October 31, 2000......................... 10,914 $26
Fair market value of options granted and converted during 2000 . ... $48
Options exercisable as of October 31, 2001......................... 25,196 $40
Fair market value of options granted during 2001 .................. $27
Options exercisable as of October 31, 2002......................... 31,501 $41
Fair market value of options granted during 2002 .................. $15
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The following table summarizes information about all options outstanding at October 31,
2002: : : ‘ :

Options Qutstanding

Vle‘aligrl;tgeed Options Exercisable
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Number Contractual Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
. : (in thousands) (in thousands)
$0-26 ... 23,838 7.9 years $ 23 5,484 $ 17
$26-50 ......... ... . 35,588 7.3 years $ 37 19,550 $ 37
$61-75 ...... PR A 3,516 7.9 years $ 61 1,612 $ 61
$76-100 ............... 10,661 7.4 years $ 78 4,715 $ 77 Anmual
nnLg
$101 and over........... 236 7.4 years $119 140 $119 Ren;rt
o 73,839 $40 31,501 $ 41 Firancials

Pro forma information. We have elected to follow the accounting provisions of APB No. 25
for stock-based compensation granted to employees. Accordingly, compensation expense is
recognized only when options are granted with a discounted exercise price. Any compensation
expense is recognized ratably over the associated service period, which is generally the option
vesting term. .

Pro forma net (loss) earnings and net (loss) earnings per share information, as required by
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123"), has been
determined as if we had accounted for all employee stock options granted, including shares under
the 423(b) Plan to employees under SFAS No. 123’s fair value method. The fair value of these
options was estimated at grant date using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions: ’ ‘

‘ ‘ 2002 ' 2001 2000
Risk-free interest rate for options ......... s 2.9% 4.25% 5.75%
Risk-free interest rate for the 423(b) Plan ...... I 1.89-5.87% 3.68-6.04% -
Dividend yield .......... ... ... ... ... ...... 0% ‘ 0% 0%
Volatility for Options . ................. o ' 63% . 77% 67%
Volatility for the 423(b) Plan .................. 47-77% ’ 7% -
Expected option life .......................... 5.5 years . 5.5 years 7 years
Expected life for the 423(b) Plan. .. ... ‘... .... 6 months-2 years 6 months-2 years -
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For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to

expense over the four-year average vesting period of the options. The pro forma effect of
recognizing compensation expense in accordance with SFAS No. 123 is as follows:

2002 2001 2000
(in millions, except per share
amoumnts)

Net (loss) earnings —as reported ............ ... $(1,032) $ 174 $ 757
SKFAS No.123 based compensation, netof tax ................ (311 (603)  (281)
Net (1oss) earnings —pro fOrma. . ......covvviiineeenennnnnn.. $(1,343) $(329) §$ 476
Basic net (loss) earnings per share —as reported............. $(222) $038 $1.68
Basic net (loss) earnings per share—pro forma .............. $ (2.89) $(0.72) $1.06
Diluted net (loss) earnings per share —as reported........... $ (222) $038 $1.66
Diluted net (loss) earnings per share —pro forma ............ $ (2.89) $(0.72) $1.05

15. Retirement Plans and Post Retirement Benefits

General. Substantially all of our employees are covered under various defined benefit and/or
defined contribution plans. Additionally, we sponsor post retirement health care benefits and a
death benefit under the Agilent Survivoer Protection Plan for our eligible U.S. employees.

Restructuring. Beginning in late 2001, we carried out plans to reduce our workforce by
approximately 8,000 employees. In the U.S., employees affected by restructuring were offered a
choice of remaining in the Agilent Retirement Plan (the “Retirement Plan’) or taking a
distribution from the Retirement Plan. In the funded status table below, amounts relating to
settlements of benefit obligations due to employees affected by restructuring are treated as regular
plan g;yments. Additicnally, eligible employees (i.e., those who met eligibility requirements as of
their individual termination dates) were offered the opportunity to elect to receive benefits under
the Agilent Continued Group Medical or SeniorMed Programs. Qutside the U.S., subject to local
statutory and other practical limitations, employees affected by restructuring were offered the
choice of remaining in the applicable retirement plans or taking distributions from those plans.

Sale of healthcare solutions business. In the U.S., employees of the healthcare solutions
business (“HSG Employees’’) were offered a choice of remaining in the Retirement Plan or taking
a distribution from the Retirement Plan. In the funded status table below, amounts relating to
settlements of HSG Employees’ benefit obligations are treated as regular plan payments.
Additionally, eligible HSG Employees (i.e., those who qualified for retirement on August 1, 2001)
were offered the opportunity to elect to receive benefits under the Agilent Continued Group
Medical or SeniorMed Programs. Qutside the U.S., subject to local statutory and other practical
limitations, HSG Employees’ projected benefit obligations — calculated in accordance with the
Asset|Purchase Agreement — were transferred to Philips along with an equal amount of assets.
Amounts reported in this footnote reflect ocur continuing operations excluding the healthcare
solutions business, except where noted.

Workforce-related events such as restructuring cause curtailment and settlement gains or
losses when they have a material impact on the average future working lifetime or total number of
partigipants in our retirement and postretirement plans. The restructuring program and the sale
of our healthcare solutions business described above both resulted in material changes to our plan
demographics in the U.S. and several other countries. The curtailment and settlement gains and
losses related to each event are separately identified in the tables that follow.
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Spin-off from Hewlett-Packard. On or before Jure 2, 2000, we assumed responsibility for
pension, deferred profit-sharing, 401(k) and other post retirement benefits from Hewlett-Packard
for current and former employees whose last work -assignment prior to the spin-off was with -
Agilent. These current and former employees are collectively referred to as “Agilent Employees.”
In the U.S., the Hewlett-Packard Company Retirement Plan and Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan
Master Trust was converted to the Group Trust for the Hewlett-Packard Company Deferred Profit-
Sharing Plan and Retirement Plan and the Agilent Technologies, Inc.:Deferréd Profit-Sharing Plan
and Retirement Plan (the “Group Trust”), and a pro rata share of the assets of the Group Trust
was assigned to the Agllent Deferred Proﬁt-Sharmg Plan Trust and the Agilent Retirement Plan
Trust. Outside the U.S,, ‘generally, a pro rata share of the Hewlett-Packard pens10n assets, if any,
were transferred or otherwise assigned to _phe Agllent entlty in accordance with local law or
practice. The pro rata share was in the same proportion as the projected benefit obligation for
Agilént Employees was to the total projected benefit obligation of Hewlett-Packard and Agilent
combined. For all periods presented the consolidated financial statements include the trust
assets, liabilities and expenses that were as51gned to Agilent. '

Annual
Banort
Financlals

"‘Penston and deferred profit- sharing plans. . Worldwide peﬁéion costs included in (loss)
earnings from contlnumg operatlons were $112 mllhon in 2002, $106 million in 2001 and
$69 million in 2000.. “ - e A

U.S. _employees who meet eligibility criteria under the Retirement Plan are provided pension
benefits under the Retirement Plan. Defined benefits are generally based on an employee’s average
pay during the final five years of employment and length of service. For eligible service through
October 31, 1993, the benefit payable under the Retirement Plan is reduced by any amounts due
to the eligible employee under our fixed and frozén defined contribution Deferred Profit-Sharing
Plan (“DPSP”), which was «closed to new participants in November 1993.

AS of October 31 2002 and 2001, the status of the Retu'ement Plan and DPSP for U.S. Agilent
Employees follows.

Retirement
Plan o DPSP
2002 2001 2002 2001
. . : ) (in millions)
Fair value of plan assets ....... T e oo, $407 8451 $952  $1,266
Retirement benefit obligation. .. ................." N $761 $702 $952  $1,266

Eligible employees'* outside the U.S. generally receive retirement benefits under various
retirement plans based upon factors such as years of service and employee compensation levels.
Eligibility is generally determined in accordance with local statutory requirements.

Post retirement benefit plans. In addition to receiving pension benefits, U.S. Agilent
Employees who meet retirement eligibility requirements as of their termination dates may v
participate in our Continued Group Medical or SeniorMed Plans. Substantially all of our current
U.S. employees could become eligible for these benefits, and the existing benefit obligation relates
primarily to those employees. Once participating in a medical plan, retirees may choose from
managed-care and indemnity options, with their contributions dependent on the options chosen
and length of service. Our U.S. retirees are also covered by a death benefit that is part of the
Agilent Survivor Protection Plan. This benefit provides a fixed sum to retirees’ survivors and is
available to all retirees regardless of length of service or compensation.

, 401(k) defined contribution plan. Our U.S. eligible employees may participate in the Agilent
Technologies, Inc. 401(k) Plan (““the 401(k) Plan”). Assets and liabilities related to Agilent
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Employees were transferred to us by Hewlett-Packard effective June 2, 2000. Enrollment in the
401(k) Plan is automatic for employees who meet eligibility requirements unless they decline
participation. Under the 401(k) Plan, we provide matching contributions to employees up to a
maximum of 4 percent of an employee’s annual eligible compensation. The maximum contribution
to the 401(k) Plan is 20 percent of an employee’s annual eligible compensation, subject to
regulatory and plan limitations. Our expense included in earnings (loss) from continuing
operations related to the 401(k) Plan was $43 million in 2002, $53 million in 2001 and $48 million
in 2000. : ‘ :

Components of net periodic cost. For the years ended October 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, our
net pension and post retirement benefit costs were comprised of: ’

. Penstons U.S. Post Retirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Benefit Plans
2002 2001 2000 2002 &Ol_ _Z_Qﬂ w ﬂ)_l_ M
(in millions)
Service cost — benefits earned during the
period . ... $8 $87 $74 $42 $44 $51 $13 $13 $10
Interest cost on benefit obligation........ 46 41 35 41 42 . 39 27 24 18
Expected return on plan assets .......... 41 (B6) G B (B (B8 (28 B6) (33
Amortization and deferrals:
Actuarial loss (gain) .................. 10 1o (a2 13 6 (I) ® 18 qo
Transition asset .. .................... - - 3 - - - - - -
Prior service cost............... ceee 1 2z _- _1 1 - = &
Net plan costs (income)................. 99 63 45 37 34 32 4 an 19
Curtailment loss (gain) ................. 1. (28) - e9) €Y) - 4D @) -
Settlementloss......................... 5 1 - 7 21 - - - -
Special termination benefits ............. - - = 1 - - -
Other |...... .. ... . .. i, — — - - 7T = - - =
Tqgtal net plan costs (income)........ $106 $36 $45 $44 $58 $32 S8BT $2H 809
Distribution of net plan costs (income):
Continuing operations ................ $106 $32 $40 $44 $55 $29 $B7 $23) 1D
Discontinued operations .............. - 4 5 - 3 3 - (D 2)
Total net plan costs (income)........ $105 $36 $45 $44 $58 §32 §$@37 g‘_?é) $(19)
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Funded status. As of October 31, 2002 and 2001, the funded status of the defined benefit
and post retirement benefit plans was:. ' )

Change in fair value of plan assets:
* Fair value — beginning of year...............

Net addition (deletion) of plans
Actual return on plan assets .

Employer. contributions
Participants’ contributions
Benefits paid

Special termination benefits. ... ... e ..

Currency impact

Curtailment/ settlement impact — divestiture

of Healthcare Solutions Business

" Curtailment/settlement impact —

restructuring
Other

Fair value — end of year ..

Change in benefit obligation:

‘Benefit obligation — beginning of year
Net addition (deletion) of plans

Service cost .............
Interest cost.............
Participants’ contributions
Plan amendment
Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Special termination benefits................

Currency impact

Curtailment/settlement impact — divestiture

of Healthcare Solutions Business

Curtailment/settlement impact —

restructuring
Other

Benefit obiigation —end of year

. Non-U.S. U.s.
U.S. Defined Defined Post Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
) (in millions)
$451  $655 $746 §$807 $311 $ 426
- - 6 - — -
(68) ‘(164)‘ (213) (64) (49 (108)
84 T 105 60 1 - ’
- - 8 8 4 g [ fone
» Raport
(60) (41) @D (10 (1D (1) \ Financiais
- - 1 — c— -
- - 29 @ - -
- - - (60) . - -
_ — (16) - - -
- — 12. 14 - —
$ 407 $ 451 $657° $ 746 § 256 $ 311
702 585 821 821 380 317
- - 19 - — -
83 87 42 44 13 13
46 41 41 42 27 24
- — 8. 8 4 4
— — -3 a7 — -
19 73 30 ° » 4 66 40
(60) 4D (21). (13) (11D (1D
- - 1 - - -
- — 44 (12) - —
- (43) - (63 (10 M
(29). - . (8D . (32)
— - - 7 — -
$ 761 $ 702 $ 957 $ 380
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Non-U.S. U.S.

U.S. Defined Defined Post Retirement
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
(in miltions)
Plan assets less than benefit obligation........ $(354) $(251) $(300) $ (75) $(181) $ (69
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) ...... .. 213 129 483 191 2 (102)
Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit)
related to plan changes . ................... 5 8 G) 8) 49 3
Unrecognized net transition asset*............ — — — @)) — —
Net (accrued) prepaid costs.................. $(136) $(114) $ 178 $ 107 $(130) $(168)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet consist of:
Prepaid defined benefit plan costs ............ $ — $ — $187 %111 $ - §$ —
Accrued defined benefit plan costs............ (136) (114) (239 4) — —
Intangible assets ......... ... .. .. . - - 6 - — —
Additional minimum pension liability ......... — — 224 - — —
Accrued post retirement benefits costs . ....... — — — — (130) (168)
Net (accrued) prepaid costs . ................. $(136) $(114) $ 178 $ 107 $(130) $(168)

* Amortized over periods ranging from 3 to 22 years.

Plan assets consist primarily of listed stocks and bonds. Our Retirement Plan assets are
allocated 80 percent to equities and 20 percent to fixed income investments. Our DPSP assets are
allocated 60 percent to equities and 40 percent to fixed income investments. Allocation between
equitjes and fixed income investments varies by plan in countries outside the U.S., but all plans’
assets are broadly diversified both domestically and overseas.

As of October 31, 2002, all of our defined benefit plans had benefit obligations that were in
excess of the fair value of the plan assets; at the end of 2001, four of our plans outside the

U.S. did not have obligations in excess of assets. The amounts of the obligations and assets for the
underfunded plans only were:

. Non-U.S.
U.S. Defined Defined
Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
QOctober 31, October 31,
2002 2001 2002 2001
(in millions)
Aggregate projected benefit obligation (“PBO™) ................ $(761) $(702) $(957) $(579)
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation (“ABO™) ............. $(432) $(374) $(736) $(464)
Aggregate fair value of planassets. ........................... $ 407 $451 $657 $ 483

An additional minimum pension liability adjustment was required for our pension plans in
Germany, Japan and the United Kingdom during 2002 as the accumulated benefit obligation of
$529 million for those plans exceeded the $441 million of pension plan assets for those plans as
of the measurement date. The $88 million difference was increased by $142 million for net
prepaid pension costs for all of the affected plans and reduced by $6 million for intangible assets
in the United Kingdom'’s plan and one of the Japanese plans, resulting in a gross additional
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minimum pension liability of $224 million. Of this amount, $146 million 1mpacted accumulated
comprehensive loss offset by $78 ‘million apphed to deferred tax assets.

Assumptwns The assumptlons used to determine the benefit obligations and expense for
our defined benefit and postretirement benefit plans are presented in the table below. The impacts
of the assumptions listed for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 have already been recognized in our
consolidated statement of operations. The assumptions for the year 2003 were used to determine
the obligations presented as of October 31, 2002 in the funded status table above, and their ‘
impacts will be recognized in our consolidated statements of operatlons durmg 2003. ‘

Yea.rs Ended October 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000

U.S. defined ‘beneﬁt plans: ' EE
Discount rate ........................ PSP - 6.75% 70%  7.5% 7.25% [ Annual
Average increase in compensation levels. . ... .. 5.25% 5.5% 6.0% 5.0% ?iiizfiai <
Expected long-term return on assets .......... 8.75% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0%

Non-U.S. defined benefit plans: - ' ;
Discount rate ..................... P 2.25 - 6.0% 2.5 — 65% 3.0 — 6.5% 3.3 — 6.0%
Average.increase in compensation levels....... 3.5 —4.25% 3.5.—5.5% 3.5 —5.5% 3.5 —53%
Expected long-term return on assets .......... 5.5 — 7.75% 6.5 — 85% 6.1 —85% 6.1 —8.5%

U.S. postretirement benefits plans . ’ S ‘ .
Discountrate ................ ... SRR : 6.75%, ) ‘7.(‘)‘% . 7.5% 7.25%
Expected long-term return on assets .......... o 8.75% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0%
Current medical cost trend rate ........ e . . T 9.0% 7.75% 7.75% 8.2%
Ultimate medical cost trend rate ... ....... L . : 5.5% 5.6% . 5'.5%-_ 5.6%
Medical cost trend rate decreases to ultlmate ' 7

rate in year .. ... '. e e 2007 - 2007 7 2007 - 2007

Assumed health care, trend rates could have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
health care plans A 1 percentage point change in ‘the assumed health care .cost’ trend rates for the
year ended October 31 2003 would have the followmg effects:

1 Percentage 1 Percentage

Point Increase Point Decrease
(in millions)
Effect on total service and 1nterest cost components e ‘ $11 $ (8)

Effect on postretlrement benefit obhgatlons e e $79 - $(83)
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16. Qther Accrued Liabilities

QOther accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities at October 31, 2002 and 2001 were as

follows:
QOctober 31,
2002 2001
(in millions)
Other accrued liabilities
Accrued expenses................. e $280  $343
RestructUring. .. .. ... e 148 89
Warranty accruals . .......... . e 59 62
Lease gUarantees . ... ...ttt e 68 71
Other ... 19 17
Total other accrued liabilities . ......... ..., 8574  $582
Qther long-term liabilities
Retirement Plans . .......... ... ... ittt $118 8169
Deferred compensation ........ ...t e 34 37
Self-insured health and welfare ........... .. ... ... .. ... ... ... 30 32
Other ...... ... . L. B3 8T
Total other long-term liabilities ............ ... ... .. . ... ... ... .. $245  $325

17. Senior Convertible Debentures and Lines of Credit

Senior Convertible Debentures. On November 27, 2001, we completed a private offering of
$1.15| billion aggregate principal amount of 3 percent senior convertible debentures (the
“debentures”) due 2021 and generated net proceeds of $1.12 billion after deducting fees and
expenses. A registration statement filed on behalf of certain holders of the debentures became
effective on April 11, 2002. The debentures are convertible at any time into our common stock at
an initial conversion price of $32.22 per share, subject to adjustment (as defined in the related
Indenture agreement dated November 27, 2001) and are redeemable at the company’s optiocn
beginning at any time on or after December 8, 2004. Holders of the debentures have the ability to
require us to repurchase the debentures, in whole or in part, on specified dates in 2006, 2011 and
2016. Holders alsc have the right to require us to repurchase all or a portion of the outstanding
debentures if the company undergoes a Fundamental Change (as defined in the Indenture
agreement), at a price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount plus interest. The debentures
bear interest at an annual rate of 3 percent, which is payable on June 1 and December 1 of each
year beginning June 1, 2002. The interest rate will reset (as defined in the Indenture agreement)
in June 2006, June 2011 and June 2016, but in nc event will it be reset below 3 percent or above
5 percent per annum. To date there have been no adjustments to the conversion price of the
debentures.

Iines of Credit. Effective November 1, 2002, we terminated our $250 million five-year
revolying credit facility that was due to expire on November 5, 2005 and did not extend the

$250 million 364-day revolving credit facility that expired on November 1, 2002. We did not have
plans| to use these credit facilities, and we believe that the costs of renewing and/or retaining
these|credit facilities outweighed their benefits. There were no balances outstanding under either
facility at October 31, 2002 or October 31, 2001.
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18. Commitmems

Operating Lease C’omm@tments We lease certain real and persona] property from unrelated
third parties under non- cancelable operating leases. Future minimum lease payments under leases:
at October 31, 2002 were $91 million for 2003, $78 million for 2004, $65 million for 2005,
$50 million for 2006, $39 million for 2007 and $84 million thereafter. Certain leases require us to -
pay property taxes, insurance and routine maintenance, and include escalation clauses. Rent
expense was $177 million in 2002, $100 million in 2001 and $69 million in 2000.

19. Com'mgencnes

We are involved in lawsults, clalms 1nvest1gat10ns and proceedmgs 1nclud1ng patent
commercial and environmental matters that arise in the ordlnary course of business. There are no
such matters pending that we expect to be material in relation to our busmess consolidated’
financial condmon results- of operatlons or cash flows.

20. Segment Information:

Description of segments. We are a diversified technology company that provides enabling
solutions to customers in markets within the communications, electromcs llfe sciences and
chemical analysis industries.

We organize our business operations into three major groups — test and measurement,
semiconductor products, and life sciences and chemical analysis — each of which comprises a
reportable segment. The segments were determined based primarily on how management views
and evaluates our operations. Other factors, including customer base, homogeneity of products,
technology and delivery channels, were also considered in determining our reportable segments.

Our three reportable segments are:

° test and méasur‘emenf, ‘'which provides standard and customized solutions that are used in

© the design, development, maﬁufacture, installation, deployment and operation of electronic
equipment and systems and communications networks and services. The test and
measurement business includes three operating segments that have been aggregated based
on the similarity of the nature of their products and services, their production processes,
their class of customers, their distribution methods and their economic characteristics-

"o semiconductor products which provides semiconductor components modules and assem-
blies for high performance communications systems; and ’

o life sciences and chemical analysis, which provides applicatioh-focused solutions that
include instruments, software, consumables and services that enable customers to identify,
quantify and analyze the physical and biological properties of substances and products.

Segment revenue and profit. The accounting policies -used to derive reportable segment
results are generally the same as those described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies.” In 2000, internal revenue and earnings from continuing operations include transactions
between segments that are intended to reflect an arm’s length transfer at the best price available
for comparable external customers.

A significant portion of the segments’ expenses arise from shared services and infrastructure
that we have historically provided to the segments in order to realize economies of scale and to
efficiently use resources. These expenses include costs of centralized research and development,
legal, accounting, employee benefits, real estate, insurance services, information technology
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services, treasury and other corporate infrastructure expenses. These expenses are allocated to
the segments and the allocations have been determined on a basis that we considered to be a
reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided to or benefits received by the
segments. A different result might be arrived at for any segment if costs were specifically
identified to each segment.

In 2002 management changed the methods by which corporate charges were allocated to the
segments. This change impacted cost of goods and services, research and development and selling,
general and administrative expenses and (loss) earnings from operations recorded by each of the
segments. Depreciation for each segment is no longer presented separately to management and
consequently it has been excluded from the disclosure below. Information prov1ded with respect
to prior periods has been restated to reflect these changes.

The following tables reflect the results of our reportable segments under our management
reporting system. These results are not necessarily a depiction that is in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. The performance of each segment is measured
based |on several metrics, including (loss) earnings from operations. These results are used, in
part, by management in evaluating the performance of, and in allocating resources to, each of the

segments.
Life Sciences
and
Test and Semiconductor Chemical Total
Measurement Products Analysis Segments
(in miilions)
Year Ende¢ OGctober 31, 2002: .
Total net revenue ....................... $3,318 $1,559 "$1,133 $6,010
(Loss) earnings from operations ......... $ (837) $ (68)- $ 150 $ (755)
Year Ended October 31, 2001:
Total net revenue ....................... $5,432 $1,850 $1,114 $8,396
(Loss) earnings from operations ......... $ (120) $ (177 $ 91 $ (206)
Year Ended October 31, 2000: ‘
External revenue ....................... $6,108 $2,213 $1,040 $9,361
Internal revenue ........................ - 51 — 51
Total net Tevenue ....................... $6,108 $2,264 $1,040 $9,412
Earnings from operations ............... $ 756 $ 229 $ 10 $ 995
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Reconciliation to our reported results:

Net revenue from continuing operations:
Total reportable segments ............ ... ... . .o
Elimination of internal revenue ...............c..c.oieiiinaiiainn.

Total net revenue, as reported ........... ... i,

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before taxes:
Total reportable segments’ (loss) earnings from operations ..........

Amortization of goodwill ........ ... .. .. .. ..

Amortization of intangibles ....... et
Restructuring and asset impairment ............ ... ... ... ...
Capitalized software write-off e F PN
Other asset impairment....................... e e

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations before taxes, as reported

Depreciation and amortization expense:

Total reportable segments’ depreciation...........................0

Corporate amortization expense........... e

Total depreciation and amortization expense, as reported ...........
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Years Ended October 31,

2002 2001 2000
(in millions)

$ 6010 $8396 $9,412
- - (G2Y)]
$6010 $8396 $9,361
$ (755) $ (206) $ 995
(326)  (303)  (64)
(52) (41) (7N
474 (154) ~
- (74) -

13 _ _
(19) _ _

6 _ _

60 301 04
$(1,547) $ (477) $1,018
$ 357 § 380 § 380
378 354 71

$ 735 & 734 $ 460
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Viajor Customers. No customer represented 10 percent or more of our total net revenue in
2002,/2001 or 2000.

he equity investment totals disclosed for each segment represent equity methed investments
directly managed by the segment.

Life Sciences

Test and Semiconductor Chgﬁgcaﬂ Total
Measurement Products Analysis Segments
(in millions)
As of October 31, 2002:
ASSEES . $5,509 $1,735 $959 $8,203
Capital expenditures . .. T $ 195 $ 68 $ 38 $ 301
Investment in equity-method investees. . .. $ 22 $ (2D $ - $ 1
As of October 31, 2001:
ASBEES .. e e $5,310 $1,714 $962 87,086
Capital expenditures.................... $ 495 $ 304 $ 82 $ 881
Investment in equity-method investees. ... $ 21 $ 14 $ — $ 35
As of October 31, 2000: '
Assets ... $4,924 $1,904 $804 $7,632
Capital expenditures.................... $ 553 $ 203 $ 47 $ 803
Investrment in equity-methoed investees. ... $ 16 $ 46 $ 20 $ 82

Total segment assets at October 31, 2000 excluded $698 million of assets allocated to the
healthecare sclutions business which were determined under our management reporting system.
Net investment in discontinued operations at October 31, 2000 of $597 million was determined
using accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.

Geographic Information

United Rest of the
States Japan World Total

(in millions)

Net revenue (based on location of customer):

Year ended October 31,2002 ......................... $2355 $ 597 $3,058 $6,010

Year ended October 31,2001 ......................... $3,373 $1,083 $3,940 $8,396

Year ended October 31,2000 ......................... $3,992  $1,032 $4,337 $9,361
Long-lived assets (all non-current assets):

Ogtober 31, 2002 . ... ... ... . $1,250 § 434 $1,639 $3,323

October 81, 2001 . ... .. . e $1,796 $ 539 $ 852 $3,187

October 41,2000 ... ... $1,316 $§ 356 $ 922 $2,594
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QUARTERLY SUMMARY

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
January 31 April 30 July 31 October 31
(in millions, except per share amounts)

2002 1 @ - 3) (4)

Net revenue .......... e A o 8 1,426 -$ 1457 $ - 1,391 § 1,736
Cost of products and services and other ............. $ 878 § 854 § 846 $ 1,116
Loss from Operations. ..........c.voveiiivreneiron.n, $ (442) $ (349) § (429) $ (387)
Loss from continuing operations .................... $ 317) $ 247 $ 223) $ (235)
Gain (loss) from sale of discontinued operations,

net of taxes ..... ... i e 2 (6) (5) €))]
NEE L0SS oottt e ‘ $ (315) $ (253) $ (228) § (236)
Net loss per share — Basic and Diluted: '

Net loss from continuing operations ............... $ (0.68) $ (0.54) $ (048) § 05D

Loss from sale of discontinued operations, net ‘

of taxes ........... P - (0.01) (0.01) -

NetloSS ..ot $ (0.68) § (0.65) $ (0.49) § (0.51)
Weighted average shares used in computing net loss

per share: .

Basicand Diluted ............... ... . ...l 463 464 466 467
Range of closing stock prices on NYSE............... $22.06-33.30 $24.83-38.00 $16.00-31.25  $10.50-18.88
2001 ‘ ©) (6) - m ®
Netrevenue ...........ooviivrvriiininii s, $ 2,565 § 2,406 § 1,819 § 1,606
Cost of products and services and other ............. 8 1,222 § 1,353 . $ 1,075 § 1,240
Earnings (loss) from operations ..................... $ 294 § (49) % 331) $ (692)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations .......... $ 174§ 39 3§ (220) $ (449)
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations ... .. @ 13 ) -
Gain from sale of discontinued operations, net of

BBXES .+ vt e — — — 646
Net earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of ’

accounting changes ................. ... ool 172 102 (225) 197
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No 133, net of

BAXES ottt e (25) - - -
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net of taxes .. 47 - - -
Net earnings (loss) .................. e $ 100 § 102§ (225) $ 197
Net earnings (loss) per share — Basic:

Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations ..... $§ 038 $ 019 § (0.48) $ (0.98)

Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations . .. - 0.03 (0.01) -

Gain from sale of discontinued operations, net of

BAXES .\ttt e - - - 141

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net of

12 (0.06) - - -

Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net of taxes (0.10) — - -

Net earnings (10SS) .......ovvr i, $ 022 $ 022 § (049) $ 0.43
Net earnings (loss) per share — Diluted:

Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations . .. .. $ 037 § 019 § (0.48) $§ 0.98)

Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations . . . - 0.03 (0.01) -

Gain from sale of discontinued operations, net of

BAXES . e - - - 1.41

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net of

L S (0.06) - - -
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net of taxes (0.10) - — —
Net earnings (10S8) .........ovvvvi i, $ 021 § 022 § (049) § 0.43

Apnual
Rzgort
Hranciais




Weighted av
(loss) per

Basic ...
Diluted .
Range of cl

NOTES:

(1) Includ
severa

(2) Includ
severa

(3) Includ
severa

(4) Includ
charge

(6) Includ

(6) Includ
invent

(7)) Includ
$99 mi

(8) Includge
tax iny

Three Months Ended
January 31 April 30 July 31 October 31
(in millions, except per share amounts)

erage shares used in computing net earnings

share:

............................................ 455 456 459 460
............................................ 466 461 459 460
sing stock pricess on NYSE ................. .. $38.06-68.00 $25.00-55.00 $26.20-41.18 $18.00-32.70

es pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $105 million primarily relating to
nce expenses '

»s pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $35 million primarily relating to
nce expenses

es pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $78 million primarily relating to
nce expenses

ps pre-tax severance and other restructuring charges of $133 million and pre-tax asset impairment
s of $123 million

os pre-tax inventory charges of $30 million

es pre-tax gains of $269 million relating to the sale of surplus land in California and pre-tax
bry charges of $143 million

es pre-tax capitalized software write-off of $74 million and pre-tax inventory charges of
llion

bs pre-tax restructuring charges of $154 million primarily relating to severance expenses and pre-
entory charges of $187 millicn
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DIRECTIONS TO
THE SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO
. CONFERENCE CENTER

FROM SAN JOSE

Take Highway 101 North to the
South Airport Boulevard exit.

At the first stop light; drive straight
across the intersection and directly
into the Holiday Inn parking lot.

The South San Francisco
Conference Center is on the left.
FROM SAN FRANCISCO

Take Highway 101 South to the

South Airport Boulevard exit
in South San Francisco.

Stay to the right and turn east
under the freeway overpass.

South San Francisco
Conference Centsr
258 8. Airport Blvd.,

Make a right, at the Hungry Hunter Restaurant, onto South Airport Boulevard.

The South San Francisco Conference Center is located on the left between the Ramada Inn

and the Holiday Inn.
PARKING

The South San Francisco Conference Center has an agreement to share parking with both neighboring hotels —
the Holiday [[nn to the south and the Ramada Inn to the north. Additional parking is available diagonally

across the street in the lof located between the Travelodge and the Best Western Grosvenor Hotel.
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